
ORDINANCE NO. 2018- 26

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING

AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE

AGREEMENT FOR EXTENSION OF THE PARKING

MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND DENISON
PARKING, INC. PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten ( 10) days' notice has been given by publication in a paper

of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a public

hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the

published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so

desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore, 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That a Second Amendment to the Agreement for Parking Management

Services between the City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc., a copy of which

Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full, is hereby

approved. 

SECTION 2. That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to execute said

Amendment. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of



this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end

the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 

PASSED FIRST READING this 9th day of January , 2018. 

PASSED SECOND READING this 23rd day of January 2018. 

MAYOR

ATTEST: 

L Lc- 
ASCELETA HAMMOND, CITY CLERK

jrm

12/21/ 17

L:ord/ 2018-74



SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR

PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT is

2018, by and between: 

entered into on the  day of

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, a municipal corporation of the

State of Florida, with offices located at 100 West Atlantic

Boulevard, Pompano Beach, Florida, hereinafter referred to as
CITY." 

and

DENISON PARKING, INC., an Indiana corporation authorized to

do business in the State of Florida, with offices located at 320 N. 
Meridian Street, Suite 700, Indianapolis, IN 46204, hereinafter

referred to as " PARKING MANAGER." 

WHEREAS, PARKING MANAGER entered into an agreement with CITY offering to

provide Parking Management Services on January 30, 2015, (" Original Agreement') and approved

by City Ordinance No. 2015- 24, and

WHEREAS, PARKING MANAGER entered into a First Amendment to the Agreement

with CITY on July 29, 2016, and approved by City Ordinance No. 2016-71; and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to extend the Original Agreement for one ( 1) 

additional one-year period, ending January 29, 2019, and to substitute Attachment/Exhibit B and

Attachment/ Exhibit C to the Original Agreement. 

WITNESSETH: 

IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, promises, covenants and

payments herein set forth CITY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 



1. Each " WHEREAS" clause set forth above is true and correct and herein

incorporated by this reference. 

2. The Original Agreement effective January 30, 2015, and subsequently amended on

July 29, 2016, copies of which are attached hereto and made a part hereof as Composite Exhibit

A," shall remain in full force and effect except as specifically amended hereinbelow. 

3. The parties hereto agree to extend the Original Agreement for one ( 1) additional

one- year period, ending January 29, 2019. 

4. The attached Exhibit B and Exhibit C are hereby substituted for, and in all

references replace, that Exhibit B and Exhibit C, which were attached to, referenced and made a

part of the Original Agreement. 

5.. This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective executors, 

administrators, successors and assign and shall be fully effective as though the amendment had

been originally included in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the parties have set their hands and seals the day

and year first above written. 

CITY % 

Witnesses: CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

Att t: 

ASCELETA HAM ND, CITY CLERK ( SEAL) 

MAYOR

CITY MANAGER

Second Amendment Between City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, hie. Page 2 of3
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1aE. 9ERMAN, CITY . 

6WvI1 tie) iS are]:T17:1

COUNTY OF BROWARD

4-k
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ? d day of lJei ' tQGL 

2018, by LAMAR FISHER as Mayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City Manager, and ASCELETA HAMAIO14D as
City Clerk of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal corporation, 
who is personally known to me. 

L
NOTARY' S SEAL: NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE70 L. 

Name ofAc_kno_wleedpddggeerrTTyped, Printed or Stamped) 

JENNETTE F ® 1 161
y r

t+P ya;. ORRESTER WILLIAMS
Notary Public • Stale of Florida

j COmmisSlon x FF 993881

eot My Comm. Expires May 18, 2020

Notary Public, Stats of Indiana

SondedlAmugn National Notary Assn

z1SEAL.•" Hancock County

Witnesses: 

MAOeK
Print Name

t

Print Narne

STATE OF INDIANA

COUNTY OF MARION

Commission Number

PARKING MANAGER": 

DENIS N PARKING, C. 

l
By: 

7e fey S, Like , President

b
The^`foQr oink yr trument was acknowledged before me this _ day of z 2018, 

Y ` t e LKJ ui r as President of DENISON PARKING, M., an Indiana corporation, 

auth6fiz9crto do business in the State of Florida, on behalf of the corporation. He is personally known to me or who
has produced ( type of iAentifrcation) as identification. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: 

p"i PATII A. LAWHORN
a`ti?P••• :% Notary Public, Stats of Indiana

z1SEAL.•" Hancock County
o f'•, we Commission# 703577

NuinN?c$ MV Commission Expires
onmar" August03, 2025 f, 

e 

UW/finL: a/ anmctl3018-] O] 

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF INDIANA / 

IW77-f A. 
Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

703577
Commission Number

Second Amendment Between City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc. Page 3 of 3
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DENIINC- CI SJOHNSON

4coEro CERT Ir ICATE OF LIABILITY INSURP-. VCE
DATE1YI

11121288 /22 010/ 77

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER

Grogory & Appel insurance
1402 N Cappitol Suite 400
IndlanapolIs, IN 46202

UAJACT

PNICONti, EX11: ( 317) 634-7491 ( ac, No1; 1317) 634-6629
cor re o a el. como I 9 9 rY PQ

A

NSU ER FORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A-: Travelers PC Co of America 26674

INSURED INSURER B: TravelereIndemnity Co America 25666

INSURER c: Travelers Casualty Insurance Company of Amerlc 19046Denison Parking, Inc. 
Mike Davis

320 N. Meridian St., Ste 700 INSURER D: 

CLAVAS - MAGE 0 occuR

Indpls, IN 46204 INSURER E: 

INSURER P; 

1210112017

neer,eInATE NUMCCG• RFVISIDN NIIMRFR- 
v

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT HATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSRTYPEOF INSURANCE ADDLNan SUBRMIT POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFFPOUCYEXPITRILIMITS

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABWTY EACH OCCURRENCE1'000' 000
PREMISESIEeEaccum0anml 300,000CLAVAS - MAGE 0 occuR 63078290213 1210112017 1210112018

MED EXP Aml one Doreen)
6,000EBL-$ 1M1$ 2Mrx

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1
1' 000' 000

APPLIES PER: GEN -L AGGR ATE LIMIT

POLICY jEC7 FILOC
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CG D4 67 12 08

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

INTERNATIONAL XTEND ENDORSEMENT FOR SERVICE
INDUSTRIES

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE — This endorsement broadens coverage. However, coverage for any
injury, damage or medical expenses described in any of the provisions of this endorsement may be excluded or
limited by another endorsement to this Coverage Part, and these coverage broadening provisions do not apply to
the extent that coverage is excluded or limited by such an endorsement. The following listing is a general
coverage description only. Limitations and exclusions may apply to these coverages. Read all the provisions of
this endorsement and the rest of your policy carefully to determine rights, duties, and what is and is not covered. 

A. Broadened Named Insured

B. Blanket Additional Insured — Broad Form Vendors

C. Limited Worldwide Liability Coverage — Indemnity Basis

D. Damage To Premises Rented To You

Perils of fire, explosion, lightning, smoke, water

Limit increased to $300,000

E. Blanket Waiver of Subrogation

F. Blanket Additional Insured — Owners, Managers or Lessors of Premises

G. Blanket Additional Insured — Lessors of Leased Equipment

H. Incidental Medical Malpractice

I. Personal Injury— Assumed by Contract

J. Amended Bodily Injury Definition

K. Bodily Injury to Co -Employees and Co -Volunteer Workers
L. Aircraft Chartered with Crew

M. Non -Owned Watercraft — Increased from 25 feet to 50 feet

N. Increased Supplementary Payments

Cost of bail bonds increased to $2, 500

Loss of earnings Increased to $ 500 per day

O. Knowledge and Notice of Occurrence or Offense

P. Unintentional Omission

Q. Reasonable Force — Bodily Injury or Property Damage

R. Transportation Expenses For Repatriation or Relocation of Injured Or Sick Employees

PROVISIONS

A. BROADENED NAMED INSURED

1. The following is added to SECTION II — WHO IS AN INSURED: 

Any organization, other than a partnership or joint venture, over which you maintain ownership or majority



b. Explosion; 

c. Lightning; 

d. Smoke resulting from such fire, explosion, or lightning; or
e. Water. 

A separate limit of insurance applies to such damage to premises as described in Paragraph 6. of Section
III — Limits Of Insurance. 

This insurance does not apply to damage to premises while rented to you, or temporarily occupied by you
with permission of the owner, caused by: 

a. Rupture, bursting, or operation of pressure relief devices; 

b. Rupture or bursting due to expansion or swelling of the contents of any building or structure, caused
by or resulting from water; 

c. Explosion of steam boilers, steam pipes, steam engines, or steam turbines. 

2. The following replaces Paragraph 6. of SECTION III — LIMITS OF INSURANCE: 
Subject to 5. above, the Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will pay under
Coverage A for damages because of " properly damage" to any one premises while rented to you, or
temporarily occupied by you with permission of the owner, caused by fire; explosion; lightning; smoke
resulting from such fire, explosion, or lightning; or water. The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit
will apply to all damage proximately caused by the same " occurrence", whether such damage results from
fire; explosion; lightning; smoke resulting from such fire, explosion, or lightning; water; or any combination
of any of these. 

The Damage To Premises Rented To You Limit will be the higher of: 

a. $ 300,000; or

b. The amount shown on the Declarations of this Coverage Part for Damage To Premises Rented To
You Limit. 

4. The following replaces Paragraph a. of the definition of " insured contract' in the DEFINITIONS Section: 
a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that portion of the contract for a lease of premises that

indemnifies any person or organization for damage to premises while rented to you, or temporarily
occupied by you with permission of the owner, caused by: 

1) Fire; 

2) Explosion; 

3) Lightning; 

4) Smoke resulting from such fire, explosion, or lightning; or

5) Water. 

is not an " insured contract; 

5. The following replaces Paragraph 4.b.( 1)( b) of SECTION IV — COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CONDITIONS: 

b) That is insurance for premises rented to you, or temporarily occupied by you with the permission of
the owner; 

E. BLANKET WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The following is added to Paragraph 8., Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us, of
SECTION IV — COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS: 

We waive any right of recovery we may have against any person or organization because of payments we
make for injury or damage arising out of premises owned or occupied by or rented or loaned to you; ongoing
operations performed by you or on your behalf, done under a contract with that person or organization; "your
work"; or "your products". We waive this right where you have agreed to do so as part of a written contract, 
executed by you prior to loss. 

F. BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED— OWNERS, MANAGERS OR LESSORS OF PREMISES



The following is added to SECTION II — WHO IS AN INSURED: 

Any person or organization that is a premises owner, manager or lessor and that you have agreed in a written
contract or agreement to name as an additional Insured on this Coverage Part is an insured, but only with
respect to liability for "bodily injury", " property damage", " personal injury" or "advertising Injury" that: 
a. Is " bodily injury" or " property damage" caused by an " occurrence" that takes place, or " personal injury" or

advertising injury" caused by an offense that is committed, after you have signed and executed that
contract or agreement; and

b. Arises out of the ownership, maintenance or use of that part of any premises leased to you. 
The insurance provided to such premises owner, manager or lessor is subject to the following provisions: 

a. The limits of insurance provided to such premises owner, manager or lessor will be the limits which you
agreed to provide in the written contract or agreement, or the limits shown on the Declarations of this
Coverage Part, whichever are less. 

b. The insurance provided to such premises owner, manager or lessor does not apply to: 

1) ' Bodily Injury" or "property damage" caused by an ' occurrence" that takes place, or "personal injury" 
or "advertising injury" caused by an offense that is committed, after you cease to be a tenant in that
premises; or

2) Structural alterations, new construction or demolition operations performed by or on behalf of such
premises owner, manager or lessor. 

c. The insurance provided to such premises owner, manager or lessor is excess over any valid and
collectible other insurance available to such premises owner, manager or lessor, unless you have agreed
In a written contract for this insurance to apply on a primary or contributory basis. 

G. BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED — LESSORS OF LEASED EQUIPMENT

The following is added to SECTION II— WHO IS AN INSURED: 

Any person or organization that is an equipment lessor and that you have agreed in a written contract or
agreement to Include as an additional insured on this Coverage Part is an insured, but only with respect to

liability for "bodily Injury", " property damage", "personal Injury" or "advertising injury" that: 
a. Is " bodily injury" or "property damage" caused by an ' occurrence" that takes place, or "personal injury" or

advertising injury" caused by an offense that is committed, after you have signed and executed that
contract or agreement; and

b. Is caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or omissions in the maintenance, operation or use by you of
equipment leased to you by such equipment lessor. 

The insurance provided to such equipment lessor is subject to the following provisions: 

a. The limits of insurance provided to such equipment lessor will be the limits which you agreed to provide in
the written contract or agreement, or the limits shown on the Declarations of this Coverage Part, 

whichever are less. 

b. The insurance provided to such equipment lessor does not apply to any " bodily Injury" or ' property
damage" caused by an ' occurrence" that takes place, or ' personal injury" or " advertising injury" caused
by an offense that is committed, after the equipment lease expires. 

c. The Insurance provided to such equipment lessor is excess over any valid and collectible other insurance
available to such equipment lessor, unless you have agreed in a written contract for this Insurance to

apply on a primary or contributory basis. 
H. INCIDENTAL MEDICAL MALPRACTICE

1. The following is added to the definition of "occurrence" in the DEFINITIONS Section: 

Unless you are in the business or occupation of providing professional health care services, ' occurrence" 
also means an act or omission committed in providing or failing to provide " incidental medical services" to
a person. 

2. The following is added to the DEFINITIONS Section: 

Incidental medical services" means: 

a. Medical, surgical, dental, laboratory, x-ray or nursing service or treatment, advice or instruction, or the



POLICY NUMBER: ISSUE DATE: 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

DESIGNATED ENTITY - NOTICE OF

CANCELLATION PROVIDED BY US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

ALL COVERAGE PARTS INCLUDED IN THIS POLICY

CANCELLATION: 

SCHEDULE

Number of Days Notice of Cancellation: - 30_ 

PERSON OR City of Pompano Beach
ORGANIZATION: 

Robert McCaughan, Public Works Directors

12o1 N. E. 5th Avenue

ADDRESS: 
Pompano Beach, FL 33o6o

PROVISIONS: 

If we cancel this policy for any statutorily permitted
reason other than nonpayment of premium, and a

number of days is shown for cancellation in the
schedule above, we will mail notice of cancellation to

the person or organization shown in the schedule

above. We will mail such notice to the address shown

in the schedule above at least the number of days
shown for cancellation in the schedule above before

the effective date of cancellation. 

IL T4 05 03 11 0 2011 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 1



EXHIBIT A

ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 24

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING
AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR PARKING

MANAGEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF

POMPANO BEACH AND DENISON PARKING, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR SF,VERABILITY; PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten ( 10) days' notice has been given by publication in a

paper of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a

public hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the

published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so

desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore, 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That an Agreement between the City of Pompano Beach and Denison

Parking, Inc., a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference

as if set forth in full, is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2. That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to execute said

Agreement. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of



this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this

end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 

PASSED FIRST READING this 13th day of_ January., 2015. 

PASSED SECOND READING this 27th day of January 20a. 

I fr1MAR F F , YOR

ATTEST: 

Lk (-- 
MARY L. CHAMBERS, CITY CLERK

jrm

11/ 20/ 14

Lord/2015- 108
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AGREEMENT FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, 
FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, ( the " City") and DENISON PARKING, INC., ( the
PARKING MANAGER"). 

WHEREAS, the City issued its Request for Proposals for Parking Management Services, No. T- 
43- 14 ( the " RFP") to solicit proposals to serve as the City' s Parking Manager; and

WHEREAS, the Parking Manager responded to the RFP by submitting its proposal dated June 6, 
2014 (" Proposal") which Proposal was selected by the City to be the best value; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties hereto to enter into an agreement whereby the Parking
Manager will provide Parking Management services to encompass parking enforcement, collections and
consulting services as it relates to the design and construction of the pier parking garage as might be
requested by City under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

1. Entirety of Agreement. The entire and integrated agreement between City and Parking Manager
related to the services to be provided shall consist of ( 1) this Base Agreement ( items 1- 25 herein), ( 2) 

Parking Manager' s Revised Scope of Services as outlined at Attachment A ( 3) Parking Manager' s
detailed fee and rate structure Proposal included as Attachment B, ( 3) City' s Request for Proposals, 
Management of Parking Operations — T-43- 14 ( the " RFP"), included as Attachment C and ( 4) Parking
Manager' s Bid Response (the " Proposal"), included as Attachment D. 

2. Parking Management Services. Parking Manager shall provide the services described in the RFP, 
the terms of which are incorporated by reference in its entirety, and the Proposal, the terms of which are
incorporated by reference in its entirety ( which services, as may be added or changed, are hereinafter
referred to as the " Services"), as more defined at Attachment A. The City acknowledges that the
Parking Manager shall use reasonable care in performing its obligations under this Agreement. 

Parking Manager agrees that the City will not be charged an additional fee for expanding the meter
enforcement zone east of USI ( Federal Highway). City understands that should the meter enforcement
zone expand outside of this geographic boundary, whereby it requires additional enforcement personnel, 
Parking Manager and City may negotiate an additional fee, subject to approval by the City Commission. 

Parking Manager agrees that whereby Parking Manager is responsible for establishing a system for over
the counter or online processing of credit card transactions, which does not flow through the City' s
network, that Parking Manager will be responsible for compliance with all regulations governing
merchant acceptance and processing of credit card transactions, inclusive of compliance with Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standards. 

Parking Manager agrees to provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of
Parking Manager' s system of internal controls to be performed annually, by a certified independent
accountant, and to provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a Service Organization) to the
City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a report will be in accordance with the requirements of
Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. 

3. Additional or Revised Services. The parties acknowledge and agree that, in the event that the

City elects to utilize any of the Parking Manager' s services not set forth in the Proposal, or in the event



that the Parking Manager, in the normal course of its business, develops specific services agreement in the
future for Parking Managing services requested by the City in addition to those covered by the RFP and
Proposal, the Parking Manager will provide the specific services agreement, which shall be deemed to be
an amendment to and subject to this Agreement, whether or not specifically stated in the service
agreement, with such amendment subject to approval by the City Commission. 

4. Compensation, 

4. 1 Parking Manager' s detailed fee and rate structure is included as Attachment B and will
be in effect for the entire period of this Agreement, inclusive of any mutually agreed upon renewal
periods. The Parking Manager shall prepare a monthly billing for Services rendered. The billing will
reflect the amount due for services performed by the Parking Manager. The Fees shall be the sole
compensation paid to the Parking Manager in connection with the rendition of the Services and the
performance of any and all of its other obligations hereunder. 

4.2 City will pay the Parking Manager in accordance with the Local Government Prompt
Payment Act, Section 217.70, et al., Florida Statutes, as amended, which also establishes a process and

remedies for non- compliance. Invoices must be submitted to City of Pompano Beach Public Works
Department, 1201 N.E. 5' h Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL., 33060, Attention: Public Works Director. A

copy of the invoice should also be forwarded to the City' s Finance Department at 100 W. Atlantic Blvd., 
Pompano Beach, FL 33060, Room 480. Invoices shall show the nature of the service and dates of

service. 

4. 3 No payment made under this Agreement shall be conclusive evidence of the performance

of this Agreement by the Parking Manager, either wholly or in part, and no payment shall be construed to
be an acceptance of or to relieve the Parking Manager of liability for the defective, faulty or incomplete
rendition of the Services. 

5. TERM. The term of the engagement under this Agreement shall commence on the last date

executed by the later of the City and the Parking Manager and shall continue for a term of three ( 3) years. 
This Agreement may, by mutual agreement, be renewed for two additional one ( 1) year periods. 

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. In the conduct of the Services under this Agreement, the Parking
Manager in good faith shall comply in all material respects with all applicable federal and state laws and

regulations and all applicable county and City ordinances and regulations, including, but not limited to, 
standards of licensing, conduct of business and those relating to criminal activity. 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Parking Manager shall be deemed an independent
contractor for all purposes, and the employees of the Parking Manager or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors and the employees thereof, shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of City. 
As such, the employees of the Parking Manager, its Contractors or subcontractors, shall not be subject to
any withholding for tax, social security or other purposes by City, nor shall such Contractor, 
subcontractor or employee be entitled to sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life

insurance, workers or unemployment compensation or the like from City. 

8. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS. The Parking Manager shall pernut the authorized
representatives of the City to inspect and audit all data and records of the Parking Manager specifically
and directly related to the services rendered under or pursuant to this Agreement by the Parking Manager
to the City, if any, relating to performance under the contract until the expiration of three years after
contract tentunation. 

2



The Parking Manager further agrees to require a subcontractor to agree that City or any of their duly
authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of three years after contract termination, have access

to and the right to examine any directly pertinent City books, documents, papers and records of such
subcontractor, involving transactions related to the subcontractor. 

INSURANCE. 

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by
the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but
certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade
ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer. 

The Parking Manager shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing
terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk
Manager. 

The following insurance coverage shall be required. 

a. Worker' s Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as

required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company ( number
of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control

and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the
course of their employment. 

b. Liability Insurance
1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General

Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract. 

2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance
and indicated minimum policy limits. 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

each

of Insurance occurrence

GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE / $ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis

XX comprehensive form

XX premises - operations

explosion & collapse

hazard

underground hazard

XX products/completed

operations hazard

XX contractual insurance

XX broad form property
damage

XX independent contractors

XX personal injury

bodily injury

property damage

bodily injury and
property damage
combined

personal injury



AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE / $ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

EXCESS LIABILITY

bodily injury and
umbrella form property damage
other than umbrella combined $ 2, 000, 000. $ 2, 000, 000. 

XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY $ 1, 000, 000. $ 1, 000, 000. 

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City thirty ( 30) 
days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

Parking Manager shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions
set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award of contract. 

10. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION. Parking Manager covenants and agrees that it
will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, 
loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising directly out of any act or omission by the Parking Manager, 
whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the
Parking Manager nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of
injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the negligence of the City or
any of its officers, agents or employees. 

11. TERMINATION. Each party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in
part, with or without cause, and for its convenience, when in that party' s sole discretion it deems such
termination is its best interest, upon ninety ( 90) days prior written notice. Payment for Services rendered
shall be made in accordance with this Agreement. Upon termination, this Agreement shall have no further

force or effect and the parties shall be relieved of all further liability hereunder, except that the provisions
of this Section and the provisions regarding the right to audit, insurance, indemnification, governing law
and litigation shall survive termination of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect. 

bodily injury
each person) 

bodily injury
XX comprehensive form each accident) 

XX owned property damage
XX hired bodily injury and
XX non -owned property damage

combined

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

EXCESS LIABILITY

bodily injury and
umbrella form property damage

other than umbrella combined $ 2, 000, 000. $ 2, 000, 000. 

XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY $ 1, 000, 000. $ 1, 000, 000. 

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City thirty ( 30) 
days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

Parking Manager shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions
set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award of contract. 

10. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION. Parking Manager covenants and agrees that it
will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, 
loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising directly out of any act or omission by the Parking Manager, 

whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the
Parking Manager nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of

injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the negligence of the City or
any of its officers, agents or employees. 

11. TERMINATION. Each party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in
part, with or without cause, and for its convenience, when in that party' s sole discretion it deems such

termination is its best interest, upon ninety ( 90) days prior written notice. Payment for Services rendered
shall be made in accordance with this Agreement. Upon termination, this Agreement shall have no further

force or effect and the parties shall be relieved of all further liability hereunder, except that the provisions
of this Section and the provisions regarding the right to audit, insurance, indemnification, governing law

and litigation shall survive termination of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect. 



Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate the Agreement for cause. A party shall be in
default if a party fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder and such failure continues for a period
of twenty (20) days after written notice as provided in Paragraph 12, below, from the non -defaulting party
specifying the nature of the failure. 

12. NOTICE. All written notices, demands and other communications required or provided for under

this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, in the case of
mailing, or by overnight or same day courier, or by electronic transmission producing a written record, or
hand delivered to the Parking Manager or to the City, at the address below Agreement: 

PARKING MANAGER: 
Mark Pryor, VP of Business Development

36 S. Pennsylvania Street, Suite 200

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

CITY: 

Robert McCaughan, Public Works Director

1201 N. E. 5" Avenue

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

and Suzette Sibble, Finance Director

100 W. Atlantic Blvd. 

Pompano Beach, Florida 33060

13, NON-DISCRIMINATION. In performing under this Agreement, the Parking Manager shall not
discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, gender identity or expression, 
genetic information, national origin, age, disability, familial status, marital status or sexual orientation. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. The Parking Manager shall not assign, sublet, convey or transfer its interest in
this Agreement without notification to City, at which point City may elect to terminate its Agreement
with Parking Manager should such assignment, sublet, conveyance or transfer of Parking Manager' s
interest not be acceptable to City. It is further agreed that said notice shall be given where feasible by
Parking Manager not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed assignment. 

15. FORCE MAJEURE. Parking Manager shall not be held responsible for losses, delays, failure to
perform or excess costs caused by events beyond the control of the Parking Manager. Such events may
include, but are not restricted to the following: Acts of God; tire, epidemics, earthquake, flood or other
natural disaster; acts of the government; riots, strikes, war or civil disorder; unavailability of fuel. 

16. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. The Parking Manager represents that to its knowledge, no City
employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the Parking Manager. Parking Manager
further acknowledges that if it comes to Parking Manager' s attention that any City employee is an owner, 
corporate officer, of an employee, the Parking Manager will, as it may determine, file a statement with the
Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to § 112.313, Florida Statutes, 

17. PATENT FEES, ROYALTIES AND LICENSES. Parking Manager agrees, as described herein, 
that if Parking Manager requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process
covered by letters of patent or copyright in connection with the Services contemplated herein, the Parking
Manager and its surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for
infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or
process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, 
expense, royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any
time during or after completion of the work. With respect to the services and/ or technology

Technology") provided to the City directly by the Parking Manager which is used by the City in an
approved manner (" Approved Use"), the Parking Manager shall indemnify the City from and against any



and all losses resulting solely from a claim brought by a third party that specifically alleges any Approved
Use of the Technology infringes on any third party copyright, trademark, service mark or trade secret. 
The foregoing states Parking Manager' s entire obligation and liability with respect to infringement of
third party intellectual property rights. 

18. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES ACT. The Parking Manager represents, to the knowledge of the
undersigned, that the execution of this Agreement will not violate the Public Entity Crimes Act ( Section
287. 133, Florida Statutes), and certifies that, to the knowledge of the undersigned, the Parking Manager
has not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of
Management Services within 36 months from the date of submitting its Proposal for this Agreement or
entering into this Agreement. Violation of this section may result in termination of this Agreement and
recovery of all monies paid hereto, and may result in debarment from City' s competitive procurement
activities. 

19. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Florida, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida, both as to interpretation and performance. Any action at
law, or in equity, shall be instituted and maintained only in courts of competent jurisdiction in Broward
County, Florida. 

20, SEVERABILITY. In the event that any teen or provision of this shall to any extent be held
invalid or unenforceable, it is agreed that the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such

terms or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or

unenforceable, shall not be affected and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be
deemed valid and enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

21. WAIVER. Any waiver by either party hereto of any one or more of the covenants, conditions, or
provisions of this Agreement, shall not be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of
the same or any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement. 

22. HEADINGS. The headings contained in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and
shall not be considered in construing, interpreting or enforcing this Agreement. 

23. PUBLIC RECORDS. 

A. The City is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. The
Contractor shall comply with Florida' s Public Records Law. Specifically, the Parking Manager shall: 

1. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would
be required by the city in order to perform the service; 

2. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms

and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed that provided in
Chapter 199, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law; 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and

exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and

4. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the
City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the Parking Manager upon termination of the contract
and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored

6



B. The failure of Parking Manager to comply with the provisions set forth in this
section shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the city shall enforce the Default in
accordance with the provisions set forth in this Agreement or as provided by law. 

24. MUTUAL COOPERATION. The City represents that the performance of this contract is essential
to the provision of vital public services and the accomplishment of the stated goals and mission of City. 
Therefore, Parking Manager agrees to act in good faith in all relations with City in its performance under this
Agreement. 

25. CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, in the event of
any conflict between the specific provisions of this Agreement and the requirements or provisions of the RFP
and/ or Proposal, the provisions shall be given precedence in the following order: ( 1) this Base Agreement
Items 1- 25 herein); ( 2) Scope of Services at Attachment A; ( 3) Detailed Fee and Rate Structure at

Attachment B: ( 3) the RFP; and ( 4) the Proposal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their proper
and appropriate officials on the day and year first above written. 

Witnesses: CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

G l tCfir lc o? By. /—
Z

7MrJF1 R

c . T 0,1 By: 
DENN W. BEACH, CITY MANAGER

At I(C-j
MARY L. CHAMBERS, IDITY CLERK

Approved To Form: 

G RDON B. LINN, CITY ATTORNEY

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

SEAL) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before this----" — day of
2014 by LAMA ISHER— ayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City

Manager, and MARY ,,. CILAARER as City Clerk of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal
poc}sewa ' on ehalf of the municipal corporation, who is personally known to me. 



STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWAKD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 30th day of January

20 5 by LAMAR FISHER as Mayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City Manager, and
Gity lark of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal corporation, 
who is personally known to me. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

4
KRYSTAL AARON

CNOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF FLORIDA

Comm# EE874885

I4'CE19 B Expires 2/ 74/ 2077

Witnesses: 

Krystal Aaron

Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

Commission Number

PARKING MANAGER" 

DENISON PARKING, INC. 

By. n= 
M4RK Pi?eT' 

Print

Name: 

Title: PRsID+ rt CSO

Business License

STATE OF 1 l L

COUNTY OF M g f r v 

The foregoing ins mery was cJmowledged before me this rX day f n rnP

20K, by M G f Yr 4t(ef as  t

of DENISON PARKING, INC., ap corporation on behalf of the corporation. 

He/she ispersonally known to in or who has produced
type of identification) as i e t0@Aliplt.4// 

NOTARY' S SEAL: 

Jan

12/ 12/ 14

Uagr/pw/2015- 330

5 W3 331
Commission Number



STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this
30t1' 

day of
January, 2015 by ASCELETA HAMMOND, as Acting City Clerk of the City of
Pompano Beach, a municipal Florida corporation, on behalf of the municipal

corporation, who is personally known to me. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: 

r HRYSTAL AARON

NOTARY PUBLIC

ESTATE OF FLORIDA
Comm# EE874865

w Fxplres 2/ 14/ 2017

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

Krystal Aaron

Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or
Stamped) 

Commission Number



ATTACHMENT A

Parking Manager' s revised scope of services



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Parking Manager shall provide the following services during the term of the Agreement: 

Meter Enforcement

a. Patrol of and enforcement for single- space, multi -space meters and

parking lots, inclusive of issuance of parking citations for all parking
violations, in accordance with City ordinance. 

b. Provide for all support vehicles, office and computer equipment as

required to perform the day- to-day operations of the parking program. 
Parking Manager shall be responsible for any internet service connections
fees, as a result of any remote access to the City' s network and any
associated maintenance costs. 

c. Provide for GPS tracking of enforcement vehicles and assigned personnel
via cell phone. 

d. Coordinate the installation and maintenance of parking meters, pay
stations and change machines and for the general maintenance of all City
parking meter lots and on -street parking ( sweeping, striping etc.). 

e. Provide price quotes for both purchase and lease options, at the City' s
discretion when new parking equipment is to be acquired by the City
directly. Equipment type and installation shall be in accordance with
standards issued by the City. 

f. Provide for the repair or replacement of all parking equipment and
appurtenances within forty ( 48) hours or in accordance with City' s
contractual terms with equipment vendor. 

g. Coordinate selection of and pay for costs associated with the selection of
ticket held devices ( TIDs) and license plate recognition technology. The
selection of such software or technology shall allow for import and export
of data from/ to the citation management database, as maintained and

operated by Parking Manager. 

h. Monitoring, ordering and stocking of expendable products for meters ( i. e. 
printer ink, printer paper, batteries etc.) and TIDs. 

i. Utilization of Enterprise Management System ( EMS) Back Office Support

System ( BOSS) Software to re -program meters, as necessary. 



j. Manage and oversee the use of any third patty programs ( i. e. Passport
Parking-- pay-by- phone) by the City to support its parking activities. 

k. Provide boots for habitual parking enforcement violations in accordance
with City policy, if program is implemented by the City. 

1. Provide for towing, as applicable. 

in. Coordinate the repair or needed maintenance of any field parking software
systems with the City' s designated vendor( s). 

n. Provide employees with identifiable badges and uniforms, as approved by
the City. All vehicles shall have appropriate identifiable marks to indicate
Parking Manager' s affiliation with the City of Pompano Beach Parking
Services, subject to City approval. 

o. Ensure enforcement personnel assigned to the contract are appropriately

trained and possess all required certifications and/ or licenses for issuing
non- moving violations. Parking Manager shall be responsible to provide
at own expense) for pre- screening background checks for all personnel to

be assigned to the City. 

p. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to the parking
enforcement program. 

q. Provide annual reporting ( within 90 days of City' s fiscal year end) to the
City describing the current state of parking enforcement activity. The
report shall, at a minimum, indicate no. of citations issued for the previous

fiscal year ( October I" through September 301h), number of enforcement

personnel writing citations, number of citations issued per staff member
writing citations and any recommendations for improvements to
operations detailing any associated costs. A copy of citation database
generated report shall be provided as part of the package, which shall

reconcile to no. of citations indicated as issued in the annual report. 

r. Provide, as part of the required annual reporting ( within 90 days of City' s
fiscal year end), an annual survey to City of neighboring cities parking
rates, at Parking Manager' s own expense. 

s. Assist and consult with the City, as necessary in any enhancement, change
or modification of its parking enforcement program. 

t. Assist in implementing general parking programs, including working with
businesses, neighborhood groups, and other organizations, as needed. 



Citation Management

a. Processing and maintaining a database of parking citations issued. 

b. Inputting citations issued within 48 hours of issuance, including those
written by Broward Sheriff' s Office (BSO) personnel, if applicable. 

c. For citations issued by Parking Manager, shall generate letters to violators
within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of citations being issued, to include
assessment of late fees, in accordance with City policy. Letter shall also
notify violators that if payment is not received in full within thirty days of
the date indicated on the letter, the obligation shall be referred to the

City' s collection agency, which shall result in the violator being obligated
for all collection fees incurred by the City to effect such. Language in
letter must be pre -approved by the City. 

d. Shall provide a phone, fax and email address to which violators may direct
inquiries. Such shall be indicated on the parking citation issued. Parking
Manager shall also coordinate requests by violators for a court date to
contest citations and coordinate such efforts with the City Attorney' s
Office. Parking Manager shall also attend enforcement court proceedings
for disputed citations and follow through with hearing officers' decisions, 
as necessary. 

e. Provide for a local office within the boundaries of the City, whereby
customers may visit to make inquiries about or appeal parking citations
issues, make citation payments ( via, cash, check or credit card) or for

general parking inquiries. Such office shall be operated Monday through
Friday, 8 a. m. to 5 p.m. 

f. For citations issued by Parking Manager, on a Quarterly basis, Parking
Manager shall generate a report of outstanding parking citations older than
ninety ( 90) days and export data to an excel file. Parking Manager shall
email a spreadsheet to the City' s Finance Director or designee showing all
relevant information for each citation. Parking Manager shall add a
collection fee of 17% ( as may be amended from time to time) to each
citation amount due once the account has been referred to the Finance

Department for formal collection action. Parking Manager' s systems shall
separately identify initial violation and penalties ( i. e. City' s late fee) and
amounts ( 17%) assessed each account placed with the collection and any
reports of revenue collected and submitted to the City' s Treasury Division
must clearly delineate such. 

g. Shall be responsible for providing citation information to the State of
Florida Division of Motor Vehicles ( the State) to allow the State to place a

hold on violators, whereby tag renewal shall be delayed if violators have



at least three ( 3) regular unpaid citations or one ( 1) unpaid handicap
citation. Parking Manager shall be responsible for establishing a process
whereby the State shall provide detailed information for violators ( i. e. 
addresses, DL# etc.) directly to Parking Manager to allow for the mailing
of letters to violators and assist in follow-up collection efforts. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for establishing an infrastructure to allow for
this two- way communication and ensuring compatibility of Parking
Manager' s system with the State' s system, to allow for this interface of

data. 

Cash Receipts Collection, Handling and Processing

a. Processing and maintaining a database of parking tickets issued to record
receivables and deferred revenue for all citations written, and cash and

revenues as receipts are processed. City staff shall be provided inquiry
access to such system. 

b. Collection of all parking citation payments at local office site and entry
into Parking Manager' s cash receipts system. Such cash receipts system
must accommodate a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining

original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted
to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt shall indicate
the parking citation no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and
nature of payment ( i. e. parking citation). Parking Manager shall be
responsible for the processing of such receipts for bank deposit with City
providing for daily pickup of bank deposits by an armed security service. 
Parking Manager shall be responsible for securing deposit bags and tickets
for City' s banking partner. Parking Manager shall submit a copy of the
bank deposit slip and a report from Parking Manager' s cash receipts
system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the City' s Treasury
Division. For non -sufficient funds ( NSF) payments made via check, the

City' s Treasury Division shall inform Parking Manager of such for update
of Parking Manager' s records. Parking Manager shall be responsible for
assessing the NSF fee ( in accordance with City policy) to the violator and
updating Parking Manager' s financial records accordingly. All reporting
to the City' s Treasury Division shall be inclusive of a cash receipts
processing report and shall be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

c. Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from parking meters. Parking
Manager shall accept these funds at its local office site, to include
facilitation of payment via credit card and process the receipts in its own

cash receipts system. Parking Manager shall be responsible for all
payment processor fees governing credit card acceptance. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for generating meter audit reports ( with the
exception of lollipop meter extractions) to accompany each extraction of



cash and coins from the meters and reconcile to the coin/ cash counts. 

Parking Manager shall be responsible for taking a physical count of cash
and coins ( and provision of a coin counter) and completing a bank deposit
slip( s) for deposit of the meter collections. City shall provide daily -armed
service pickup for physical deposit of meter collections to the bank. 
Parking Manager shall arrange for deposit and pickup of meter collections
within 48 hours of collection from meters. For special events or holidays, 

Parking Manager shall make more frequent visits to the meters for
collection of coins/ cash as such volume of activity might warrant such. 

Parking Manager shall provide for a secure safe ( combination & key, with
limited staff access) at local office site to hold meter collections pending

armed service pickup. Parking Manager shall provide a copy of the meter
audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit

report and a copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. 
Such shall be provided timely to the City' s Revenue Collections Division
via mail or email as follows: 

City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rin 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager

or

Linda.dye@copbfl. cotn with copy to
Giselle.wishinsky@copbfl.com

Parking Manager shall establish separate ledger accounts by lots/ locations
as follows ( and for any other new locations added by City): 

Municipal Pier Lot

Oceanside Lot

Beach Parking Lot
Alsdorf Lots

Street Parking Meters
Harbor Village/ N.E. I" Street

Parking Manager shall provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division for
each deposit to indicate the locations of each collection for each bank

deposit as stated above. All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division shall
be inclusive of a cash receipts processing report and must be provided
within 24 hours of processing of transactions. 

d. Administer the City' s residential parking permit program and parking
passes, as applicable. The City currently issues approximately 200
residential parking permits per year for its Oceanside and Municipal Pier
Lots. The City issues semi- annual permits at a price of $30 and annual
permits at a price of $60, based on certain qualifying criteria ( i. e. proof of



residency). Parking Manager shall be required to process and record
receipts related to this program. Such cash receipts system shall

accommodate a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining

original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted
to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt shall indicate
the parking permit no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and
nature of payment ( i. e. residential parking permit). Parking Manager shall
prepare bank deposit slips for this activity with the City providing for
daily -armed service pickup of such deposits. Parking Manger shall be
responsible for recording this activity in a dedicated system account ( i. e. 
residential parking permits) and shall submit a copy of the bank deposit
slip, a cash receipts report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s
Treasury Division. Parking Manager shall be responsible for maintaining
all applications and proof of qualification for each permit issued, in

accordance with the City' s records retention policy. 

e. Shall request refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed above be
processed through the City' s Treasury Division and Treasury Division
shall communicate such refunds to Parking Manager for update of Parking
Manager' s records and systems once refund has been processed. 

f. Shall be responsible for voiding any transactions, in accordance with
City' s established practices and must provide a reporting of such to the
City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing. 

g. Shall be responsible for establishing an online system to allow violators to
make credit card payments via a secure website ( complying with all

regulatory requirements). Parking Manager shall be responsible for
ensuring such system is PCI compliant ( providing for any system scans if
applicable) and on an annual basis must ensure submittal of PCI complaint

report to Visa/ MC by parking Manager' s designated payment processor, if
required. Parking Manager shall be responsible for the posting of these
online payments to Parking Manager' s cash receipts system. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for linking online receipts directly to the
City' s designated bank account for daily deposit and submittal of cash
receipts reports to the City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of
processing. 

h. Within thirty (30) days from City' s fiscal year end ( September 30th), shall
be responsible for providing an aging report of outstanding parking
citation receivables ( at fiscal year-end) to the City' s Finance Department. 

Garage Design/ Construction Consulting Services

a. Review pro -forma estimates of revenue and expense expectations. 



I

b. Assist in selection of PARCS ( Parking and Revenue Control Systems) equipment
needed in the pier parking garage facility to properly control monthly/contract, 
transient/ cash and validation business. 

c. Provide advice regarding most efficient lighting methodology. 

d. Estimate the proper maintenance reserve fund that should be accred to provide

for long- term structural stability. 

e. Assist in selection and placement of signs needed to properly control the parking

facility traffic flow, ingress/ egress, etc. 

f. Provide any other consulting services requested by City, on an as needed basis. 

General Requirements

a. Parking Manager (all parties to the Agreement) shall be licensed to do business in the
State of Florida and shall obtain a business tax receipt for the City and Broward
County, prior to commencement of services. 

b. Parking Manager shall staff an office within the limits of the Pompano Beach, at own
expense, to generally contain the management of the parking program, inclusive of
accepting customer inquiries, acceptance and processing of payments and issue late
notices for overdue payment of citations etc. City reserves the right to provide a
permanent location within the pier parking garage upon its completion, at which point
Parking Manager shall no longer be compensated for office rent as outlined in the
Parking Managers line item budget. 

c. Handle all customer service associated with the parking program. 

d. Provide weekly, monthly and annual reports as may be required by the City. 

c. Propose the purchase of equipment, data software and information systems relating to
and associated with the day- to- day operations of the parking management program to
enhance operating efficiency, with prior approval of the City. All purchases shall be
in accordance with City policies and procedures. All program specific products

purchased by the Parking Manager with City funds, outside the scope of the agreed
upon compensation under this Agreement shall upon termination of the Contract

remain the property of the City. 

f. Coordinate the implementation of any changes in the City' s parking rates or policies. 

g. Provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of parking
Manager' s system of internal controls to be performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Repoli on Controls at a
Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a report shall



be in accordance with the requirements of Statement on Standards for Attestation

Engagements No. 16, as issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. 

h. Coordinate special City events with City staff. 

Within 6 months of the execution of this Agreement, meet with City and CRA staff
and review current parking operations and provide a report to the City Manager with
observations and recommendations etc. May include new technologies, payment
acceptance methods, additional meter locations, garage locations, marketing, signage, 
experience/suggestions for a 100% cashless system etc. 

j. Any reasonably related services upon request. 

Additional Services as Elected by City of Pompano Beach

a. Parking Manager recognizes that City has agreed to parking enforcement being
provided for shifts covering the period from 7 a. m. to 11 p. m., Citywide, seven
days/ week. Parking Manager understands that should City require additional
enforcement periods, such shall be provided by Parking Manager on an as -needed
basis ( i. e. special events) for a flat hourly rate of $18. 

b. Parking Manager agrees to provide for booting equipment ( one boot) if such a
program is implemented by the City. The cost of this boot shall be depreciated over
the remaining term of the contract at the point the boot is purchased. 



ATTACHMENT B

Agreement for Parking Management Services
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Operating Assumptions: Capital

Enforcement Vehicle $ 20,000

Collection Van 20,000

Office Furniture 2, 000

Computer 3,000

Enforcement Equip. 51, 925

Coln Counter 5, 000

Camara / DVR 10, 000

Office Build Out 4, 000

Safe 1, 500

117, 425 Qa 8% over 36 months = $ 3, 679.67 per month x 12 months= 44, 156 Depreciation
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Attachment B ( Fees) - Pier Garage Design/ Construction Consulting Services

Parking Manager will provide consulting services related to the design/ construction of
the Pier Parking Garage at a rate of $ 150 per hour, plus reasonable out of pocket
expenses. Out of pocket expenses may include postage, copying, any travel required to
review the site in person Consulting fees, inclusive of out of pocket expenses shall not
exceed $ 10, 000. 
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Florida' s Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

T-43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

RFP OPENING: MAY 27, 2014 2: 00 P. M. 

PURCHASING OFFICE

1190 N. E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C ( Front) 

POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060



April 28, 2014

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

T- 43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

The City is seeking proposals from qualified firms to provide Parking Operations and
Management services to the City of Pompano Beach, FL. 

The City will receive sealed proposals until 2: 00 p. m. ( local), May 27, 2014, in the City' s
Purchasing Office, 1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. 
E- mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable. 

Introduction

On October 1, 2013, the City of Pompano Beach created a separate Parking Enterprise Fund
the Parking Fund) for the purpose of managing and operating the City' s parking assets in a

prudent and economically viable manner and to provide transparency of its operations. The
City' s core goal is to provide a seamless, efficient, customer -friendly, progressive and cost- 
effective parking system for its stakeholders. The City has undertaken significant master
planning efforts and is now investing in its infrastructure in ways that will result in the need for
future construction of numerous parking garages and additional metered parking. To maximize
the City' s return on its investment, the City is hereby soliciting the services of professional
parking management firms to operate its system. 

The City currently has a total of 1, 355 parking spaces ( includes Harbor Village lot & N. E. 16' 
Street spaces) dispersed in three ( 3) municipal parking lots ( Pier, Oceanside & Alsdorf) and two

2) leased lots, with the remainder of spaces encompassing on -street parking. The City has a
total of 20 multi -space pay meters and 67 individual ( lollipop) meters. The multi -space pay
meters, which are supplied by Digital Payment Technologies, currently accept credit cards, 
cash and coins. During fiscal year 2013, the City generated approximately $ 222K in parking
citations ( 5, 454 citations) revenue and approximately $ 1 M in parking revenues. The Current
Parking Fund has an annual budget of $ 1. 2 million. 

The multi -space pay meters ( Luke I and Luke II) are remotely managed by Enterprise
Management System ( EMS) software, which allows both pay station configuration and the
collection of transaction data to create financial management reports. EMS is a real time web

based service utilized by Digital Payment Technologies ( current multi -space pay meter vendor) 
to provide information on the status of parking spaces and to provide information for auditing
and revenue reporting. Additionally, the pay stations are managed offline and online with Back
Office Support System Software ( BOSS) to configure all operating aspects for the meters ( e. g. 
adding meters to the network, language settings for interface menus, establishing/ adjusting
parking fees, and credit card processing). 

Parking Enforcement is currently provided through a Policing Services agreement with the
Broward Sheriff' s Office ( BSO). The City is exploring an opportunity to include provision of
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these services by Proposers. Parking operations currently falls under the direction of the Public
Works Department of the City. 

Attached to this document is Attachment A & Attachment B, which provides an inventory of
parking meters with current locations and a map indicating geographic location of meters in the
City, respectively. Proposers are required to independently verify this inventory as part of their
due diligence. The City makes no representations as to the accuracy of this inventory. 

The City is currently exploring the construction of a 500 space pier parking garage and over the
next years will also be contemplating the construction of several other parking garages
throughout the City. 

1. Scope Of Services

Proposers or its employees must have at least three ( 3) years of experience managing
municipal parking operations and must be able to service an office within the City of
Pompano Beach. Proposers must have on its staff at least one ( 1) senior level manager

that possesses on -street, parking lots and parking garage management experience, 
inclusive of parking enforcement experience. 

The successful Proposer shall/ may be responsible for providing, at a minimum, the
following services: 

Meter Enforcement

a. Patrol of and enforcement for single- space, multi -space meters and parking lots, 
inclusive of issuance of parking citations for all parking violations throughout the
City, in accordance with City ordinance. Proposer would be responsible for

providing sufficient personnel to issue parking violation citations at a level of
enforcement specified by the City. Proposer must submit separate pricing for
this enforcement activity in its proposals. Proposer must be capable of

providing this service seven days a week, 24 hours a day, and Proposers pricing
must reflect such. 

b. Provide for all support vehicles, office and computer equipment as required to

perform the day-to- day operations of the parking program. Proposers are

responsible for any Internet service connections fees, as a result of any remote
access to the City' s network. Proposers, as part of their response, must include
an itemization of anticipated support vehicles needed per the scope of services

being solicited. Proposers would be responsible for all associated maintenance
costs. 

c. Coordination of the installation and maintenance of parking meters, pay stations
and change machines. The Proposer shall provide price quotes for both

purchase and lease options, at the City' s discretion when new parking equipment
is to be acquired by the City directly. Equipment type and installation shall be in
accordance with standards issued by the City. Requests for the repair of all
parking equipment and appurtenances shall be requested, within twenty- four
24) hours of Proposer becoming aware of defects, from the City' s provider and

must be repaired or replace within forty-eight ( 48) hours or in accordance with
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provider contractual terms. All purchases must conform to the City' s purchasing
policies and procedures. 

d. Currently, the City' s citation issuance process utilizes ticket books and is a highly
manual process, which involves the manual input of citations into the City' s
citations database. It is the City' s intention to utilize hand held ticket issuance
devices (" TIDs") to automate this process. As part of response to proposal, 

Proposer must provide recommendations ( inclusive of prices) for hand held

ticket issuance devices (" TID"), which allows enforcement personnel to conduct

enforcement on tablets or similar devices. The TID should be user-friendly and
include software that allows enforcement personnel to take pictures to support

issuance of parking violations and allow for attachable print devices. It is

expected that TID should be compatible with the City's current software
application provider, SunGard HTE, to allow for the download of citation

information from SunGard' s citation database system to the TIDs and upload

from the TIDs to SunGard. This will allow for automation of citation input and

tracking identifying violators with multiple violations outstanding. Proposer' s bid
price should be reflected of this planned automation of the process. 

e. Monitoring, ordering and stocking of expendable products for meters ( i. e. printer
ink and printer paper). Proposers will have access to Parking Enterprise Budget
for such expenses and must submit requests for processing payments via the
City' s normal purchasing and accounts payable process. 

f. Utilization of Enterprise Management System ( EMS) Back Office Support

System ( BOSS) Software to re -program meters, as necessary. 

g. Manage and oversee the use of any third party programs ( i. e. Passport Parking -- 
pay -by -phone) by the City to support its parking activities. 

h. Provide boots for habitual parking enforcement violations. Note: the City has not
enacted this policy as of yet, but may contemplate in the near term. Proposer
should provide a narrative as to their experience with the use of such devices

and at what point other clients have placed boots on vehicles. 

i. Provide for towing, as applicable. The cost for this component of the contract
should be separately identifiable. 

j. Coordinating the repair or needed maintenance of any field parking software
systems with the City's designated vendor(s). 

k. Provide employees with identifiable badges and uniforms, as approved by the
City. All vehicles must also have appropriate identifiable marks to indicate

Proposer' s affiliation with the City of Pompano Beach Parking Services, subject
to City approval. As part of proposal, Proposers must provide color pictures of
what possible uniforms and vehicle decals might look like with the City' s logo
Florida' s Warmest Welcome). 

I. Enforcement personnel assigned to the contract should be appropriately trained
and possess all required certifications and/ or licenses for issuing non- moving
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violations. It is further Proposer's responsibility ( at own expense) to provide for
pre- screening background checks for all personnel to be assigned to the City. 

m. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to the parking program. 

Provide annual reporting (within 90 days of fiscal year end) to the City describing
the current state of parking enforcement activity. The report should, at a

minimum, indicate no. of citations issued for the previous fiscal year (October 1" 
through September 30`"), no. of enforcement personnel writing citations, no. of

citations issued per staff member writing citations and any recommendations for
improvements to operations detailing any associated costs. As part of proposal, 
proposer must provide any recommended benchmark or national standard for
expected no. of citations to be written monthly or annually per citation personnel
etc., based on the size/ structure of the City's parking space program. Proposer
must also describe any internal mechanism utilized by their management staff to
monitor the performance of enforcement personnel, in this regard. A copy of
citation database generated report must be provided as part of the package, 

which should reconcile to no. of citations indicated as issued in the annual report. 

o. Provide, as part of the required annual reporting, an annual survey to City of
neighboring cities parking rates, at Proposer' s own expense. 

p. Assistance and consultation with the City, as necessary in any enhancement, 
change or modification of its parking enforcement program. 

q. Assistance in implementing parking programs, including working with
businesses, neighborhood groups, and other organizations, as needed. 

Citation Management

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued. 

b. Inputting citations issued within 48 hours of issuance, including those written by
BSO personnel. 

c. Generate letters to violators within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of violation being
issued, to include assessment of late fees. 

Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to citations. Proposer must
provide a phone, fax and email address to which violators may direct inquiries. 
Such must be indicated on the parking citation issued. Proposer must also
coordinate requests by violators for a court date to contest citations and
coordinate such efforts with the City Attorney' s Office. Also, attend enforcement
court proceedings for disputed citations and follow through with hearing officers' 
decisions, as necessary. 

City will provide for a local office within the boundaries of the City whereby
customers may visit to make inquiries about or appeal parking citations issues or
for general parking inquiries. 
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f. Quarterly, coordinate with the City's Information Technology Department, to
generate a report of outstanding parking citations older than ninety ( 90) days. 
Export information to excel and email to the City' s Finance Department for
referral to the City' s outside collection agency. Note: The City' s system
automatically adds a collection fee ( i. e. 17%) to each citation amount due once

this process has been activated. If Proposer would be utilizing its own
accounting systems for input of citations and processing cash receipts, Proposer
would be responsible for generating a query of parking citations outstanding for
ninety ( 90) days or greater, exporting detailed information for each citation to
excel and submitting such report to the City' s Finance Department for referral to
the outside collection agency. Once Finance Department forwards accounts to

collections. Proposer would be notified and must add collection fee to

outstanding balance for each violator' s account to reflect new amount due. As an
example, if violator owes $47 initially, a 17% collection fee would require amount
owed to be adjusted to $ 54.99. Proposer's systems must be able to separately
identify initial violation and penalties collected from any collection fee amounts
collected. 

Cash Receipts Collection, Handling and Processing

Proposers must provide pricing for the two options listed below: 

Option 1: City Systems Utilized for Processinq & Recording of Transactions

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing the City' s current citation management system, 
a component of SunGard HTE. Selected vendor would be granted remote

access to the City' s system. 

I Proposer would be responsible for daily collection and delivery of cash and coins
extracted from parking meters to the City' s Treasury Division located at City Hall. 
Proposer would be responsible for delivery of cash and coins to the Treasury
Division at least three ( 3) days a week ( weekday -every other day). However, for
special events or holidays, proposer shall make more frequent deliveries. For

special events or holidays falling on the weekends, whereby it may be necessary
to empty the meters on a weekend, Proposer would be responsible for
maintaining coins/ cash in a safe ( combination & key, with limited staff access) at
Proposer' s local office until such time as delivery to City Hall is possible, during
in normal operating hours. Meter generated audit reports must accompany
collections ( with the exception of lollipop extractions) from pay by space meters
and provided to Treasury for reconciliation to the actual collections. 

c. Parking citation payments will be made at the City' s Treasury Division, currently
located on the 1st Floor of City Hall, and processed through the City' s cash
receipts system. 
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Option 2: Proposer Systems Utilized for Processing & Initial Recording of

Transactions

Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing its own database management system and to
record receivables and deferred revenue for all citations written, and cash and

revenues as receipts are processed. City staff must be provided inquiry access
to such system. 

b. Proposers would be responsible for the collection of all parking citation payments
at its local office site and entry into Proposer' s own cash receipts system. Such
cash receipts system must accommodate a triple copy receipts system with
customer obtaining original, Proposer maintaining a copy and a copy being
remitted to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt should

indicate the parking citation no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and
nature of payment ( i. e. parking citation). Proposer would be responsible for the

processing of such receipts for bank deposit with City providing for daily pickup
of bank deposits by an armed security service. Proposer would be required to
submit a copy of the bank deposit slip and a report from Proposers cash receipts
system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the City' s Treasury
Division. For non -sufficient funds ( NSF) payments made via check, the City's
Treasury Division will inform Proposer of such for update of provider's records. 
Proposer would be responsible for assessing the NSF fee ( in accordance with
City policy) to the violator and updating Proposer' s financial records accordingly. 
All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive of a cash receipts
processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

c. Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from parking meters. Under this
Option, Proposer would accept these funds at its local office site and process the

receipts in its own cash receipts system. Proposers would be responsible for

generating meter audit reports ( with the exception of lollipop meter extractions) 
to accompany each extraction of cash and coins from the meters and reconcile
to the coin/ cash counts. Proposers would be responsible for taking a physical
count of cash and coins ( a coin counter would be necessary) and completing a
bank deposit slip( s) for deposit of the meter collections. City would provide daily - 
armed service pickup for physical deposit of meter collections to the bank. 
Proposer must arrange for deposit and pickup of meter collections within 48
hours of collection from meters. For special events or holidays, proposer shall

make more frequent visits to the meters for collection of coins/cash as such

volume of activity might warrant such. Proposer must provide for a secure safe
combination & key, with limited staff access) at local office site to hold meter

collections pending armed service pickup. Proposer must provide a copy of the
meter audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit report

and a copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. Such must be
provided timely to the City' s Revenue Collections Division via mail or email as
follows: 
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City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rm 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager

or

Linda. dve5copbf1.com with copy to
Giselle. wishinskvna.copbfl. com

Separate ledger accounts would need to be established by lots/ locations as follows: 

Municipal Pier Lot

Oceanside Lot

Beach Parking Lot
Alsdorf Lots

Street Parking Meters
Harbor Village/ N. E. 1s` Street

Proposer would be required to provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division for
each deposit to indicate the locations of each collection for each bank deposit as

stated above. All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive of a
cash receipts processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing
of transactions. 

a. Proposer would be responsible for administering the City' s residential
parking permit program. The City currently issues approximately 200
residential parking permits per year for its Oceanside and Municipal Pier
Lots. The City issues semi- annual permits at a price of $ 30 and annual
permits at a price of $60, based on certain qualifying criteria ( i. e. proof of
residency). Proposer would be required to process and record receipts

related to this program. Such cash receipts system must accommodate

a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining original, Proposer
maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted to the City' s Treasury
Division. At a minimum, such receipt should indicate the parking permit
no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and nature of payment

i. e. residential parking permit). Proposer would prepare bank deposit

slips for this activity and the City would provide for daily -armed service
pickup of such deposits. Proposer would be responsible for recording
this activity in a dedicated system account ( i. e. residential parking
permits) and must submit a copy of the bank deposit slip, a cash receipts
report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s Treasury Division. 
Proposer would be responsible for maintaining all applications and proof
of qualification for each permit issued, in accordance with the City's
records retention policy. 

b. Any request for refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed
above must be handled by the City's Treasury Division and
communicated to Proposer for update of Proposer' s records and

systems. 
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c. Proposers would be responsible for voiding any transactions, in
accordance with City' s established practices and must provide a reporting
of such to the City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing. 

Proposer would be responsible for establishing an online system to allow
violators to make credit/debit card payments via a secure website

complying with all regulatory requirements). Proposer would be

responsible for ensuring such system is PCI compliant and on an annual
basis must submit report to Visa/ MC as such. Proposer would be

responsible for the posting of these online payments to Proposer' s cash
receipts system. Proposer would be responsible for linking online
receipts directly to the City' s designated bank account for daily deposit
and submittal of cash receipts reports to the City' s Treasury Division
within 24 hours of processing. 

e. Should the City elect Option 2, Proposer would be responsible for having
an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of its system
of internal controls performed annually, by a certified independent
accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a
Service Organization) to the City's Finance Director or designee. Such a
report will be in accordance with the requirements of Statement on

Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

Currently, the City' s Information Technology Department ( IT) provides
citation information to the State of Florida Division of Motor Vehicles ( the

State) to allow the State to place a hold on violators, whereby tag renewal
will be delayed if violators have at least three ( 3) regular unpaid citations

or one ( 1) unpaid handicap citation. The State also provides detailed
information for violators ( i. e. addresses, DL# etc.) directly to the City to
allow for the mailing of letters to violators and assist in follow- up
collection efforts. Should Proposer elect Option 2, Proposer would be

responsible for establishing an infrastructure to allow for this two-way
communication and ensuring compatibility of Proposer's system with the
State' s system, to allow for this interface of data. 

g. Within thirty ( 30) days from City' s fiscal year end ( September 30th), 
Proposer would be responsible for providing an aging report of
outstanding parking citation receivables ( at fiscal year-end) to the City' s
Finance Department. 

General Requirements

a. Proposer ( all parties to the Agreement) must be licensed to do business

in the State of Florida and must obtain a business tax receipt for the City
and Broward County, prior to commencement of services. 

b. Proposer must staff a temporary office within the limits of the Pompano
Beach, to be provided by the City, to generally contain the management
of the parking program, inclusive of accepting customer inquiries, 
acceptance and processing of payments ( assumes City elects Option 2) 
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and issue late notices for overdue payment of citations etc. The intent of

the City is to eventually provide a permanent location within the pier
parking garage upon its completion and the City will provide a temporary
site for the temporary office within reasonable proximity to the beach/pier
area immediately, at City' s expense. It is Proposers responsibility to
provide for all costs associated with staffing and operating the location
within Proposer' s budgeted costs. 

c. Handle all customer service associated with the parking program. 

d. It is anticipated that the City will be designing and constructing a 500 - 
space pier parking garage within the next 1. 5 to 2 years. Proposers are
required to propose a tentative separate price structure to contemplate

the management of the garage, to include provision of valet parking
approximately 100 spaces in pier garage) for beach parking and future

restaurant locations in the Pier Redevelopment area. Such proposed

pricing structure should present a line item detail of all costs to be
covered in proposers budget and should be specific as to what will be

included in proposers budget, as well as what would be excluded or

Proposers may indicate as " optional" services. Proposers management
structure should be discussed. Proposer must discuss client references

name of client, contact name, title, phone, email) for which similar

services have been provided within the past three ( 3) years, including, but
not be limited to contractual arrangement for compensation

e. Provide weekly, monthly and annual reports as may be required by the
City. 

f. The Proposer may propose the purchase of equipment, data software
and information systems relating to and associated with the day-to- day
operations of the parking management program to enhance operating
efficiency, with prior approval of the City. All purchases must be in
accordance with City policies and procedures. All program specific

products purchased by the Proposer on behalf of the City shall upon
termination of the Contract remain the property of the City. 

g. Coordinate the implementation of any changes in the City' s parking rates
or policies. 

h. Provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of
Proposer' s system of internal controls performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on
Controls at a Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or
designee. Such a report will be in accordance with the requirements of

Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued

by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

i. As part of Proposal, Proposer must submit, at a minimum, compiled

financial statements to indicate financial capacity to provide the services
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herein, without interruption. Proposer may choose to submit reviewed or
audited financials instead. 

j. Coordinate special City events with City staff. 

k. Within 6 months of hire, meet with City and CRA staff and review current
parking operations and provide a report to the City Manager with
observations and recommendations etc. May include new technologies, 
payment acceptance methods, additional meter locations, garage

locations, marketing, signage, experience/suggestions for a 100% 
cashless system etc. 

Any reasonably related services upon request. 

2. Term of Contract

The City anticipates awarding a Service Provider Agreement for a term of three ( 3) 
years with an option for one ( 1) additional term of two ( 2) years, for a possible total of

five ( 5) years. Hourly rates and all other negotiated expenses will remain in effect
throughout the duration of the contract term, including the optional renewal term, unless
mutually agreed upon by both parties. Additional services and responsibilities may be
added to this agreement as agreed upon by both parties. 

3. Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business
Enterprise ( SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business

Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano
Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises
SBE' s) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. 

The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City' s voluntary program, is taken from
the State of Florida Statute 288.703( 1). 

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an

independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer
permanent full- time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of

not more than $ 5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business
Administration 8( a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the $ 5 million net

worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments. 

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate
Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business

Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the
State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, 
and other agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations
from the City' s website www. pompanobeachfl. aov. Please indicate in your response if
your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise. 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages small business participation in all of its
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4. 

5. 

procurements. 

Local Business Program

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local
Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach
businesses in the City' s procurement process. 

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the
City' s website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by
the bid specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, 
is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: 

http:// pompanobeachf l. gov/ pages/ department directory/ development services/ business

tax receipt division/ pdfs/ FAQ sheet BTR. pdf or you may contact Susan Kores at the
Pompano Beach Community Redevelopment Agency Business Resource Center at
954) 586- 1199 or at susanRiedfl. com. 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages Local Business participation in all of its
procurements. Proposers interested in local business participation are

encouraged as part of their proposal package to discuss planned efforts in this

respect. 

Required Proposal Submittal

Submission/Format Requirements

Submit one ( 1) original unbound and five ( 5) bound copies of the proposal. All copies

will be on 8 '/ 3" x 11" plain white paper, typed, and signed by an authorized
representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers
must submit one ( 1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe
or Microsoft Word format ( or other format approved by the City). Failure to adhere to

the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non- 
responsive. 

Information to be included in the proposal: In order to maintain comparability and
expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner
specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections: 

Title page: 

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer' s firm, address, 
telephone number, name of contact person and the date. 

Table of Contents: 

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page. 

Letter of Transmittal: 

Briefly state the Proposer's understanding of the project and express a positive
commitment to provide the services described herein. State the name( s) of the

person( s) who will be authorized to make representations for the Proposer, their title(s), 
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office and E- mail addresses and telephone numbers. Please limit this section to two

pages. 

Scope of Services: 

For each item listed under scope of services, proposers are required to provide a

narrative discussing each respective area, to include, but not be limited to: 

a. Discussion of experience and ability to manage a 500 space parking garage, to
include any experience in operating a valet service. Discussion should include

proposed contract structure in terms of Proposer compensation and any general
revenue split arrangements generally contemplated. May also include discussion of
how the garage might be manned or not, based on entry and exit points, pay meters
etc. Should also include Proposer' s experience with other client references as

discussed above. 

b. Discussion of number of personnel anticipated to be assigned to the contract, to

include title and duties, at a minimum. 

c. Discussion of vehicles to be assigned to the contract, type, description etc. 

d. Discussion of benchmarks and/ or national standards against with performance of

parking operations may be measured, to include parking enforcement activity. 
e. Discussion of any proposed general improvements already observed per Proposer' s

own due diligence in preparing proposal. 
f. Discussion of experience with placing boots on parking violators vehicles. 
g. Discussion of hand held ticket devices and recommendations of specific TIDs. 
h. Discussion of any parking program analysis reports prepared for previous clients. 

Proposer must include an example ( s) in proposal submittal. 

i. Discussion of proposed monitoring mechanisms for monitoring the performance of
personnel, as it relates to administration of the parking enforcement function. 

j. Discussion of cash receipts processing and recording capacity and internal controls
in place to ensure accurate and complete collection, recording and reconciliation of
transactions. In addition, discuss planned segregation of duties for collection, 

recording, cashier drawer balancing procedures ( to include reconciliation of opening
cash drawer amount, daily receipts and cash receipts system report reconciliation) a, 
deposit and reconciliation of all parking related revenues, should the City elect
Option 2 above. 

k. Discussion of the City' s current parking rate structure of $ 1. 25 per hour ( unadjusted
for peak days/ hours/ locations) and any recommendations based on prior clients or
general industry practice. City also currently has a boat launch and charges $ 10 for
a 24- hour period to park a boat trailer. 

I. Discussion of planned collection efforts to maximize collections on outstanding
parking citations. Proposers should incorporate specific experience/ success in this
area with other client references to include client name, contact name, title, phone, 

email, etc, and approximate value or receivables managed, annual collections and

annual collection rate for client' s most recent fiscal year. 

m. Discussion on any proposed efforts to enhance collections on parking citations
written for out of state violators. 

n. Discussion of transition plan, inclusive of detailed tasks to be completed, and

planned coordination effort with BSO, the City' s current parking enforcement
partner. 

o. Discussion of anticipated timeframe from contract award to being fully operational. 
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Fees & Costs: 

Proposer must provide a line item budget for fees for all contract years, including any
optional renewal periods. In narrative, please discuss basis for each annual escalator, if
applicable ( i. e. specific consumer price index). 

Include a concise narrative with sufficient detail indicating the proposed approach to
providing the required services, including a description of the types and qualities of
service that would be provided. Provide a cost for each of the major services provided

along with the estimated number of expected work hours for each qualified staff. 
Proposer must itemize all costs to complete all necessary tasks as described under
Scope of Services. Miscellaneous expenses should be adequately described. Proposer
must be clear as what is included in price proposal, what is excluded and what might be
optional. 

References: 

Submit a client reference list, including name of contact, firm and/ or governmental
entity, address, telephone number and type of service provided to each reference. At
least Three ( 3) references should be for clients within Broward, Dade, or Palm Beach
Counties if applicable, with an emphasis on event or recreational type of facilities with

more than 1, 000 parking spaces. 

Litigation: 

Disclose any litigation within the past five ( 5) years arising out your firm' s performance. 

City Forms: 
The RFP Proposal Signature Page must be completed, signed and returned. Proposer

should return all RFP pages, initialed where indicated. 

6. Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary
for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect
at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried
or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to
determine the most qualified Proposer. 

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of

insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved
by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager. 

The following insurance coverage shall be required. 

a. Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as
required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company ( number
of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control

and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the
course of their employment. 

b. Liability Insurance
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1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability
Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract. 

2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance
and indicated minimum policy limits. 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

each

ype of Insurance occurrence aggregate

GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE /$ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis

XX comprehensive form

XX premises - operations

explosion & collapse

hazard

underground hazard

XX products/ completed

operations hazard

XX contractual insurance

XX broad form property
damage

XX independent contractors

XX personal injury

bodily injury

property damage

bodily injury and
property damage
combined

personal injury

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE / $ 1, 000,000

AGGREGATE

XX comprehensive form

XX owned

XX hired

XX non -owned

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form

EXCESS LIABILITY

umbrella form

bodily injury
each person) 

bodily injury
each accident) 

property damage

bodily injury and
property damage
combined

Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

bodily injury and
property damage
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other than umbrella combined $ 2, 000,000. 

XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY $ 1, 000,000. 

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

2, 000, 000. 

1, 000, 000. 

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City
thirty (30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance
required by the provisions set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award
of contract. 

7. Selection/ Evaluation Process

A Selection/ Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm(s). 

The Selection/ Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission. 

Proposals will be evaluated using the following criteria. 

Criteria Point Range

A. Experience and Expertise 0- 35

Previous related work experience and qualifications of firm and

personnel. Demonstrates a clear understanding of scope of work and
other technical or legal issues related to the project. 

B. References 0- 5

History and performance of firm/project team on similar projects. 
References and recommendations from previous clients. 

C. Resources and Methodology 0- 15

Adequacy of amount of quality resources assigned to the project. 
Overall approach to project. Consideration of services provided and

approach to meeting goals and deadlines. 

D. Location of Regional Office 0- 5

Proximity to Pompano Beach Office location. 

E. Cost 0-40

Including the proposed mark up ( indicate what benefits are included
and amount of the mark up) for field staff, costs for management and
the proposed fee structure. 

Total 0. 100

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short- list
Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short- listed Proposers
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following presentations ( if deemed necessary) with a score of " 1" assigned to the short- 
listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee. 

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm' s capability to provide
the services required for the Committee' s review for short listing purposes. After an
initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss
the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be
assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that
the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in
further consideration of the submittal. 

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City
Commission ( for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms
deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms
respond to the RFP, the list will contain the ranking of all responses. 

The City Commission has the authority to ( including, but not limited to); approve the
recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re -advertise the

solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/ or request oral presentations and

determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally
presented to the City Commission. 

8. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all
of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or
expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether
direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties
may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be
liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or
property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its
officers, agents or employees. 

9. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, 
receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the

approval of the City' s Internal Auditor. Recommendation for changes, additions, or
deletions by the City' s Internal Auditor must be complied with by the selected firm. The
City' s Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and
examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The
selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of

the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under

the contract. 

10. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a
result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which
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are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on
behalf of the City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in
writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms. 

11. No Discrimination

there shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in

the operations conducted under any contract with the City. 

12. Independent Contractor

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of

this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm
and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the
City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, 
employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures
applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm. 

13. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, 
Proposer' s staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be
required. 

14. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RFP shall include, but not be limited to the following
terms: 

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RFP document, together
with the successful Proposer' s proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of
Pompano Beach City Attorney. 

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit
arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct

of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the
contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of
Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney' s fees, and court costs incurred in defending
such claim, cause of action or lawsuit. 

15. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RFP, or of
any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing
and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver
or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or
litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or
obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly
executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be
waived except by a duly executed writing. 
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16. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RFP shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, 

successors and assigns. 

17. Termination

The contract resulting from this RFP may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach
without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty ( 60) days prior written notice. 

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP for a period of thirty ( 30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the
non -defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon
delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing
rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may
have. 

18. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal

and state laws, rules and regulations. 

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RFP
shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified
and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees

to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, 
license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and
regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will

maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees
will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by
applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. 
Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of
contract. 

19. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RFP must be valid for a period no less than

ninety ( 90) days from the closing date of this solicitation. 

20. RFP Conditions and Provisions

The completed and signed proposal ( together with all required attachments) must be

returned to City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by
submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements
and instructions of this RFP as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting
materials submitted will become the property of the City. 
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Any alteration, erasure, or interlineations by the Proposer in this RFP shall constitute
cause for rejection. Exceptions or deviations to this proposal may not be added after
the submittal date. 

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RFP. Failure to do

so may result in disqualification of the proposal. 

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RFP, or reject all proposals, if in
its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so. 

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to
reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is

determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so. 

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of
proposals or for any work performed in connection therein. 

21. Standard Provisions

a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement
will be in Broward County, Florida. 

b. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer
must disclose if any City employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee of the firm. If any City employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County
Supervisor of Elections pursuant to § 112. 313, Florida Statutes. 

C. Druq Free Workplace

The selected firm( s) will be required to verify they will operate a " Drug Free
Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087. 

d. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a
conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to
provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a
contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or
public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, 
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or
consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business
with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida
Statute, Section 287. 017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from

the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
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e. Patent Fees, Royalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, 
device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected
Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and
all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, 
device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work

agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, 
royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any
infringement at any time during or after completion of the work. 

f. Permits

The selected Proposer shall be responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses, 
certifications, etc., required by federal, state, county, and municipal laws, 
regulations, codes, and ordinances for the performance of the work required in

these specifications and to conform to the requirements of said legislation. 

g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm( s) will be familiar with all federal, state and local

laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to
this RFP. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from
responsibility. 

h. Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised
deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General
Services Department, 1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, 
Florida 33060. 

I. Composition Of Project Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the
proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless

otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to
same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or
personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the

qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement(s) is submitted to and

approved by the City in writing. 

j. Variances

While the City allows Proposers to take variances to the RFP terms, conditions, 
and specifications, the material nature, number, and extent of variances taken

will be considered in determining proposal responsiveness and in allocating
proposal evaluation points. 
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k. Invoicing/ Payment

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P. O. 
Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida

Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a

proper invoice. 

I. Public Records

1. The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida' s Public Records
Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be
required by the City in order to perform the service; 

b. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms

and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that
does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise

provided by law; 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and

exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as

authorized by law; and

d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, 
at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon

termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that
are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically
must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the
information technology systems of the agency. 

2. The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article
shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall
enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein. 

22. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RFP are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 
1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C ( Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax ( 954) 
786- 4168, or email purchasing( ocopbfl. com. All questions must include the inquiring
firm' s name, address, telephone number and RFP name and number. Questions must

be received at least seven ( 7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. 
Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any
addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City' s website, and it is
the Proposer' s responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the
solicitation. 

23. Addenda
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rhe issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, 
clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this
solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it
shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact
the City Purchasing Office at ( 954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issued and
to make such addenda a part of their proposal. 
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PROPOSAL SIGNATURE PAGE

RFP T-43- 13, MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

To: The City of Pompano Beach, Florida

The below signed hereby agrees to furnish the proposed services under the terms stated
subject to all instructions, terms, conditions, specifications, addenda, legal advertisement, and

conditions contained in the RFP. I have read the RFP and all attachments, including the
specifications, and fully understand what is required. By submitting this signed proposal, I will
accept a contract if approved by the City and such acceptance covers all terms, conditions, and
specifications of this proposal. 

Proposal submitted by: 

Name ( printed) 

Company ( Legal Registered) 

Federal Tax Identification Number

Address

City/State/ Zip

Telephone No, 

Signature

Title

Fax No. 

Date

Addendum Acknowledgment - Proposer acknowledges that the following addenda have been
received and are included in his/ her proposal: 

Addendum No. Date Issued
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ATTACHMENT" A" 

Machine Serial Numbers

Pier, Spaces 001 to 323

Machine 1 NE

Machine 2 NW

Machine 3 SW

Machine 4 SE

Oceanside

Machine 7 West Side

Machine 8 East Side

Parcel A, Spaces2001 - 2126

SW Corner Temp Lot
Temp Lot East Side, North
Temp Lot East Side, South
Briny Pub Corner
PB Blvd., Spaces 1001 - 1122

North of Pier 1

North of Pier 2

North of Pier 3

South of Pier 1

South of Pier 2

South of Pier 3

South of Pier 4

16th Street, Spaces 800 - 827

Alsdorf

North

South

Does not yet include Harbor Village/ N. E. 1st Street

300009420069

300009420070

300009420071

300009420074

300010270008

300010270010

500012360986

500012360979

500012360978

500012360983

500012360981

500012360980

500012360977

500012360984

500012360987

500012360982

500012360985

300009420073

300010270009

300010270011
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ATTACHMENT "B" 

RFP T- 43- 14 Page 25 Initial

rarrerng meter " ucauuriu cu rc mcvlacu

Awl. Dr

y 18if St__.... Nt
6" l _ o, 

NE. 16" Sl- 

It1aC ParM KE _151h Si- t

NE 14N -S1
r Ii 1va.NSMH9HnI

NE 131h at

CountClub lem
NSE.. t2Ut at

NE -tIN 54

1 ING 5112th 84. WE 10th

NE SIh at

NE. i I lb St NE a" Ot

SNE Slh St-- 

NE. MC1I'- 

N ich 8l S WE Zlh._PI
NE Zm 9t

NE 91h I..NE

tsthI
Mlzl cvtl llnben 1 tEGENO

l$ Eyfi Lltf _...___ 

I

l 1
MA

V Vii. 

Ii
4` 

4 a• s n

r

All

I l

I j! 

SE1iM 51

irn, ; Alnat31i1lfFiwnY

IEiEf0ili 9t
I

i

SE T+.n: St

5E - 12th , S} I ' 1[ n0NWY1 M{ hb.  
1__ 

RFP T- 43- 14 Page 25 Initial



ATTACHMENT D

PARKING MANAGER' S BID RESPONSE

wwwpompanobeachfl. gov/ denisonparkinginc
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DENISON
PARKING

City of Pompano Beach
Request for Proposals

T-43- 14

Management of Parking Operations

Respectfully submitted by: 

Denison Parking, Inc. 
36 S. Pennsylvania Street, Suite 200

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Mark Pryor

Office: (317) 655-3121
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DENISON
PARKING

June 6, 2014

City of Pompano Beach
c/ o Purchasing Office
1190 N. E. Sd Avenue, Building C
Pompano Beach, FL, 33060

To Whom It May Concern: 

We are pleased to participate in the RFP process for the management of the City of Pompano
Beach Parking Operations. We believe there are real economies to be gained by aggregating
the management of these locations under one operational umbrella. Denison Parking, Inc. is an
Indiana based parking company with over 80 years of experience and is well suited to assume
this responsibility. We are excited about the possibilities and look forward to discussing our
proposal in greater detail. 

We've sought to provide all information that is required of the respondents in the material

immediately following. While all of this information is important I wanted to take this opportunity
to emphasize several points that warrant special consideration. 

Management Assessment and Quality — Denison has a great reputation for honesty, 
integrity, delivery of great operational quality, expertise and a concern for the profitability of
the parking facilities we own and others we manage. We feel confident we' ll grade highly
here. 

Price — We' re usually not the cheapest parking operator that submits a bid. However, we
have proven time after time that we can bring the greatest value. It is not unusual for
Denison to improve the bottom line by 10% or more. There are many examples of
improvement that reach 30% and one in particular that is more than 100%. We will be

happy to discuss these very real improvements brought to each particular facility. 

In the meantime are enthusiastic about providing enforcement for the City of Pompano Beach
surface lots, multi -space and lollipop meters. With the technology we have proposed in our bid, 
we can automate the enforcement and enhance the collection process immediately. We
encourage you to contact the City of Fort Myers and see what we have been able to do for
them. 

THANK YOU for the opportunity to submit this response. Please feel free to contact me directly
at either 317.655.3121 or via email at L6pryorpdenisonraarkino, con should you need additional



detail. We look forward to hearing back from you to further discuss this mutually beneficial
opportunity. 

Respectfully, 

Mark Pryor

VP of Business Development



A. Discussion of experience and ability to manage a 500 space garage, to include any
experience in operating a valet service. Discussion should include proposed contract
structure in terms of Proposer compensation and any general revenue split

arrangements generally contemplated. May also include discussion of revenue split
arrangements generally contemplated. May also include discussion of how the garage
might be manned or not, based on entry and exit points, pay meters etc. Should also
include Proposer's experience with other client references as discussed above, 

Denison Parking, Inc. was founded in 1934 and incorporated in 1945, has long been

established as the leading parking services provider in Indianapolis, Indiana, and Is rapidly

emerging as a premier, customer -oriented parking management company in the national

marketplace. For over 80 years, Denison Parking has built lasting relationships with clients

whose parking demands have continued to grow and evolve. 

As the industry has evolved, so has Denison Parking. In 1934 the company developed the

first modern parking operation in Indianapolis. in 1954 Denison Parking developed that facility

into the first self -park, multi- level garage in the city, and the fifth such parking facility in the

nation. In keeping pace with changes in the industry, and after four major constructions

spanning six decades, Denison Parking, Inc. continues to manage the facility currently on that

site. In addition, over the years Denison has developed three other garages consisting of over

2,500 spaces and continues to own and manage those properties. Denison Parking also

provides its expertise in the development and construction of parking facilities to private

corporations and municipalities

Today, in keeping with its high level of service, proficiency, and ability to cultivate lasting

business partnerships, Denison Parking manages over 60, 000 parking spaces in thirteen

states and has over 700 employees. The executive staff of Denison Parking, a team

comprised of individuals with various parking industry backgrounds, has in excess of 120

years of experience encompassing every type of facility and system imaginable in the parking

industry. 

Recognized for its professionalism and the experience of its staff, in 1998 Denison Parking

was awarded the contract to manage the visitor parking/ tour ticket program at Hoover Dam, 

one of our country' s iconic national treasures. Since 2003, Denison Parking, Inc. has

managed some of the most complex parking facilities in North America for the Simon Property

Group, the largest Real Estate Investment Trust in the United States. In 2010, Denison was

selected to operate the Indianapolis on -street enforcement for 50 years. In the past 25 years
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no city in America has hosted more sporting events than Indianapolis, and Denison has been

a major player in each of these events. Currently Denison provides event parking for the

Indianapolis Colts, Indiana Pacers and Miami Heat, and played an integral part in providing

parking for Super Bowl XLVI. Over the years Denison has managed parking for the NCAA

Men' s Final Four Tournament, World Basketball Championship, Big Ten Men' s Basketball

Championships, Pan Am Games and the Indiana State Fair. 

Indiana University Health, recognized by U. S. News & World Report for 14 consecutive years, 

and one of the busiest hospital systems in the United States, entrusted Denison Parking to

manage all of their self parking, shuttle and valet services for its Indianapolis Campus

At Denison Parking, we believe that bigger is not necessarily better. As companies expand, 

they sometimes lose sight of the basic principles of effective parking management. As

Denison Parking continues to grow, it is our mission to do that by continuing to provide a

personalized, responsive and professional service to our clients and to the customers of their

facilities. 

Contract Structure

Denison would like to propose operating the 500 space parking garage for a flat fee of

750. 00 per month or $ 9, 000 annually for a term of 5 years. All expenses of the garage would

be paid for by the City of Pompano Beach

Should the aaraae be manned or not. 

We recommend not manning the parking garage and using our patented two-way audio/ video

to provide customer service. Many years ago Denison came to understand that the automated

parking environment can be perceived as unfriendly and intimidating to many individuals. 

While the installation of the POF devices helps eliminate payroll and related expenses, the

customer experience was being negatively impacted by lack of human interaction. Denison' s

CEO, Mark Pratt had begun working on a solution to this problem prior to taking the helm at

Denison in 2002. Mark filed a patent for 2 -way audio / video communication in an automated

parking environment. That patent, and another, were eventually granted. In 2005 Denison

began equipping parking facilities with 2 -way audio / video customer service capabilities. It

has been a tremendous success. 
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In summary, 2 -way audio/video capabilities are integrated into the parking equipment to allow

for immediate customer assistance. The customer, either in the parking lane in their vehicle or

standing in front of the POF device, can interact with a customer service representative to ask

questions or request help. It is a virtual face-to- face conversation. The customer can see the

CSR, so the interaction is personal. The CSR can see the customer to get an immediate feel

for the level of anxiety or distress. The CSR can watch the customer insert their ticket, for

example, or lead them through the payment process. 

INSTEAD OF DOING THIS: 

HOW ABOUT TRYING

THIS



References

Below are client references for Denison Parking: 

Kathy Burnett
Manager of Parking Services
Simon Business Network

PO Box 7033

Indianapolis, IN46207

317) 263- 7077

kburnett@simon. com

Barney Levengood
Executive Director

Capital Improvement Board

100 S. Capital Ave. 

Indianapolis, IN46204

317) 262- 3450

blevengood@iccrd. com

Michael Nichols

Vice President

Next Really
1750 Old Meadow Road

Suite 250

McLean, VA. 22102

703) 442-4500

mnichols@nextrealty.com



B. Discussion of the number of personnel anticipated to be assigned to the contract, to

include title and duties, at minimum. 

We have included an organization chart to reflect the number of parking ambassadors and
management personnel we will us to manage the Pompano Beach contract. 

We will have six parking ambassadors to enforce the surface lots, multi -space and lollipop
meters. One parking ambassador per shift will drive the enforcement vehicle with the LPR
camera on top and enforce the surface lots, multi -space meters and lollipop meters. As violators
are found, the parking ambassadors will issue citations to vehicles that violate the city
ordinance. The manager and bookkeeper will be responsible for staffing and collection of all
meters. The manager and bookkeeper will also reconcile daily deposits and ensure the coins
are taken to the Treasury Department or picked up by the armored car service. 

The Bookkeeper will acted as the office receptionist and will be answering the office phones as
well as accepting payments for citations. 
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C. Discussion of vehicles to be assigned to the contract, type, description etc. 

If awarded the contract, Denison Parking would purchase a Smart Car and van ( both shown
below). The Smart Car — Fortwo Coupe would be decaled " Pompano Beach Parking
Ambassador" and this vehicle would have LPR cameras mounted to the roof of the vehicle and

would enforce the on -street meters and surface parking lots, while the van would be used to
perform collections of the meters and coin boxes. 



D. Discussion of benchmarks and / or national standards against with performance of

parking operations may be measured, to include parking enforcement activity

Our performance can be measured by the following items: 

Cleanliness of the surface parking lots and the garage. 

Cleanliness of the Lollipop meters and multi -space pay meters. 

Repair time on Lollipop meters and multi -space pay meters. 
The number of customer complaints each month. 

Percentage of accurate citations written each month. 

Percentage of citations collected versus citations written each month. 

Percentage of outstanding A/ R in the garage each month. 

Accurate financial reporting each month. 
Increase in revenue / decrease in expenses. 

Up to date parking rate survey for other cities close to Pompano Beach. 
Coin Jams

Capture Rate



E. Discussion of any proposed general improvements already observed per Proposer' s
own due diligence in preparing proposal. 

In reviewing the operations, we would recommend upgrading the current " lollipop" meter heads
to IPS meter heads so that all meters are capable of accepting credit cards, We would also
recommend working with the surrounding bar and restaurant to establish daily lunch and Happy
Hour specials in order to increase surface lot parking during the slow time of year. If not in
place, create a special rate for restaurant employees. 

We feel it would be beneficial to create monthly, quarterly, semi- annual and annual parking
passes for boats and beach patrons. Finally, we would suggest that there be an on- line citation
payment processing implemented to provide customers with an easier way to pay. 

We have always found it beneficial to work with the local businesses to obtain buy -in on a local

parking plan to promote the city. 



F. Discussion of experience with placing boots on parking violators vehicles

Booting and Towing

Along with basic on -street parking enforcement, Denison Parking Inc. also offers a boot
and tow service. The procedure is simple yet effective, and cuts down on repeat

offenders while collecting delinquent revenue. Once a violator has received three or
more parking citations that have been delinquent for 90 days or more the plate is flagged
for booting. The next time the plate is entered into the patrol officers hand held device
they are given a boot warning. This informs the officer of the delinquency of said
vehicle. The officer calls the plate into the office and it is searched in the database. The

manager in turn logs the plate number, total fines due, and time. The boot is placed on

the front tire closest to the sidewalk. A large brightly colored warning is placed on the
driver side window to inform the owner that movement of the vehicle could result in
damage and gives a contact phone number. Once the boot is in place a call is made to

the police department to inform of a boot placement and impending tow. The owner is
given 24 hours to reconcile all fines due in full along with a boot removal fee ( where
applicable). If fines are not reconciled within 24 hours a call is placed to the police

department requesting tow service. After being towed the vehicle is held in impound until
the owner shows proof of reconciliation of debt on the delinquent balance. The impound
lot then releases the vehicle once impound and tow fines are paid ( where applicable). 



G. Discussion of hand held ticket devices and recommendations of specific TIDs. 

Please see the enclosed information sheets for Nupark which describes the proposed hand held

devices and the specific of the TIDs. 
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PARKING MANAGEMENT SOLUTION

The NuPark Parking Management System was designed from the ground up to leverage License Plate Recognition
LPR) technology to revolutionize the everyday management of your parking operation. The Parking

Management System is a modern, web -based, application that can be hosted either by NuPark or at your location. 

The NuPark Parking Management System is built to be learned intuitively, making mastery of the system quick
and easy. Key information is easily and quickly available to users with such features as Quick Links, recent
searches, and real time activity. 

PERMITS, REIMAGINED

The system was built for virtual permits to seamIessly

streamline all operations. However, those still using physical
permits will find the Permit Management module is

unparalleled in it's functionality. The NuPark solution was
designed to take full advantage of virtual permits while

providing full support for physical permits, at the same time, 
LPR technology is encoded into NuPark's DNA. Permit lists
are automatically updated on each enforcement vehicle and

location, allowing for permits to be purchased online and used
immediately. Full on -street pay by plate meter and pay by
phone integration allows your customers the ability to pay for
their parking in a multitude of convenient methods. 

CITATIONS, REVOLUTIONIZED

Many companies talk about " Guided Enforcement." NuPark
was build to excel at it. LPR equipped vehicles provide quick

and efficient violation identification using real- time permit
data and the NuPark enforcement software allows for

citations to be issued immediately from the vehicle, 
electronically sent after review, or by dedicated enforcement
officers directed to the exact vehicle location by a real time
enforcement notification. Once a citation has been issued, 

the Citation Management module manages citations in

every stage of the citation lifecycle including payment, 
appeal, and collections. 



FINANCES, REFOCUSED

NuPark was built with the standard principles of accounting and auditing in mind. Not only do financial reports
work out of the box, but with the built in Casher Closeout System the entire cashier closeout process is

performed, managed, and electronically stored in the NuPark Parking Management System. Instead of

accounting and auditing being treated as an afterthought, they are built into the core logic of the system, helping
to bring additional financial integrity to your parking operation. This system has earned the praise of accountants
and audit teams due to its focus on financial integrity and clarity of reporting. 

Customers, Delighted

Citations ()ashboardwr' 
The implementation of NuPark solution has

proven to be a boon to parking managers. After

implementing a full NuPark LPR solution Texas
Tech University has seen an increase in citations
issuance of over 35% and citation revenue has

increased by 50%. The overall savings from their

move to virtual permits combined with increased

staff efficiencies and increased citation revenues

have resulted in a three year revenue increase of

over $ 1. 2 million dollars. In addition to the

increased revenues overall customer satisfaction

over the same three year time span has increased

by 15%. 

Customer Management

Permit Management

Citation Management

Appeal Management

Vehicle Management

Event Management

KEY FEATURES

Entry Booth Module

Boot Tow Module

Motorist Assist Module

Permit Wait List Support

Public Safety Alerts

Guided Enforcement

eCommerce Platform

iOS/ Android App

Intuitive Report Builder

Hardware Integration

Pay by Phone Integration

Banner Integration

www.nupark.com
Please contact us at00 sales@nupark.com
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NuPark Overview

OiLltion Benefits

Operational Benefits

The proposed NuPark solution will have numerous operational benefits for Pompano

Beach. These benefits will include improved working efficiency of the parking staff; 
increased convenience for the students, factuality, and staff of Pompano Beach; as well
as improving the parker compliance of people who park on the Pompano Beach. 
Additionally by moving to a real time enforcement platform, citations are uploaded and
available for payment immediately after issue. 

By selling virtual permits online, customers will buy the permits they need to park
correctly on the Pompano Beach without having to visit the parking department. 
Reducing the amount of workload on the parking staff on standard repetitive tasks
selling permits, verifying residential eligibility, etc.) allows for more time to provide the

highest levels of customer service for the remaining " exception case" customers, as well
as allowing them to take on new tasks as needed by the City. Moving to additional
online options allows customers to interact with the Parking staff on their own schedule

and availability. This allows customers who opt to visit the parking office to find shorter
lines and a better overall customer service experience. Moving to a license plate based

virtual permit system also eliminates the need to print, issue, and manage permits every
year. This creates yearly savings, as well as increased operational efficiencies. 

With the move to an LPR- based enforcement program the likelihood of receiving a
citation when parking in violation increases dramatically. Nationwide it is estimated that
parking staff using visual enforcement only enforce 12% of ail parking violators. 

Assuming your parking officers are four times as efficient at the national average it still
leaves more than 50% of all violators undiscovered, leaving streets unsafe and
legitimate parkers inconvenienced. While this has a negative financial impact on

Pompano Beach, it also has a negative operational impact on the parking system and
traffic. LPR enforcement programs are proven to increase the rate of citation issuance

and thus likelihood of receiving a ticket) by 50% or more. Decreasing the likelihood of

beating the system," residents will change their behavior and park more politely. This

increased compliance leads to better vehicle turnover and parking space availability. 

00
1

NUPAlkK



NuPark Overview

SOILItion Descriptions

uParkCity Subscription

The uParkCity solution provides a comprehensive license plate recognition ( LPR) 
focused parking management solution for the parking system at Pompano Beach. The
uParkCity solution includes the following standard modules: 

Citation Management

Permit Management

Appeal Management

Customer Management

Vehicle Management

Boot Tow Module

Additionally the uParkCity solution includes an eCommerce website that allows
customers to interact with the parking department on their schedule. The following
modules are included in the eCommerce solution: 

Customer Management

Permit Sales

Citation Payments

Citation Appeals

Departmental Permit Management

The uParkCity system can be configured to include or exclude any of the above- 
mentioned modules. Due to the modular nature of the system, a few modules can be

installed initially with additional modules added as usage and parking needs require. 
Additionally, a real time interface can be developed with the current parking
management solution to ensure smooth data transfer between systems and an easier

transition path, if desired. 

Parking App

NuPark provides the option for a Pompano Beach branded parking app for the
Apple iOS and Google Android platforms. This app will be configured to meet the design
standards for Pompano Beach and would provide the following functionality: 

Citation Payment

Citation Appeal

Visitor Permit Purchase

Parking Information
Parking Maps
Authorized Parking Assistant
Virtual Permit Verification and Violation Reporting
Lot Count Reporting



NuPark Overview

System Screenshots

Below are a few screenshots the system features and modules: 
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NuPark Overview

LPR Vehicle Search
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K, InK C¢ ab_à-! Q2r aaa 9aLa Fs'1cv Raa! s IR•1i1l; n Lala A.= 

IPj. RdPge:cMrt:•.She

rVM EA

i

460

aD0

M JSO- 

u 300

2so-. 

200= 

Iso_ 

50

t'4y 4s ' ti ' ti ' 4y 4 •, 

1

1

IMES

va
nMc01) 0 QaV) dItca0Ifa)30RPC' G

d, a. ra, r! la 1. J. J. v,. J: ' l• e. 0

2 .{! V0 JO ' . 6 ' H JP JP J0 J0 .{! J0 . JO JQ , JP
k QY h " 91• 41• ' 9b 4 N   • i '° Y • eS

rims ¢r D- 

4



NuPark Overview

Citation Issuance Dashboard
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Rugged Handheld Bundle Subscription

The rugged handheld bundle provides the ability to issue and verify permits, 
issue citations, and record boot and tow records in the field. The devices bundle

includes a rugged handheld, Bluetooth printer, handheld software, support and

extended hardware warranty coverage during the term of the subscription. Monthly
mobile data service is not included in the bundle but is recommended for optimal

operation. Mobile data plans are typically available at below market rates through the
University' s mobile plan; this service is available from NuPark for an additional charge. 

City Information Systems Integrations

The uPark City solution is designed to seamlessly integrate with other
information management systems in the City. Standard interfaces provide for two- way
batch and real time data transfer of customer, citation, payroll, and financial data. Due

to the unique nature of each component, Pompano Beach IT support will be needed to

provide information about the interface requirements of these systems at Pompano

Beach. NuPark will work with Pompano Beach IT subject matter experts to complete

this configuration and testing. This City system integration is included in the price of the
uParkCity subscription. 

Reporting and Data Access

Out of the box, the uParkCity solution includes numerous user-friendly methods to
retrieve, display, and utilize the data from the system. The reporting package includes
standard reports for all major modules of the system. Included in the subscription price

are 5 additional customized reports the first year and 3 each year after. Users can

modify, edit, and create reports utilizing the user-friendly report builder. Training on the
report builder is provided during implementation and on an as needed basis. 

In addition to the reporting tools, a robust query manager tool is included for quick
access to the system data. Queries created by the query manager can be saved for
future use and used in the report builder. Data from queries can be viewed and sorted in

the system or exported in a number of standard formats including Excel, Word, PDF, 
comma delimited file, and more. 

Dashboards offer a graphical view of the data to provide for quick data analysis and

improved decision- making ability. The included LPR focused dashboards offer real time
insight into current hardware status, LPR vehicle utilization, and LPR images. The

citation review dashboard provides for real time review of citations issued in the field

and allows for citations to be flagged, reviewed, and processed before they are sent to
customers. This allows for a significant reduction in officer error and improves the ability
for proactive communication with customers. 



NuPark Overview

Mobile Payment and Pay by Plate Meter Integration

Real time integration with mobile payment and multi -space meter units are vital to the

correct operation of a LPR based parking system. The uParkCity solution currently
includes integrations with multiple mobile payment and multi -space meter companies. 

Integrations with companies not currently supported are ongoing and will be completed
as needed for this project. These integrations are included in the price of the uParkCity
subscription. 

Hosting

NuPark offers system hosting for the uParkCity solution utilizing the Microsoft Azure
hosting platform. Windows Azure delivers a 99. 95% monthly SLA with automatic OS
and service patching, built in network load balancing and resiliency to hardware
failure. NuPark is responsible for all software upgrades, patches, backups, and data

security. Each NuPark database is encrypted at the database level to ensure full

database security at all times. 

Self -Hosting

Pompano Beach is also welcomed to host the uParkCity server environment. NuPark
will provide application support, while Pompano Beach will provide local server

hardware, software, and infrastructure support. As requested, pricing for self -hosting
was not included in this quote, but is available upon request. 

Data Conversion

Data conversation from the current parking system is included in the subscription price. 
This conversion will move all requested data from the current parking database into the
uParkCity database. NuPark will work with the parking staff from Pompano Beach to
ensure the data is cleaned, normalized, and correct before import into the new

uParkCity database. Converted data will be made available for review and testing in a
sample system. Once approved by Pompano Beach, the final data conversion will be
performed and used to create the production uParkCity database. 

Implementation

The NuPark implementation team will provide the Pompano Beach parking department
with the knowledge, documentation and training needed to successfully transition from
the current parking system to the uParkCity solution. The implementation process

includes a thorough review of current processes, discussions about operational goals, 

configuration of the uParkCity system, training on all facets of the system including the
back office software, handhelds, mobile LPR vehicles, and local first level support. 

Additionally our experienced team will provide change management training for staff, 
make recommendations on Best Practices, and share operational insight from years of

experience operating a LPR enhanced parking system. Members of our implementation

team will be onsite for both the week of go -live, the week after, and for a follow-up
consulting visit 6 months after implementation. The goal is to ensure the parking staff is
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NuPark Overview

not only trained on how to use the system, but feel confortable using the system on a
daily basis. The 6 month visit is used as a tune up to ensure the system is still working
as expected, receive direct feedback from all levels of the parking team, and to discuss
additional opportunities to improve and expand the use of the system. All standard

implementation costs are included in the uParkCity subscription. 

Technical and User Support

System support is included as part of the uParkCity subscription. Standard support is
available via phone, email, or support portal Monday -Friday 8: 00 am to 6: 00 pm local
time. Emergency phone support is available 24 hours a day 7 days week, 365 days a
week. Ail of our support staff has had in depth background checks and have completed

our data security training. 

NuPark Unique Feature Overview

The following items are a few of the features and concepts that are unique to the
NuPark solution. This is designed to be an overview and any of the items can be
discussed in more detail on how it could be utilized at Pompano Beach

1. Product Age: The NuPark solution has been built from the ground up in the past
5 years. This allows for the use of more modern coding platforms, architectures, 
and data exchange methods. 

2. LPR Focus: uParkCity was built specifically for LPR based parking and includes
the following features. 

a. Virtual permits

b. eCitations

c. LPR in -vehicle software

d. LPR focused operation dashboards. 

3. Parking App: A university branded app provides the following functionally. 
a. Support for iOS and Android platform. Windows Mobile and Blackberry

available upon request. 

b. Permit Purchase

c. Citation Appeal

d. Citation Payment

e. Permit Parking Privilege Verification (Where can I park?) 
f. Optional Parking Violator Reporting
g. Pay by Cell Functionality

4. LPR Integration: The following items are available from within ( not in a separate
program) the NuPark solution. 

a. License Plate Image Search

b. LPR Utilization Dashboard

c. LPR Live Read Dashboard

d. LPR Usage Audit Dashboard



NuPark Overview

5. Parkeon Meter Integration: The Parkeon and NuPark interface allows for easy
use of the Parkeon system from the NuPark interface. The following Parkeon
features are available from the NuPark Solution. 

a. Real time payment verification on enforcement handheld and in -vehicle

enforcement software

b. Payment Transaction Review- Review meter transactions from within the

NuPark system. Used to confirm payment and review customer issues

c. Unified Revenue Reporting- Display revenue from meters, pay by phone, 
online and in office transitions on the same reports

d. On Meter Citation Payment -Pay for citations, boots, and tow fees at the
meter in real time

6. Boot/Tow Module: Manage boot and tow transactions for vehicles

a. Create boot/tow record on uParkCity, handheld, or in -vehicle software
b. Log vehicle damage
c. Dispatch boot/tow staff electronically
d. Capture driver and boot/tow staff signature

e. Record towing details including location and company

7. Central Cashier Closeout: The uParkCity system provides a built in cashier close
out system to streamline and automate the cashier daily closeout feature. The
feature provides the following. 

a. Start of shift cash count

b. End of shift cash count

c. Automatic reconciliation between cashier transactions and recorded

revenue

d. Second level cash count recount and review

e. Overall cashier revenue summary and review
f. Automatic generation of bank deposit statement

g. Support for coin collection from meters. 

8. Public Safety Interface: Allow limited access to public safety officials to add
vehicles to notification lists. Once identified vehicle details (photos, location, time, 

date) will be sent via email to requesting officer. Additionally officers can search
vehicle scan images and location data by license plate, customer, or permit. 

9. eCitation Support -Ability to issue citations without printing a paper citation. These
citations are generated by the in vehicle or handheld enforcement software. 
Once issued citations are emailed to known customers with email address and

mailed to those without. The following features are included. 
a. Citation Review Dashboard- This review utilizes user -configured settings

to identify citations for review before issuance. Additionally before
issuance an automatic business rule check is preformed to ensure system

changes haven' t occurred between the violation date and issuance date. 

An example of this would be of an online permit purchase made after the

violation was identified but before the citation was issued. 

b. Vehicle notification tracking- Users can setup a field alert to require
vehicles with multiple citations within a set time frame to be provided with

10
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an additional visual notification on the vehicle. The system will then allow

the officer to note their actions after the alert. 

c. Optional issuance of paper based citations for unidentified vehicles. 

d. eCitation setup mode to streamline vehicle identification and data
collection. This is useful during the initial virtual permit transition phase. 

e. Recording both the Issued Date and Violation Date. 

10. LPR Entry Station: Utilizing fixed LPR cameras the entry station provides vehicle
verification, customer identification, and permit issuance from a fixed

touchscreen unit. 

11. GPS Based Permit Zones: Ability to setup permit zones based on GPS location
a. Permit zones are displayed on City map. 
b. Map is used for both online permit sale information
c. Provides location based parking privilege functionally on customer app. 
d. Provides GPS based permit zone verification for handheld and vehicle

enforcement units. 

e. Allows for creation of complex zones which include multiple lots or which

separate single lots into multiple zones. 

12. Departmental Permit Portal: The departmental permit portal allows departments

to manage their permits online. This portal has the following features. 
a. Vehicle license plate registration

b. Short term permit assignment with automatic permit expiration
c. Parking policy enforcement to ensure parkers who should not be assigned

departmental permits ( students, staff) cannot have permits assigned to

their vehicle. 

d. Ability to request and purchase additional temporary permits for
departmental functions

13. Motorists Assistance Program: Record and track motorist assistance provided by
parking staff. The following functionality is provided. 

a. Record customer and vehicle information

b. Document services provided

c. Capture customer signature on completion

d. Report on frequent users and limit availability based on abuse
e. Available on both handheld and vehicle enforcement units. 

14. Field Hardware Status Dashboard: Monitor the status, location, battery life, and
usage of all field hardware devices from one dashboard. 

15. User Defined Themes: NuPark provides users the ability to customize the look
and feel of their uParkCity interface. This customization includes modules

displayed, data field order, and overall color scheme. 

16. Plate Based Validation System: License plate based validation system that

provides the ability to provide location and vehicle based validations. 
Functionality includes: 

i I' , 9t k
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NuPark Overview

a. Kiosk application for vehicle registration

b. Location and license plate restrictions to help prevent abuse
c. Real time update of validation status on handheld and vehicle

enforcement units

d. Multiple validation types supported including time based ( 2 hours free), 
reduced rate ($3 off), flat rate ($ 5 all day), and prepaid validation

e. Validation usage reports

f. Departmental or customer billing for validation usage

17. Guided Enforcement: Utilize LPR vehicle to identify vehicles in violation and
dispatch the vehicle information and location to separate handheld enforcement

units to issue citation. 

18. Automatic Day Pass (Toll Pass): Allow parkers to register vehicle and place their

credit card on file before parking. When the vehicle is found on City in a valid
parking space the parker will automatically be charged the daily parking rate and
issued a full day permit. 

19. Online Multi -Level Appeal Process: Support for a paperless multi- level appeal

process. The system functions as follows: 

a. Parker registers citation appeal online with eCommerce site and uploads

all necessary evidence, notes, and photos. 
b. Appeal officer reviews appeal within uPark and rules on appeal. 

c. Parker is notified electronically of decision. 
d. If requested second or third level appeal reviews are be preformed using

the appeal review portal or the uParkCity solution. This portal provides
second and third level review staff all recorded details about the citation, 

customer appeal, previous appeal level notes, and the ability to rule on the
appeal. 

e. Appeal abuse reports are included to help monitor customer abuse of the
appeal process. 

20. Information Notification Login Window: Prompt users to agree with data usage

and operational guidelines upon login. These guidelines can include FERPA, 

PCI, and University rules for system usage. 



System and Service Components

Residential Permit Management

The NuPark permit management solution provides City of Pompano Beach the ability to manage the

residential parking program without the need for physical hangtags. The web -based interface allows for

permits to be created, sold, canceled, modified and tracked without having to retrieve them. The back- 

end interface provides a full permit history including all payments, changes, and current status. 

Customers will be able to apply for residential parking permits by applying online or going into the

office. When applying online a customer will submit their two forms of identification for review. Once

electronically submitted, the staff at the Parking Department then reviews the request and customers

are electronically notified of their approval or the need for additional details. Upon approval, customers
go online and complete the permit sale process. Once purchased, vehicles associated with the

residential permit are automatically available for use. 

Once registered parkers can use the online portal to make vehicle changes or additions as allowed by

Parking Department policies. Residents will utilize the online portal to assign vehicles to their two

residential visitor parking permits. These permits will be restricted by zone, based on resident location, 

and will have an automatic expiration date based on Parking Department policies. Additional resident

visitor permits can be purchased online or in the office for each residence. 

Residential permits are associated to a residential address and vehicles will be register to those permits

based on the vehicle license plate. Customers no longer qualifying for their residential permit may have

their permits deactivated by the Parking Department. Once deactivated vehicles associated with those

permits are immediately no longer valid in residential parking areas without another form of payment

and will be displayed on the enforcement system as violators. 

Customers using the online portal can print traffic passes for their vehicles. This pass is customizable by

the Parking Department and can include details needed for resident verification. 

Customers that prefer in- person service receive better service due to the reduced staff workload. 
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3. 2 Additional Permits

Due to the ease of the system and because so many business owners are also residents, we recommend

that business permits, all day permits, etc. be sold and managed from the same NuPark system. 

Customers will create an online account, register their vehicle, and purchase parking permits. These

permits would be license plate based and verified using the enforcement system. Permits can be sold

for use in individual zones or lots as well as for use in the entire city. 

3. 3 Automatic Daily Permits

The automatic daily permit sale feature sells daily parking permits to vehicles upon identification. To

begin; users place their credit card on file with the confidential NuPark system. Once set up, parkers can

park in the supported spaces and lots by the pay by cell system. When the enforcement officer verifies

the vehicle either with the LPR vehicle orthe enforcement app a daily rate will be charged to the card on

file. Parkers quickly park and begin shopping or dining. This system converts parkers currently receiving

citations into paying parkers by offering a chance for parkers to avoid citations if the parker registers for

the automatic daily permit program. 

3, 4 Enforcement System

The key to the license plate based permitting system is efficient enforcement. Our proposed vehicle - 

based enforcement system provides fast and effective enforcement of permits, time zones, vehicle

watch lists, and mobile payments. The vehicle enforcement system includes two license plate

recognition cameras, mounted in -vehicle computer, GPS module, mobile data card, cabling, and

installation. A vehicle is required (and included in our proposal) for installation. 



While citations will not be issued by the enforcement unit warnings can be generated and tracked from
within the system. Vehicles can be added to boot/ tow lists, VIP lists, and have individual vehicle

notifications that are displayed when the vehicle is identified. The system can be used for electronic

chalking of vehicles reducing the amount of time needed to identify each vehicle. The enforcement

software will display details about valid permits including vehicle, zone, and address to enhance
enforcement of residential visitor permits. 

In Vehicle Enforcement Software

4. Solution Benefits

4. 1 operational Benefits

The proposed NuPark solution will have numerous operational benefits to the City of Pompano Beach

Parking Department. These benefits will include improved the working efficiency of the authority staff, 

increased the convenience for the citizens of the City of Pompano Beach, as well as improving the parker
compliance of people who park in the Borough. 

The proposed residential parking program will allow citizens to upload their residential parking program

verification documents, complete payment, and receive their virtual parking permit electronically

eliminating the need, ( but leaves open the option), for them to visit the parking office or at the parking

signup at their apartment or condo. Additionally by selling permits online, customers will buy the



i

permits they need to park correctly within the City limits without having to visit the parking department. 
Reducing the amount of workload on the Parking Department staff on standard repetitive tasks (selling

permits, verifying residential eligibility, etc.) allows for more time to provide the highest levels of

customer service for the remaining " exception case" customers as well as allowing them to take on new

tasks as needed by the Parking Department. Moving to additional online options allows customers to

interact with the Parking Department on their schedule and availability. Customers who opt to visit the

parking office will find shorter lines and a better overall customer service experience. 

With the move to a LPR- based enforcement program the likelihood of receiving a citation when parking

in violation increases dramatically. Nationwide it is estimated that parking staff using visual

enforcement only enforce 12% of all parking violators. Assuming your parking officers are four times as
efficient at the national average it still leaves more than 50% of all violators undiscovered leaving streets

unsafe and legitimate citizens inconvenienced. While this has a negative financial impact on the Parking

Department it also has a negative operational impact on the parking system and traffic. LPR

enforcement programs are proven to increase the rate of citation issuance ( and thus likelihood of

receiving a ticket) by 50% or more. Decreasing the likelihood of " beating the system", parkers will

change their behavior and park more politely. This increased compliance leads to better vehicle

turnover and parking space availability. 
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PARKING LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION SYSTEMS

Developing and Implementing Privacy Policies for Parking Operations

Parking permits have been around for as long as there has been a need to restrict access to
parking spaces. Decals, hangtags, cards and meters have historically filled the need to
uniquely identify each vehiele in a parking facility and confirm the right to park in that
location. Parking enforeement personnel are then able to visually confirm whether a vehicle
is permitted in a particular location. 

Nationwide, vehicles are required to be registered with state governments and prominently

display license plates. These license plates, through the use of alphanumeric characters, are
unique to each vehicle. Recent advancements in technology have allowed the parking
industry to capitalize on the fact. that a visible, unique identifier is already required on all
vehicics by government agencies and discontinue to the use of a separate parking permit as
an identifier. As a result, license plate recognition ( LPR) systems are quickly growing in
adoption within the parking industry. LPR systems allow large quantities of plates to be
checked for compliance within a comparatively short amount of time, thereby streamlining

the processes of parking control and revolutionizing the business of parking control. 

It is this rapid acquisition of large numbers of license plates, location and time data that has

raised a number of privacy concerns among the public, government agencies and privacy
advocates. More specifically, the storage, distribution and use of the data is cause for
concern. 

The goal of this guide is to provide background information on these issues and highlight the

various policy areas parking operators should address with their stakeholders. Operators are
encouraged to review the information provided in the included links, which include sample

policies. The guide is not prescriptive in nature and is not intended as substitute for legal

advice. Operators are strongly encouraged to seek legal counsel as the privacy policy is
being developed. 

LPR systems use digital cameras and software to read license plate data and check that plate

data against permitted vehicle lists and hotlists. In parking applications, LPR systems are
generally comprised of: 

Cameras

Computer hardware

Processing Software
Data Storage

Management Software

Camera installations can be mobile ( vehicle -mounted) or fixed ( mounted to a pole, building
or other stationary structure). The eameras capture pictures of a vehicle for identification. 

The camera hardware typically employs infrared lighting to enhance low -light imaging. 

Two pictures are usually captured: an image of the license plate and a context image. The
images are then transmitted to an in -vehicle computer ( or nearby computer for fixed mount
applications). Processing software operating on the computer applies an optical character
recognition (OCR) algorithm to the license plate image, converting the plate data to text for
use by the management software. Once processed, the images, text plate data, geospatial
coordinates and date/ time data are stored in a central database for later retrieval and use. 

At the same time, the text license plate data is used by the parking management software to
check parking authorizations and various hotlists. These lists can include parking scofflaws, 
stolen vehicles, suspect vehicles, and AMBER alerts among others. Visual or audible alerts
from the system alert parking enforcement officers of violations or notifications related to
the plate. The entire process occurs in a matter of seconds, effectively automating what had
previously been a manual, potentially subjeetive process. 
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PARKING LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION SYSTEMS

Developing and Implementing Privacy Policies for Parking Operations

The widespread gathering and storage of large quantities of LPR data has raised privacy
concerns among a number of organizations such as the American Civil Liberties Union
ACLU), International Association of Chiefs of Police ( IACP), and National Criminal

Justice Association ( NC)A). LPR systems capture every license plate they see, quickly
generating large numbers of records. The majority of those records are for individuals not
suspected to be breaking any law. Generally speaking, our experience in parking control has
shown that approximately 8% of plate reads actually result in enforcement action. Stated
another way, the location information of innocent citizens is collected and stored 11. 5 times
more frequently than parking violators. So why store such large amounts of data? 

Part of the answer is simply due to a lack of regulation and oversight. Very few laws exist
which regulate the collection, storage and use of LPR data. As a result, retention of that data

is only limited by the storage capacity of the organization. With relatively low cost today of
digital storage, it is possible to retain records to months, years or even indefinitely, Another
motivator for large-scale data collection and retention is that LPR data has proven

particularly effective among law enforcement agencies in detecting crimes, alerting law
enforcement to the proximity of a suspect in an area, and in the analysis of crimes. 

While the data can be helpful in serving the public' s interest in safety and security, the
potential does exist for abuses of this data. As the ACLU noted in their 2013 report on LPR

privacy, the U. S Court of Appeals for the D. C. Circuit has recognized that location tracking
data can provide significant insight to our daily lives: 

A person who knows all of another' s travels can deduce whether he is a

weekly church goer, a heavy drinker, a regular at the gym, an unfaithful
husband, an outpatient receiving medical treatment, an associate of
particular individuals or political groups — and not just one such fact

about a person, but all sueh facts. 

Although the primary use of an organization' s LPR data may be well- intentioned, the risk of
abuse is very real. 

Tracking Individual Vehicles
Observations of a vehicle' s whereabouts over time allows an individual' s

movements to be easily tracked with great detail. An employee may possibly track
the movements of a spouse suspected of being unfaithful. A political figure could
easily track the activities of a political rival. 

Tracking Groups of Vehicles
LPR data could lead to the tracking of individual vehicles that were observed at a
particular location, such as political protests, churches, medical clinics, etc. 

Data Aggregation

Further, the effects of sharing of LPR data between agencies and aggregation of
data into larger databases is unknown. Numerous organizations pool their LPR data
into larger regional systems. 

Secondary Uses
Because there is little regulation and oversight of the collection and use of LPR

data, it could be used in ways that were not originally intended or communicated to
the public. 

The IACP noted that identification and surveillance of individuals through LPR data can

have a " chilling" effect on an individual' s exercise of their rights of freedom of expression
and association. Individuals who feel as if they are being watched will potentially modify
their expression of their rights, effectively self -censoring themselves as a result of the LPR
program. 



PARKING LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION SYSTEMS

Developing and Implementing Privacy Policies for Parking Operations

The challenge for parking organizations utilizing LPR technology is to develop privacy
policies and processes that meet the organization' s need to collect and utilize LPR data for

legitimate purposes while also considering the public' s privacy interests. LPR programs with
no clearly defined purpose or oversight will undoubtedly lead to mistrust and suspicion from
the general public and seriously jeopardize the successful implementation of the program. 

As mentioned previously, the ACLU, NCJA and IACP have issued assessments and
guidance relating to LPR privacy issues specifically or law enforcement information in
general. Web links to the resources refereneed are included and operators should take the

time to read each document when developing their policy. The following is a brief overview
of the observations or recommendations contained each report which parking operators

should consider in the development of LPR policies: 

t I. I

You Are Being Tracked: How License Plate Readers Are Being Used to Record
Arnericans' Movements( hit 3 ( www,tsc1tt. or10, 1P

I. PR data should only be used to investigate hits and in ongoing criminal
investigations. 

Agencies must not store data about innocent people for lengthy periods of time. 
It is acceptable to retain data for longer periods of time when it generates a hit, is

relevant to an ongoing investigation, the vehicle owner requests the data be retained
or when requested for criminal defense purposes. 

Access to the databases should be limited to trained employees with a need to

access the data. Such access should be logged. 

The public should be able to determine if an agency has LPR data on vehicles they
register and they should have access to review those records. 
Agencies should be transparent about who they share data with and only share data
with agencies who conform to these retention and access rules. 

Hot lists should be accurate and maintained regularly. Personnel should verify the
accuracy of the plate read and verify hot list information with dispatch prior to
taking enforcement action. 

Any organization utilizing LPR technology should report its usage of the data
publicly at least annually. 

t ...t , t, 

Justice Information Privacy Guideline: Developing, Drafting and Assessing Privacy
Policy.for Criminal Justice Information Systems
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Purpose Specification Principle: the purpose for which information is collected

should be clearly defined. 
Collection Limitation Principle: agencies should avoid collecting personal
information unnecessarily. 
Data Quality Principle: agencies should ensure that data is accurate, complete and
current. 

Use Limitation Principle: use of collected data should be limited to stated purposes

only. 

Security Safeguards Principle: agencies should assess the risks of loss or
unauthorized access to the data and institute appropriate safeguards against those

risks. 

Openness Principle: agencies should provide notice to individuals about how data is

collected, maintained and used. 

Individual Participation Principle: individuals should be able to access data related
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PARKING LICENSE PLATE RECOGNITION SYSTEMS

Developing and Implementing Privacy Policies for Parking Operations

to them. 

Accountability Principle: through audits, public reports, etc., agencies should
demonstrate the other principles are being overseen and enforced. 

Privacy Impact Assessment Reportfor the Utilization ofLicense Plate Readers
Itl :;: aa. thc; tcj. irr' Purial, d8 ti}Ifti i_ PltI' rivaye±_ Impact Assessincnl.ptl.) 

Automated License Plate Recognition Systems: Policy and Operational Guidance for
Law Enforcement

Iitip :,iwxa tlie iacp,{ rg_rPorlttl ` fib? udit+lAC' 1' A1_I' li Policy Operatiottiii Quiilance, l clil

License Plate Numbers as Personally Identifiable Information ( PII): license plate
numbers in and of themselves are not considered PII. However, when linked to

owner information ( as is the case in most parking operations) they can be
considered Pil and should be treated with the protections afforded such data. 

Public Perception: the lack of clearly defined usage and retention policies can often
lead to public distrust of LAR programs. 

Secondary Usage: permitted uses of LPR data for purposes other than those for
which it was collected should be clearly defined in policy. 
Data Collection: agencies should ensure LPR data is accurate and hot lists are
current. Appropriate safeguards should also be put into place to ensure the data is

only access and disseminated according to established policy. 
Data Retention: Agencies should develop and implement retention policies that
ensure legal retention requirements ( statutes of limitation) are met, potential future

usefulness of the data is considered, and the risk of maintaining potentially sensitive
data is assessed. 

Accountability: Policies should address the access to a dissemination of LPR data
through aceess audit logs. Those logs should be routinely monitored and reviewed. 
Important to the accountability component of any policy, is ensuring that personnel
are properly trained on the use of the technology as well as the privacy practices
and their purpose. 

Other policy areas parking operators may want to consider when developing their LAR
policies include: 

Geo -fencing the boundaries of the parking operation to ensure any data collected
outside the boundary, whether intentional or not, is not retained in the system for
access. 

Limiting and auditing any hot list data that is manually entered into the system. 
Access to LAR data and entry of hot -list data by local law enforcement. 

The use of LPR technology is undoubtedly transformative when applied to parking
operations. The gains for customer service and the improvements in operational efficiency
are numerous. However, operators must take care to ensure the vast amounts of data

potentially collected are used for legitimate purposes and the privacy interests of the public
are addressed. The privacy implications and risks are real, but manageable when addressed
properly. Research, education, and cooperation between operators and the public are
essential to the suceessful implementation of an LPR program. 
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H. Discussion of any parking program analysis reports prepared for previous clients. 
Proposer must indicate an example(s) in proposal submitted. 

Please see the enclosed sample reports which we provide for current Denison Parking, Inc. 
clients. 
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I. Discussion of proposed monitoring mechanisms for monitoring the iperformance of
personnel, as it relates to administration of the parking enforcement, 

Each Parking Ambassador ( PA' s) and collection personnel will be equipped with a cell phone
that will provide GPS tracking. In addition, all vehicles used in the parking operation will have

GPS tracking. Our proposed handheld units will track tickets written at each meter. 

By tracking the tickets written against the meter numbers, we can see enforcement patterns and
begin target enforcement. 



J. Discussion of cash receipts processing and recording capacity and internal controls in
place to ensure accurate and complete collection, recording and reconciliation of

transactions. In addition, discuss planned segregation of duties for collection, recording, 

cashier drawer balancing procedures (to include reconciliation of opening cash drawer
amount, daily receipts and cash receipts system to report reconciliation) a deposit and
reconciliation of all parking related revenues, should the City elect Option 2 above. 

Please see the Denison Cash Controls Training Material. 
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Cash Controls --- Ticket Controls — Safes

Opening Comments

We are entrusted by our Clients with a tremendous portfolio of real estate and
established businesses". 

Specifically, what are we entrusted with? 

Money... lots of money... and Tickets ( they have value too)! 
Their Business / Real Estate! 

Their Customer's Satisfaction! 

Their REPUTATION! 

Not only do we represent Denison each day, 
we represent the client in our dealings as well. 

Handout: Little; Daily 1( dings) 

Real Estate Values

Calculated Using Capitalization Rate

Also known as Cap Rate ) 

Garage A 1, 622,990

Garage B 2, 137,286

Garage C 984,611

Garage D 1, 735, 845

Garage E 1, 897, 501

Garage F 1, 445,212

Garage G 1, 136 285

10, 959, 730

Less 10% Structural Reserve $ ( 1, 095, 973) 

Less Est. Real Estate Tax $ ( 400,000) 

Sub -Total $ 9,463,757

DIVIDE by Cap Rate ( 8% or .08) $ 118,296,963

NOTE: When using this type of calculation, the Cap Rate is the variable used

urinq sale negotiation. It is based upon recent comparable sales of simila

acilities (Comps) or other economic data/ statistics
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Experiment with the formula using different rates. 

As you can see, the value of the properties we manage is tremendous. What can you

do to impact this? 

he little thins you do on a daily basis WILL affect the value of your client' s business. 

11 Scenario: 

Let' s assume you' ve done your Diversity & Oversell homework and determined you

can add just 5 more monthly customers at $ 125 a month. All of your expenses and

taxes are already covered, so no additional costs are incurred to add this business. 

125 x 5 Customers x 12 months .... Then divide by a Cap Rate of 8%. 

You' ve iust added $93,750 to the value of your client's asset! 

You can also achieve this type of success by implementing expense saving
measures. 

The little things you do every day are

IMPORTANT! 

Fabulous Job Performance Tools

You' ve been provided a set of fabulous tools to perform your job. 

Denison Operations Manual (& Denison forms) 

Geneva

1. Composite Report

2. Denison Reconciliation Report

3. Bank Deposit Report

4. Due From Parker Report

5. Payment Report

Paris

1, Aging Sheet

2. Payment Reports

3. Parker/Card Lists

Lotus Notes



WWW

MS Excel

MS Word

Revenue Control Reports

1. Cleared, cancelled

2. Count

3. Journal tapes from the register

Cas, j/Ticket Controls, Safes

McGann, SCAN NET) 

and/or void reports

reports

You have everything you need to achieve OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE! 

But.... you must use the tools provided or you will fail. 

It' s your job to use them! 

We' re not going to read through the Ops Manual and touch on each and every
possible operational challenge as each property has nuances that differ from the
property next door. 

We will, however, touch an all of the basics... the things you MUST DO ! 

I. CASH CONTROLS

Refer to Section 4 of the Operations Manual) 

A. Petty Cash Issue Agreement ( 1- landout:. Petty Cash issue Agreement) 
Remember, you signed for it. 

Protect it. 

It' s essentially your money !!! 

B. Petty Cash At The Facility
Now that you've signed for operating cash, what do you do with it? 
This fund is issued for two purposes. 

Operating funds for your Cashiers to process sales. 
Operating cash for you to make necessary purchases
to run the business (supplies, paint, etc.) 

Note; These funds are not to be used for personal reasons. 

C. Petty Cash Log ( Handout: Petty Cash Log) 

This form PROTECTS YOUR MONEY! Use It! 



Form) 
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This form is used when issuing Petty Cash to Cashiers or Attendants
and shifts responsibility for the cash from you to them. 
Any Petty Cash issue or transfer from one person to another requires
documentation. 

D. Petty Cash Reimbursement Form ( Handout: Petty Cash Reimbursement

As the name implies, this form is turned in to the corporate office so you

can receive reimbursement for petty cash spent on supplies. 

The Petty Cash at each location needs to be audited on a regular basis. 
At busy locations with cashier banks ( same as Petty Cash) changing
hands, or at locations where several people have access, this should be

reconciled daily! 

As a Manager, you are responsible for this

cash! 

E. Bank Deposits

Separate Slips for each type of revenue

i. e.; Transient; Monthly; Validation; etc. 
Determine a cutoff time for your bank deposit each day. Do not
make several deposits in one day for this revenue. Payments

received after the cutoff time can go on the next day's business. 
How often do you go to the bank? 

Every Day!!! 
Get receipts.... Make copies. 

Verify the bank deposit slip matches what is in PARIS and
GENEVA - do not forward any business to the office until this is
verified. 

Payments for Monthly parking are NOT to be held until the
beginning of the Month being paid. 

For exam le if you receive a check paying September parking on August
25th, 

post

the payment in Paris for August
25th

and deposit the payment when you deposit other

revenues for that same business day. 

Banking Tip: 

When receiving Monthly payments.... Post them !!! 

Verify the monthly checks to the batch and or payments reports in PARIS before
taking any monthly deposits to the bank. (Handout: Paris Payment) 
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Verify the batch and or payment report in PARIS matches your deposit slip before
taking any monthly deposits to the bank. 
Consider logging ail checks and include the log with your daily report as detailed
back-up for the deposit. 

II. TICKET CONTROLS

Refer to Section 4 of the Operations Manual) 

Remember -- Tickets have value too! 

Adequate controls over them are REQUIRED by you! 

Example Under our current Simon agreements, we can be penalized financially for
high -ticket losses that are not explained. 

A. Ticket Inventory Log ( handout: Ticket Inventory Log) 

You MUST keep accurate records of tickets in inventory, new tickets arriving into
inventory and tickets issued from inventory, 

B. Missing Tickets

We cannot stress enough the importance of accurately tracking
tickets. 

This is a HUGE issue with potentially HUGE repercussions for failing
to manage appropriately. 
Verify your missing ticket number to be correct daily. Many times the
missing ticket number is high due to an accounting or data entry
error. 

Resolve any problems with missing tickets before sending your
locations data up as complete and document your reason for missing
ticket issues. 

III. SAFES & CASH HANDLING

A. Safes - Various Types

Single Key
o Generally smaller units for smaller amounts of cash. 
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o Provides easy access by cashiers and attendants when
a manager or supervisor isn' t available to issue cash. 

Double Key
o Higher level of security by design. 
o Provides ability for more than one person to " witness" 

the contents of the safe when opened. 

o Often found in offices and booths. 

NOTE: A spare set of keys must be kept in the safe at the

corporate office. 

Combination

o Generally a higher level of security with ability to be
opened by just one person. 

NOTE: The combination must be kept in the safe at the

corporate office. 

All safes must be securely mounted to the floor or wall. 
When you experience employee turnover involving someone
who has the combination to your safe, be smart and have it

changed if the employee may still have access to it. Re -key
the locks to your office if you feel it' s necessary. 

B. Cashier Drops & Drop Log

It is important that large amounts of money are NEVER left in
the cash drawer during a shift. The attendant MUST make

frequent drops of $200 if the shift dictates this. In other words, 

if a cashier has a $ 1, 000 shift, 4 drops of $ 200 each are

required periodically throughout the shift, with the final end of
shift amount counted at the end of the shift. 

These drops are to be made in a safe with a witness

whenever possible. 

We realize each location has nuances that may require this
policy to be adjusted slightly, but close attention to this portion
of cash handling is mandatory to prevent large losses. 
Each drop must be properly documented on the Drop Safe
Log. 
Handouf_ Drop Sato Log) 
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IV OTHER CONTROLS

A. Ops Manual 6.26 — All equipment such as Gate boxes, Exit Stations & 

Ticket Spitters MUST remain locked at all times. 

B. Ops Manual 6. 18 - Debit Vouchers are necessary... sometimes! ( Handout: 

Uebi4 Voucher-) At some point in time you may encounter a customer
who does not have, nor do they have the means to procure, funds

necessary to pay for parking. Use of a Debit Voucher should be a last

resort. 

C. Ops Manual 6. 8 — Cashier Shortages must be monitored closely. A motto

of " We do not employ people who are short money", or " Three Strikes and

You' re Out" should be followed. After all, a cashier's job is to handle money
properly. If an employee cannot do this, you need to replace them. Be sure to

receive approval from HR before every termination. 

NOTE: When a cashier has a shortage, you must begin counseling immediately. Let

them know they are short, which accounts for an initial verbal counseling. If short a

second time within a given period, produce and present a written Counseling
Statement advising that further shortages may result in Suspension or Termination. 

You must be consistent with this discipline! 

Be sure to document and track all shortages. 

D. Ops Manual 6. 32 — Cashier Breaks. You must not give breaks without

following proper procedures. Be sure to account for tickets and monies

generated by the employee before they go on break, and again for the relief
cashier before the original cashier resumes their shift. 

E. Coupons — Be sure that all Coupons redeemed are stamped VOID after the

cashier turns them in. This will prevent someone from removing them and
falsifying tickets at a later time. 

Closing Comments: 

It' s almost a guarantee that if you don' t properly put in place
the procedures and controls provided for you to use, someone

WILL take advantage of you! 

Each one of you were hired because you impressed upon

someone that you are an intelligent professional and capable

of making good decisions. 
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In other words, you were hired to think through scenarios and

troubleshoot each one to a solution. 

In addition to the chest full of tools you have been provided, you are also

surrounded by an incredible pool of talented people who are genuinely interested
in your success. 

Don' t be afraid to tap into those resources. 

NOTES: 



K. Discussion of the City' s current parking rate structure of $ 1. 25 per hour ( unadjusted

for peak days/ hours/ locations) and any other recommendations based on prior clients
or general industry practice. City currently has a boat launch and charges $ 10 for a

24 - hour period to park a boat trailer. 

Below is an on -street parking rate survey for other cities similar to Pompano Beach. We feel the

1. 25 per hour parking rate currently charged to park at a meter is in- line with other cities across
the State of Florida. With the replacement meter heads we have proposed, parking rates can be

adjusted by street which will allow you charge a higher rate per hour when special events take
place in the City. We currently enforce a similar boat launch parking lot in Ft. Myers, and we
have recommended to the City to increase the parking rate to launch a boat and park the
vehicle and trailer on the lot at a rate of $ 10. 00 for both. 

On -Street Meter Rates

City 1st Hr. 

Fort Myers 75 -cents

Gainesville 50 -cents

St. Petersburg 1. 00

St. Augustine 1. 50

Delray Beach 1. 50

Yabor City Free



L. Discussion of planned collection efforts to maximize collections on outstanding

parking citations. Proposers should incorporate specific experience/success in this area
with other client references to include client name, contact name, title, phone, email, etc. 

and approximate value or receivables managed annual collections and annual collection

rate for client' s most recent fiscal year. 

Denison would outsource the collections of the citation to Nupark or Passport parking. 

10 days after the citation is written, and if the citation is not paid, a collection letter will be sent to

the violator; "this is referred to as soft collections". After 30 days if the citation is not paid, it is

sent to a collection company " this is referred to has hard collections." The collection company
will make collection calls and send letters to the violators which includes out of state plates. The

collection company has the ability to place the outstanding citation on the violator's credit report
or even place a lien on their vehicle. 

We are averaging about a 70 - 80% collection ratio in the City of Fort Myers, Florida the contact
name for our Ft Myers client is listed below: 

Leigh Scrabis

Deputy Director
Fort Myers CRA

1400 Jackson St., Suite 102

Fort Myers, FL 33901

Main Number: (239) 321- 7100

Fax Number: ( 239) 344-5911

Email: Iscrabls cityftrTiyers. com



M. Discussion on any proposed efforts to enhance collections on parking citations
written for out of state violators. 

For out of state Registered Owner look ups, Denison will use data from a number of nationwide

Registered Owner lookup services. These services retrieve vehicle registered -owner information
from all 51 US Departments of Motor Vehicles ( DMVs), including the District of Columbia, many
Canadian provinces, and apportioned vehicles in Mexico. 

Additionally plates will be cross referenced with other parking services sold in the area for
additional vehicle data. 

Collection calls, and letters will be made to the violator, unpaid citations will be placed on the

violator credit report as well as a lien placed on their vehicle



N. Discussion of transition plan, inclusive of detailed tasks to be completed, and planned

coordination effort with BSO, the City' s current parking enforcement partner. 

Please find the attached Denison Parking, Inc. Transition Manual for your review. 
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DENISON PARKING, INC. 

TRANSITION MANUAL

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH
Management of Parking Operations

Date: May 2014



This Transition Manual has been written by Denison Parking, Inc. ( Denison) for

the use of Denison and the City of Pompano Beach and its Affiliates for the
purpose of effecting a transition of the operation of the management of parking
operations to Denison. It contains confidential and proprietary information
related to Denison' s business and operational methods. The transfer or

dissemination of this manual or its contents via any means to parties other than
its intended recipient may be accomplished only with the written consent of
Denison. 
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INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this transition manual is to help ensure a timely and effective change in
operational management at major parking facilities. 

Denison Parking recognizes that owners, managers and partners in major real estate
developments have different and complex goals regarding the parking component of
their developments. While some owners may seek revenue maximization as the end
goal, others see parking as not only a potential profit center, but a means to enhance
leasing and sales. To that end, revenue maximization may be mitigated by special
pricing and services designed to embellish the project's overall marketability. Part of our

intent with this manual is to ensure that we have a thorough understanding of our client' s
goals and philosophy regarding the interaction of the parking component and the entire
development. 

The successful change in management at parking facilities is largely dependent on
effective communication, exchange of information and job tasking in a compressed time
frame. A material amount of information needed by an incoming operator can only be
obtained from or through the client. Detailing that type of information to ensure a timely
exchange of critical information such as current accounts receivable, validation

programs and special rate pricing provides a road map for the client and operator. 
Within the operator' s company, several different departments and job disciplines must
coordinate activities to effect the transition. Accounting, human resources, administration
and operations all have a role to play, and this manual provides the playbook. 

Finally, this manual will serve as a short form, broad brush to do list for all of the persons
involved in the transition. By sweating the details in advance, we hope to avoid any
problems whatsoever, whether with issues directly controlled by us, or with sub- 

contractors and vendors whose timely and effective performance affects ours. 

To our clients, vendors and associates, Denison Parking offers its thanks for your role in
completing this transition manual. it is indeed the first, and perhaps most crucial step in
ensuring a successful parking operation. 

A complete and thorough physical inspection of the facility is crucial as early in the
transition process as possible. Having a proper understanding of the physical plant
impacts every operating, accounting and administration function from personnel
scheduling to accounts receivable management. It is logical that the physical inspection

is the first phase of an effective transition. 

Physical Inspection Team: 

Report Prepared By: 

Physical Inspection Reviewed By: 

1. Location — Provide the street address of the facility. If multiple locations, 

note the address of each. 
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PHYSICAL INSPECTION

2. Description of Facility: 

Multi- level garage, surface, other. 

Describe mechanical and vertical transportations systems: 

number of elevators for persons and/or automobiles, auto

lifts, man lifts and their condition. 

Describe general operation: self -park, valet, or attendant

park, aisle stacking, auto lifts, etc, 

Total number of parking spaces: 

Number of self -park spaces: 

Number of stack spaces, if any: 0

Number and location of reserved spaces, if any, and for who
reserved: 

Number of handicap spaces: 

Other: 

3. Approximate age of facility. 

4. Describe the number of entrance and exit plazas, their street and level

location, the number of entrance or exit lanes within each plaza, and the

control equipment within each lane. Include digital photos. 

5. Describe the number, size, location, construction and condition of cashier

booths. Indicate if telephones, intercom stations and alarms are currently
installed or needed if not currently installed. 

6. Describe revenue control equipment including manufacturer, approximate
age and general condition. 

Ticket Dispensers: 

Barrier Gates: 

Treadles: 

Card Readers and Type: 

Fee Computers/ Exit Vend: 
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PHYSICAL INSPECTION

Camera Systems: 

Drop Safes and location: 

Offline or central host computer ( include software): 

Central Cashier, POF, etc., and locations: 

y Other: 

7. Transient Tickets. Describe type ( bar code, mag stripe, standard spitter, 
hand issued). Attach photo copies of samples and describe size. 

8. Monthly Parking. Describe access card technology, hang tags, etc. 

9. Signage

Y Is signage adequate overall? Describe deficiencies. 

y Are clearance bars properly located at entrance and any
other areas where clearance changes within the structure? 

Is there a sign ordinance and is the location in compliance? 

10. Rates. 

11. Attach a listing of rates for all categories of parking. Include events, 

discounts, promotions, etc. 

Detail validation programs and methods. Attach samples. 

12. Overall hours of operation by day of week. 

13. Number of cashiers, attendants or valet personnel per shift by day of week. 
Include location. This section should represent the staffing schedule
exclusive of maintenance and security personnel. 

14. Describe uniform requirements. 
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PHYSICAL INSPECTION

15. Is overnight parking permitted? If yes and the facility is not attended on a
24 hour basis, describe current and/or recommended method of collecting
fees and determining cars left on lot at closing/on lot at opening. 

16. Lighting. Describe overall quality of lighting system. Note uneven

distribution, hoticold spots and areas where deficiencies present a security
or personal injury hazard. Describe type ( fluorescent, incandescent, high

pressure sodium, mercury halide, etc.) Are fixtures in good condition? 

Any out? 

17. Who is responsible for maintaining the lighting, electrical systems and
changing bulbs and ballasts? 

18. Security. Is the garage patrolled by security personnel, how and on what
schedule? Who contracts and supervises the security personnel? Attach

a copy of post orders if possible. Describe security systems such as
cameras, panic alarms, fences, gates, watch clock stations and vehicles. 

19. Major Housekeeping. Is the owner, operator or a third -party contractor
responsible for Housekeeping? If a third -party contractor, who is

responsible for contracting and supervising them? 

20. Describe the general duties of the third -party housekeeper and obtain post
orders if possible. 

21. If Denison is to perform the housekeeping, please answer the following: 
NIA

Describe major equipment to be provided by the owner such as
sweepers: 

Describe how refuse is removed ( dumpster, etc.) 

Describe the number and schedule of required housekeeping
persons. 

Any special housekeeping issues such as lack of drainage, lack of
convenient water supplies, electrical outlets, wheel stops, elevator

or lobby flooring requiring special materials or care, retail or office
space on ground floor or building skin presenting a water run- off
problem? 
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PHYSICAL INSPECTION

y Will Denison or a subcontractor perform snow removal? Describe

scope of snow removal? If any snow removal tasks are to be
provided by Denison, please itemize tools and equipment

provided and/or required. 

22. Describe the kind of driving and pedestrian surfaces in the facility
including stairwells and their condition (asphalt, concrete, membranes, and
painted areas). Describe condition of expansion joints, drainage, etc. 

Describe the structural condition and design of the facility. List major

structural problems such as spalling, delamination, broken/ damaged PT or
restrictive cabling, floor cracking, significant rusting of structural

members, risers, stairwell caps or pans, etc. 

23. Describe exterior walls and fencing (condition and material). 

24. Does the facility have a garage office? If so, describe its condition and

adequacy for performing the operational functions. Does it have a view of

the major cashiering exit plaza, camera monitors, etc? Describe major

equipment and systems installed. 

25. Describe life safety and fire control systems such as sprinklers ( wet or
dry), fire extinguishers, smoke detectors, carbon monoxide detectors, etc. 

Is the garage ventilated by open parapet walls or exhaust fans? If exhaust

fans, please describe number per floor and whether turned on/off manually
or by carbon monoxide sensors. If manual, number of hours per day
operated. Describe emergency lighting systems and their power supply. 

26. Describe communication systems in elevator. Who is responsible for

maintenance of these systems and responds to calls? 

27. Are there any ADA issues that need to be addressed? Are handicap and
van accessible spaces sufficient and readily accessible? Is wheelchair

access to the elevators and mall entrances compliant? Are parking booths
compliant with Federal and local codes? 

28. Are restrooms available? Employees, patrons or both? Men' s, women' s, 

unisex? Handicap accessible and ADA compliant? Locations. 

29. Are there locker rooms, break rooms, kitchens, etc., provided for use by
employees? Location. 

30. Describe location and condition of major electrical panels for the facility. 
Are they in good condition? Describe specialty sub -systems such as
lighting timers, emergency generators, etc. 

31. Describe cold weather issues such as need to drain water standpipes, 
inspect sprinkler systems, etc. 
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PHYSICAL INSPECTION

32. Describe any other major characteristic that may affect Denison' s
operation such as landscape maintenance, traffic problems on -street that

may inhibit entrancinglexiting, need for restriping, other recommendations. 



DP,,, iSON PARKING, INC. TRANSITION LAN

GENERAL PRE -OPENING TASKS

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

1. Complete the rates

spreadsheet. 

2. Complete the key vendor list. 
3. Complete the regular and

emergency contact lists. 
4. Obtain copy of garage plans

layout, striping flow plan, 
graphics and electrical). 

5. Verify which parking and office
equipment will remain at

change over. Complete
attached list. 

6. Determine expenses paid

directly by client or contracted
directly by client. 

7. Prepare pro -forma operating
budget. 

8. Secure accounts receivable, 

card access and aged trial

balances information for AIR

from client or incumbent t
operator. Contact Accounting
for programming and data entry
information for start-up. 

9. Accounting to pre- program
Paris A/ R system. 

10. Obtain copies of monthly
parking contracts in force, 
special rates offered tenants, 

etc. 

11. Prepare and send letter and

post notices to monthly Parkers
about management change with

billing and payment instructions. 
12. Complete the manpower and

operating schedules attached to
this section, Contact human

resources and secure new hire

packets and job advertising
information if an ad is needed. 

Provide HR with copy of
manpower assessment. 
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GENERAL PRE -OPENING TASKS

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

13. If possible, interview and

attempt to hire existing
personnel subject to standard

HR policies and client feedback. 

14. Contact headquarters to order

tickets at least four weeks in

advance. To designate multiple

ticket dispensers, order a

different color stock for each
r

dispenser as well as an alpha

prefix for each series. Any
custom logos will be needed

from the client in camera ready
or digital format. Complete the
attached Exhibit II ticket order

form. 

15. As above, order special tickets

such as special events, valet, 

and stall locator stubs. 

16. Order a one month supply of
paper and ink products for ticket

dispensers, fee computers and

other parking equipment. 

17. In the event ordered tickets will

not be available and for use in

emergencies, order a 30 day
supply of blank stock tickets in
the proper format. 

18. Order office phone service and

phone sets, including at least
one regular phone line plus one

data line. Determine needs and

discuss with accounts payable

and accounting. if an extension
is ordered for cashier booths, 

put a block on long distance
and any other toll calls. Insert

hone numbers here. 

19. Order necessary cell phones
and pagers. Insert numbers

here. 
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GENERAL PRE -OPENING TASKS

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

20. Order necessary two- way radio
communications and equipment. 

21. Institute payroll processing
routine with accounting. 

22. Order time clocks or other

needed time recording
equipment. 

23. Verify who pays all utility costs. 
Have service changed over to

Denison, if appropriate, to be

effective on the takeover date. 

24. Letterhead and envelopes. 

25. Order floor indicators and

displays. 

26, Order new signage and/ or

signage overlays, paying special
attention to signs that need

updating with Denison' s name, 
logo, telephone numbers, etc. 

27. Verify liability signs in place; 
order if needed. 

28. Overnight mail supplies. 

29. Accounts payable forms, 

30. Immobilization notices. 

31. General office supplies. 

32. Fax machine if not provided. 

33. Reports and Forms. 

34. Computers/ printers/ calculators. 

Determine need and units

supplied by owner, if any. Order
computers through headquarters

IT department. 

35. Determine needs for office

furniture and filing cabinets. 
Submit budget to RM for

approval. 

36. Order access cards if needed, 

allowing six weeks for delivery. 
37. Bank Accounts. Verify need

and contact accounting to have
new accounts opened. If

Owner' s depository account, 
secure account info from client. 

38. Describe how deposits will be

made including interim deposits
and pick- ups, cash storage until
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GENERAL PRE -OPENING TASKS

bank deposit, bank deposit
procedure. 

39. Order necessary drop safes - 
typically one per booth. 

40. Order office depository safe, 
Note: if armored car service to

be used, a dual key safe will be
needed, and one key provided
to the carrier. 

41. Secure deposit slips. 

42. Secure tamper -proof deposit
bags. 

43. Secure night depository or lock
box key. 

44. Contract and schedule armored

car service if needed. All

contracts must be executed at

headquarters. 

45. Obtain information from client

regarding operating banks
transferable from client or

incumbent operator, if an . 

46. Secure operating banks from
accounting if none provided by
client. 

47. Schedule time to debrief with

current BSO officers who

currently work the area to
gather any information, best
practices, etc. about parking
citation enforcement in the

area. 

48. Determine uniform needs and

type of service. Get proposals

and contract for rentals; send to

headquarters for review and

execution. Order purchased

uniforms from the appropriate

supplier. 

49. Determine security and off-duty
police needs. Take bids and

secure sample contracts if the

service is to be contracted by
Denison. Provide emergency
contact information to security
service. See Key Vendor list. 



DE, iSON PARKING, INC. TRANSITION eLAN

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

At the time of takeover, perform the following: 

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

1. Secure transferable operating
banks. 

2. Secure updated accounts

receivable aging schedule

reflecting payments on account
through takeover. 

3. Provide outgoing operator with
our mailing address so they can
forward payments on account

after takeover. Do this in

written form. 

4. Secure keys to facility and
equipment. Note: Walk through

facility with owner and/ or
operator and verify that you are
receiving all necessary keys, 
including elevator emergency
keys. Have operator open all

doors, etc., to verify. 
5. Have parking equipment vendor

present at takeover; perform an

inspection of all equipment; list

any outstanding repairs
needed; program passwords on

all password protected systems

for project manager and show

project manager how to

program cashier passwords, 

etc. Get a demo. Have receipt
headers programmed to read

Denison Parking, Inc. 
6. Schedule equipment vendor

after opening to do a complete
training session. 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

7. Inventory all equipment spare
parts. See form, Have

outgoing operator sign in, 
transferring the inventory
physically on -hand and also an
inventory of items in transit with
repair facilities. Compare this k
with inventory information
provided by Owner or Client. 

8. Inventory all office equipment
being turned over. Verify
working condition. Have
operator sign list. 

9. Verify working order of any
maintenance vehicles and

equipment such as vehicles, 

sweepers, scrubbers, etc. Start

those engines. 

10. Document number of vehicles

in garage at takeover for carry
forward revenue. Enter number

on appropriate form and/or in

STARR. 

11. Physically inspect any valet
cars for damage; make list of

license plate numbers; verify
keys; complete valet inventory
form. 

12. Load tickets and other paper

products. 

13. Issue change banks to

incoming cashiers or floating
funds to booths. 

14. Have fire control systems

vendor review equipment for

proper working order and give
or schedule demo. You must

learn how to reset false alarms

at takeover. 

15. Program cashier codes for next

business day. 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

16. Document facility condition at
takeover. See form. Take

hoto ra hs of deficiencies. 

17. Get to work! 

Prepared by: 

Reviewed by: 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

1. Interview Project Manager and

on- site operations personnel

and document unusual issues

or matters. 

2. Identify staffing ineeds and
prepare or obtain job

descriptions for each position

necessary. Assist operations
personnel in completing staffing
needs schedule. 

3. In a one location city, prepare a
staffing contingency plan and
contract with a manpower

services group to provide
temporary labor on short notice
in the case of absenteeism and

call outs. 

4. Obtain and provide new hire I

packages. 

5. Obtain any organized labor
agreements in force. 

6. Prepare abstract of existing
labor agreements, if any, and
provide to regional office, 

headquarters executives and

location manager. 

7. Assist operations personnel in

completing hiring process for
each position. 

8. Provide employee information

to payroll and/or accounting. 
9. Schedule orientation for new

employees to include a

headquarters HR

representative. 

10. Identify necessary training
programs and schedule

sessions. 

11. Prepare employee emergency
contact list and furnish to

headquarters and regional

offices. 

12, Place initial help wanted ads
TASK

13, Provide all necessary policy, 
HR or Accounting manuals to
location manager. 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

14. Provide all necessary labor
regulatory and/ or union
postings to location manager

and verify posted

conspicuously. 
15. Schedule times, dates and

location for accepting
applications and conducting
interviews

Prepared By: 

Reviewed By: 



DE,, t'SON PARKING, INC. TRANSITION FLAN

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

1. Complete abstract of

operating agreement; 
Calendar Data Form; Lease

or Management Agreement

Data Form. Distribute to

Accounting, Moore, 
Regional and HR. 

2. Complete facility review
section and other relevant

sections, providing key
information about facility. 
Distribute to Accounting, HR
and Administration so their

tasks may be completed in
a timely manner. 

3. Determine and order

computers and other data

processing equipment. 
Office Depot Card. 

4. Determine and order FF& E. 

5. Order necessary phone
lines including high speed
lines for data processing. 

6. Order changeover of all

utility accounts to be paid by
Denison. 

7. Complete key vendor's list
addressing every major type
of vendor needed; set up
new vendor accounts to

include necessary credit
info as needed. 

8. Set up chart of accounts
and A/P calendar; provide

forms and instructions to

local staff as needed to

implement A/P. 

9. In conjunction with HR, 

verify that all necessary
information is received and

entered for timely payroll
processing. 

10. Instruct local staff on payroll

processing procedures; 
provide calendar and cut- off

dates; establish method of

data entry and transfer; 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

specify records retention. 
11. Establish records retention

schedule; filing system and
storage set up for all
records to be maintained by
local staff. 

12. Instruct local staff on audit

procedures. Develop and
provide daily, weekly, 
monthly and annual audit
schedule for staff and

headquarters personnel. 

13. Provide and/or review job

descriptions of local

management, administrative

and clerical personnel

assigned to tasks at the

facility; review systems and
equipment; set up
separation of duties tasks; 

verify computers and all
other systems are

appropriately password
protected to ensure mission

critical separation of duties; 

obtain all passwords to be

maintained at headquarters

in the event of an

emergency. 

14. Review office supply order
before ordering

15. Review and place ticket

order_ 

16. Ship initial supply of all
Denison forms. 

17. Order necessary business
cards through headquarters. 

18. Set up STARR and train
local management/clerical

in its use. 

19. Set up Denison email. 
20. Verify card inventory and

set up controls. 

21. Set up Paris A/ R system; 
perform card audit of active

cards versus billing of
outgoing operator; make
corrections in cards stem. 

22. Program accounts and

balances into Paris. 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

23. Train staff on Paris

Systems. Perform first

billing and complete first
cycle with local staff. 

24. Set up validation program
and procedures taking into
account all validation types

and formats. Inventory
supplies of coupons, 

stamps, valometers, etc. 

Draft and implement

location specific

procedures. 

25. Perform a file audit to

ensure necessary files are
set- up and contain
appropriate documentation

including signed contract. 
26. Read all tenant contracts

and abstracts related to the

location or secure a

compilation of tenant

parking agreements and
determine effect on

managing parking
operation. Prepare

summary and distribute to
location manager; field audit

and accounting. 

27. Go over the preparation of

the Operating Plan with
location manager. Provide

template and set due date

for preparation. 

28, Go over all company
manuals with location

manager. Upon completion, 

manager should document i

items reviewed and

provided. 

29. Review/secure all existing
peripheral service contracts

such as janitorial, 

maintenance agreements, 

security agreements, 
uniform agreements, etc. 

Prepare abstract and

distribute to Accounting and
Operations personnel. 

30. Ensure location staff t
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

understands procedures

related to insurance claims, 

monthly reporting, special

reports and accounting

procedures. 

31. Secure temporary office, 
storage, interview space. y

32. Designate start-up team, set
travel schedule, airfare, 

accommodations

33. Provide lane set- up info to
Davis for Starr

34. Insurances notifications, 

bindings, certificates

a

35. Place initial uniform order

36. Review pro -forma budget

and assumptions prepared

by operations personnel. 
Investigate unusual items. 

Prepare memo. 

37. Document accounting' s
understanding of on- site
conditions and equipment

and accounting systems
cash receipt handling, 

accounts receivable; 

payables, G/ L, checking
accounts, etc.) as they
relate to the new account, 

38. Document understanding of
client' s reporting
requirements and cycles. 

39. Identify all bank accounts to
be used. Open accounts as

necessary. 
40. Obtain signature cards for

bank accounts. 

41. Obtain night depository
agreements. 

42. Obtain endorsement

stamps, bank deposit slips, 

bank bags for delivery to
location manager. 
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ACCOUNTING

43. Verify if credit cards are
accepted or to be accepted. 

Set up necessary merchant
accounts; order processing
equipment and telephone

lines. 

44. Document special operating
funds, operating advances, 
expense reimbursements, 

and negative cash flow

issues, 

45. Complete and obtain

necessary business
licenses. 

46. Establish Petty cash and
change funds for project

47. Verify sales and use taxes; 
obtain and complete

applications; obtain

necessary form to file. 
48. Obtain copies of prior two

years financial statements

for use in preparing financial
statements and setting up
report. 

49. Set up chart of accounts. 
50. Determine accounting and

budget year of owner or

contract. 

51. Complete and/ or secure

initial operating budget, 
52. Obtain worker' s

compensation rates, SUTA

rates, cutoffs, etc. 

53. Obtain a copy or develop
parking roster of monthly
parkers, rates, access cards

issued, access cards in

inventory, go forward A/ R
balances. Set-up A/ R
system and train on- site

personnel. 

54. Obtain new vendor

information and set up
vendors. Prepare and

distribute all necessary
letters or notifications

needed by existing or new
vendors; tenants; monthly

arkers; Fire/ Police

10
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Departments; Postal

Services, etc. 

55. Provide accounting forms
package to location to

include all necessary forms
to be used in cash receipts, 

daily audit, A/ P, A/ R, 
payroll, damage reporting, 
etc. 

56. Verify validations programs f

and order coupons needed. ' 

Establish validation

inventory, reconciliation and
audit procedures. 

57. Establish audit procedures

for on- site personnel. 

58. Establish and document
separation of duties and job

description for on- site

personnel.. 

59. Review all cash headlining
procedures and approve. 

60. Review and approve ticket

inventory procedures. 
61. Document and distribute

records retention schedule. 

Designate who can approve

of records disposal. 

62. Document internal/ external

audit requirements of client

and set first year's

schedule. 

63. Obtain off-site storage for

records, if necessary. 

Prepared By: 

Reviewed By: 
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NEW ORELANS CENTRE

MARKETING/ PROMOTION AND OPERATING PLANS

TASK PERSON DUE DATE COMPLETED

RESPONSIBLE

1. Obtain tenant roster for

monthly parking to
determine existing
programs and

commitments. 

2. Review promotional signage

and existing promotions. 

3. Complete market analysis; 

current and future trend of

demand, competition, rate

analysis, occupancy levels. 
4. Prepare analysis and

recommendations for client. 

5. Verify existing customer
notification and

announcements. 

6. Verify websites, trade
journals, magazines, etc., 

receive announcement of

opening and award. 

7. Identify at least one major
project for immediate

improvement after the initial

takeover is complete. 

8. Identify and initiate amenity
programs such as floor

indicator notes, windshield

washing, car washing, 
tenant appreciation days, 

etc. 

9. Within first week after

takeover distribute candy, 
pastries, coffee or other

event for customers. 

10. Set up personal meeting
with every major parking
client. 

11. Coordinate preparation of

the master Plan of

Operations to be completed

within 30 days of initial

takeover. 
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NEW ORELANS CENTRE

MARKETING/ PROMOTION AND OPERATING PLANS

Prepared By: 

Reviewed By: 





O. Discussion of anticipated timeframe from contract award to being fully
operational

Denison Parking, Inc. would be fully operational 30 days from signing of contract. We
would Eike to have a 30 day transition period during this same timeframe in order to
ensure a smooth transition of information, processes. We feel this will ensure all transfer

of information will adequately take place and further ensure our successful takeover of
the operations. 





I;CP,if II)Ei7l, ill

SUPPORTING

DOCUMENT #3

OF2YEARS

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS



DENISON PARKING, IRC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

December 31, 2011 and 2010



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONTENTS

CONSOLIDATING INFORMATION

Independent Auditors' Report 12

Consolidating Schedule - Balance Sheet Information 13

Consolidating Schedule - Statement of Income Information 14

Consolidating Schedule of Operating Expenses 15

Page

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditors' Report 1

Consolidated Balance Sheets 2

Consolidated Statements of Income 3

Consolidated Statements of Stockholder' s Equity 4

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 6- 11

CONSOLIDATING INFORMATION

Independent Auditors' Report 12

Consolidating Schedule - Balance Sheet Information 13

Consolidating Schedule - Statement of Income Information 14

Consolidating Schedule of Operating Expenses 15



Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors

Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Denison Parking, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
stockholder' s equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and
2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Indianapolis, Indiana

March 1, 2012



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2011 and 2010

ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and equipment

2011 2010
CURRENT ASSETS

62, 499 68, 442

Cash and equivalents 4, 050, 063 4, 031, 677
Accounts receivable 52, 883 29, 868

Amounts due from parking facilities' owners 1, 297, 631 917, 017
Due from affiliates 30, 498 56, 385
Prepaid expenses and other 716,630 366, 425

Total Current Assets 6, 147, 705 5,401, 372

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and equipment 1, 616,240 1, 871, 437
Leasehold improvements 62, 499 68, 442
Less: Accumulated depreciation 1, 084,338) 1, 277, 498) 

Total Property and Equipment 594, 401 662, 381

INVESTMENT - DEFERRED COMPENSATION 79,002 46,366

INVESTMENTS IN PARKING SERVICES, LLC and

3, 511, 568 3, 061, 574

DENISON GLOBAL PARKING, LLC 135, 504 128, 900

TOTAL ASSETS 6 956,612 6, 239 019

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities on long- term debt 65,256 66, 935
Amounts due to parking facilities' owners 1, 313,547 1, 155, 619
Parking coupons and deposits 320, 891 251, 499
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1, 359,458 1, 213, 360
Due to affiliates 452, 416 374, 161

Total Current Liabilities 3, 511, 568 3, 061, 574

LONG- TERM LIABILITIES

Deferred compensation 113, 878 85,261
Equipment obligations 45, 822 108, 717

Total Long- term Liabilities 159, 700 193, 978

Total Liabilities 3,671, 268 3, 255, 552

STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY

Common stock, no par value; 1, 000 shares authorized, 

100 shares issued and outstanding 1, 000 1, 000
Additional paid -in capital 1, 039, 803 1, 039,803
Retained earnings 2, 244 541 1, 942,664

Total Stockholder's Equity 3, 285,344 2, 983,467

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY 6, 956.612 6, 239,019

See accompanying notes. 
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

See accompanying notes. 
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2011 2010
REVENUES

Parking revenue from leased facilities 3, 106, 386 2, 158, 285

Parking management contract revenue
z

4, 102, 038 3, 971, 403
Total Revenues 7, 208, 424 6, 129, 688

EXPENSES

Parking facilities rental 1, 287, 565 613, 993

Operating expenses 5, 148, 634 4, 860, 906
Depreciation 264, 082 232, 272

Total Expenses 6, 700, 281 5, 707 171

Income from Operations 508, 143 422, 517

OTHER INCOME ( EXPENSE) 
Interest income 8, 002 6, 715
Interest expense 8, 979) 9,436) 

Equity in earnings of Parking Services, LLC
and Denison Global Parking, LLC 6, 604 4, 892
Other income - net 28, 107 50, 868

Total Other Income ( Expense) 33, 734 53, 039

NET INCOME 541, 877 475, 556

See accompanying notes. 
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009

Net income

Distributions to stockholder

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010

Net income

Distributions to stockholder

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011

See accompanying notes. 
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Additional Total

Common Paid -in Retained Stockholder' s

Stock Capital Earnings Equity

1, 000 1, 039,803 1, 542, 108 2, 582, 911

475, 556 475,556

75,000) 75, 000) 

1, 000 1, 039, 803 1, 942, 664 2, 983,467

541, 877 541, 877

240, 000) 240, 000) 

L1,000 1, 039, 803 2, 244, 541 3, 285, 344
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due from parking facilities' owners

2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

157, 928 270, 859) 

Net income 541, 877 475, 556
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

75, 000) 

provided by operating activities: 

527, 260) 601, 198) 

Depreciation 264,082 232,272

Equity in earnings of Parking Services, LLC
and Denison Global Parking, LLC 6,604) 4, 892) 
Increase) decrease in certain current assets: 

1 4 050063 4, 031, 677

Accounts receivable 23,015) 11, 083) 
Due from affiliates 25,887 4, 039
Prepaid expenses and other 350, 205) 58, 830

Increase ( decrease) in certain current liabilities: 

78, 000

Due to affiliates 78, 255 2, 869) 

Parking coupons and deposits 69,392 5, 313
Accrued expenses and other 174, 715 184, 759

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 774,384 941, 925

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment in Denison Global Parking, LLC 980) 
Increase in investment - deferred compensation 32, 636) 46, 366) 

Purchases of property and equipment, net 196 102) 338, 509) 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 228,738) 385, 855) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due from parking facilities' owners 380, 614) 218, 314) 

Increase ( decrease) in amounts due to parking facilities' owners 157, 928 270, 859) 

Repayment of long- term debt 64, 574) 37, 025) 
Distributions to stockholder( 240, 000) 75, 000) 

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities 527, 260) 601, 198) 

NET INCREASE ( DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 18,386 45, 128) 

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of Year 4, 031, 677 4, 076,805

End of Year 1 4 050063 4, 031, 677

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash paid for interest 8, 979 9, 436

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Debt incurred for acquisition of equipment 78, 000

See accompanying notes. 
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2011 and 2010

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principals of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Denison Parking, 
Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries ( collectively, Parking). All material intra -entity transactions and balances
have been eliminated. 

Denison Parking, Inc., including its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Denison Parking Management, LLC and Denison

Parking Lafayette, LLC, manages parking facilities and operates certain leased parking facilities, Parking Staffing
Solutions, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Denison Parking, Inc., is a professional employer organization for

the employees of Denison Global Parking, LLC. Denison Parking, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Denison, 
Inc. ( Denison). 

Parking operates multi- level parking structures and surface parking lots under management or lease contracts. 
Four of the parking facilities managed by Parking are owned by Denison. Parking operates primarily in
Indianapolis, but also operates in Virginia, New Jersey, New York, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Washington, D. C., 
Maryland, Nevada, Louisiana, Florida, and Georgia. 

Parking' s lease arrangements and management contracts are for fixed periods and are subject to renewal. There
can be no assurance that Parking will be able to renew the leases or management contracts on favorable terms. 
The loss, or renewal on less favorable terms, of a substantial number of these arrangements could have a
materially adverse effect on Parking' s financial position or results of operations if other contracts are not obtained. 

Parking' s consolidated financial statements do not include the operating activities ( revenues and expenses) of the
facilities which it manages. Amounts collected by Parking resulting from the operating performance of the related
managed facilities are recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and included in amounts due
to parking facilities' owners. Total parking revenues for managed and leased parking facilities, which represent
gross revenues processed by Parking, approximate $ 67, 025, 000 in 2011 and $ 66,560, 000 in 2010. Revenues
processed by Parking for garages owned by the same facility owner comprise 45% of gross revenues processed
in 2011 and 49% in 2010. 

Estimates: Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported
revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used. 

Revenues: Parking revenue for leased facilities includes daily and monthly parking fees collected at leased
facilities. Management contract revenue includes the base monthly fee Parking receives on management
contracts, as well as fees for ancillary services. For certain management contracts, Parking receives a
percentage of facility net revenues above a base amount and/ or a percentage of facility costs less than a base
amount. Parking coupons and deposits includes coupons sold in advance of actual use and deposits for future
maintenance expenses. Management recognizes the revenue when earned. 

Cash and Equivalents: Cash equivalents include money market fund shares and all investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Money market fund shares are stated at fair value ( see Note 2 for discussion
of fair value measurements). Parking maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. Parking has not experienced any losses from bank accounts or money market fund
shares. 
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NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED) 

Receivables: Amounts due from parking facilities' owners represent uncollateralized management contract fees, 
which include the base monthly fee plus fees for ancillary services. Obligations are due upon receipt, but do not
accrue interest. Generally, payments are received within 30 to 45 days of receipt of the billing by the client. 
Payments of amounts due are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the client' s remittance advice. If
unspecified, Parking will discuss the payment with the client to determine how to apply the payment. 

Parking deems all receivables to be collectible and provides no allowance for doubtful accounts. Parking uses
the direct write-off method to account for uncollectable receivables. Parking had no material write- offs in 2011 or
2010. 

Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives or lease
period of the related assets using the straight- line method. Normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred. Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Machinery and equipment 5- 7 years

Leasehold Improvements 5- 7 years

Long-lived Assets: Parking reviews long- lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability is measured by comparison of the carrying amount to future net undiscounted cash
flows expected to be generated by the related asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the

impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its fair market
value. To date, no adjustments to the carrying value of Parking' s long- lived assets have been required. 

Investment -Deferred Compensation: Parking holds an investment to satisfy the deferred compensation
liability. The investment is stated at fair value. See Note 2. 

Investments In Joint Ventures are accounted for under the equity method. Under the equity method, original
investments are recorded at cost and adjusted for Parking' s share of undistributed earnings or losses of the
investee. Parking reviews the investments in joint ventures for losses in value that are other than temporary and
recognizes those losses. To date, Parking has not been required to recognize any losses in value that are other
than temporary. 

Advertising and promotion Costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $ 2, 257 in 2011 and $ 251 in 2010. 

Income 'faxes: Parking is a wholly-owned Qualified Subchapter S Subsidiary of Denison. As such, the taxable
income of Parking is reported on the consolidated tax return of Denison. Denison, with the consent of its
stockholders, has elected under the Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as an S Corporation. The stockholders
of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the entity' s taxable income. This election is also
valid for the state of Indiana and the majority of the other states in which Denison, Inc. and Subsidiaries conduct
business. Therefore, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in the consolidated financial
statements. Certain specific deductions and credits flow through Denison to its stockholders. Louisiana, New
York, New Jersey and Washington, D. C. do not recognize the S Corporation election filed with the internal
Revenue Service. However, Denison makes the necessary filings in these three states and the district and is
taxed at the entity level, but such taxes are not significant. 

Denison files income tax returns in the U. S, federal jurisdiction and in various other state jurisdictions. Generally, 
Denison is no longer subject to U. S. federal and state income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before
2008. 



NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ( CONTINUED) 

Subsequent Events: Parking has evaluated the consolidated financial statements f r subsequent events
occurring through March 1, 2012, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Parking categorizes its assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value into a three- level fair value hierarchy. 
The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities ( Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs ( Level 3 measurements). The asset or liability' s
fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 

Level 9 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that Parking has the ability to access. 

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation methodology may include: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and/or inputs that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a specified
contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement. 

In situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability, Parking makes estimates and
assumptions related to the pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk. 

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used by Parking for assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at
December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

Mutual Fund Shares and Money Market Fund Shares: Valued at the published net asset value ( NAV) of
the shares held by Parking at the reporting date, 

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or
reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although Parking' s management believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to

determine the fair value of these assets could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 

Following is a summary, by major nature and risks class within each level of the fair value hierarchy, of Parking' s
assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 Level Total

Cash Equivalents: 

Money market fund shares $ 2, 353,203 $ 2, 353, 203

Investment—Deferred Compensation: 

Mutual fund shares: 

Large blend funds _ 79, 002 79, 002

Total Assets at Fair Value 2 43Z2DL_ $ 2. 43 05 



NOTE 2 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS ( CONTINUED) 

2010 Level Total

Cash Equivalents: 

Money market fund shares
Investment - Deferred Compensation: 

Mutual fund shares: 

Large blend funds

Total Assets at Fair Value

2, 351, 369 $ 2, 351, 369

46,366 46,366

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, Parking had no other assets and no liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis. 

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Parking Services, LLC: Parking uses the equity method to account for its 25% interest in Parking Services, LLC, 
a joint venture providing a parking amenity program to shopping mall customers. Parking recorded income of

6, 669 in 2011 and $ 4, 893 in 2010, as its proportionate share of the Parking Services, LLC income for those
years. 

Denison Global Parking, LLC: Parking uses the equity method to account for its 491/o interest in Denison Global
Parking, LLC, a joint venture to manage metered parking, parking garages and parking lots. Parking recorded a
loss of $65 in 52011 as its proportionate share of the Denison Global Parking, LLC loss for the year. During 2010
the joint venture was formed and Parking contributed $ 980 to the entity. There was no operating activity during
2010. 

NOTE 4 - DEBT AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS

Parking has a credit facility with a bank that provides for an equipment line of credit for borrowings of up to
1, 000, 000. Borrowings bear interest at the Bank' s prime lending rate, subject to a 4. 0% minimum. The interest

rate in effect at December 31, 2011 was 4. 0%. There were no borrowings against the line of credit at December
31, 2011. Borrowings on the line are unsecured until such time they are converted into a term note secured by
the related equipment. The line of credit is subject to renewal in May 2013. The credit facility requires
compliance with certain financial and nonfinancial covenants. 

Long- term debt consisted of the following at December 31, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010

Note payable to bank in monthly installments of $ 3, 398, including
interest computed at 4, 27%, through maturity in November, 2012. 
Secured by related equipment. $ 36,584 $ 74, 879

Various capital lease obligations payable in monthly installments, 
with purchase options at the conclusion of the leases. Secured

by related equipment. 74,494 100, 773

111, 078 175, 652
Less: Current maturities 65,256 66. 935

Total Long- term Debt L 45,822 $ 108. 717



NOTE 4 - DEBT AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS ( CONTINUED) 

The future minimum capital lease payments and aggregate long- term debt maturities as of December 31, 2011, 
are as follows: 

Net Capital Lease Obligation 17A- 4- 94

NOTE 5 - OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Principal
Debt

Maturities

36, 584

Parking' s lease arrangements require it to pay the costs of operating the parking facilities including utilities, 
ordinary and routine maintenance and related payments to facility owners. Parking is generally not responsible
for major repairs and maintenance or property taxes. 

Parking leased and operated ten parking facilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The lease agreements for
the facilities are primarily for specified terms with expirations through June 2014. Some of the ( eases required
contingent monthly rentals based on an agreed upon percentage of gross parking receipts. 

Additionally, Parking leases its corporate office facility. Costs associated with the corporate office facility are
allocated to Denison and other affiliates. Rent reimbursements received from Denison and other affiliates, 
totaling approximately $ 37, 385 in 2011 and $ 31, 330 in 2010, have been offset against office rent expense, which
is included in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 

NOTE 6 - MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Parking' s management contracts expire at various dates through February 2051 and are subject to renewal
provisions. Amounts due to owners of parking facilities represent revenues collected by Parking net of facility
expenses from the management and operations of parking facilities. 

NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401( k) Retirement Savings Plan

Parking sponsors a 401( k) retirement savings plan ( the Plan) which covers substantially all Parking employees
who have completed one year of service, worked 1, 000 hours and reached the age of 18 years. Plan participants
may make pre- tax contributions to the Plan based on a percentage of their annual compensation, not to exceed
the annual limit prescribed under the Internal Revenue Code. Parking may make matching contributions to the
Plan up to 4% of participants' annual compensation. Additionally, Parking may make profit- sharing contributions
to the Plan at the discretion of Parking' s Board of Directors. Participants must meet certain eligibility
requirements to receive Parking' s discretionary contributions. Parking made matching contributions to the Plan of

34, 084 in 2011 and $ 30, 734 in 2010. No profit- sharing contributions were made in 2011 or 2010. 

E

Capital

Lease

Payable In Payments

2012 30, 073

2013 39, 740

2014 7, 920

77, 733

Less: Amount representing interest 3, 239

Net Capital Lease Obligation 17A- 4- 94

NOTE 5 - OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Principal
Debt

Maturities

36, 584

Parking' s lease arrangements require it to pay the costs of operating the parking facilities including utilities, 
ordinary and routine maintenance and related payments to facility owners. Parking is generally not responsible

for major repairs and maintenance or property taxes. 

Parking leased and operated ten parking facilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The lease agreements for
the facilities are primarily for specified terms with expirations through June 2014. Some of the ( eases required

contingent monthly rentals based on an agreed upon percentage of gross parking receipts. 

Additionally, Parking leases its corporate office facility. Costs associated with the corporate office facility are
allocated to Denison and other affiliates. Rent reimbursements received from Denison and other affiliates, 

totaling approximately $ 37, 385 in 2011 and $ 31, 330 in 2010, have been offset against office rent expense, which
is included in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 

NOTE 6 - MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Parking' s management contracts expire at various dates through February 2051 and are subject to renewal
provisions. Amounts due to owners of parking facilities represent revenues collected by Parking net of facility
expenses from the management and operations of parking facilities. 

NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401( k) Retirement Savings Plan

Parking sponsors a 401( k) retirement savings plan ( the Plan) which covers substantially all Parking employees
who have completed one year of service, worked 1, 000 hours and reached the age of 18 years. Plan participants
may make pre- tax contributions to the Plan based on a percentage of their annual compensation, not to exceed

the annual limit prescribed under the Internal Revenue Code. Parking may make matching contributions to the
Plan up to 4% of participants' annual compensation. Additionally, Parking may make profit- sharing contributions

to the Plan at the discretion of Parking' s Board of Directors. Participants must meet certain eligibility
requirements to receive Parking' s discretionary contributions. Parking made matching contributions to the Plan of

34, 084 in 2011 and $ 30, 734 in 2010. No profit- sharing contributions were made in 2011 or 2010. 

E
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NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS ( CONTINUED) 

Deferred Compensation Plan

Parking and certain of its officers have entered into a deferred compensation agreement, which provides for
certain postretirement payments. Eligible employees are fully vested upon retiremer)t or departure from Parking. 
Accrued compensation related to the Plan was $ 113, 878 and $ 85,261 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, 

respectively. 

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parking manages four parking facilities owned by Denison. Total management fees earned by Parking related to
these facilities were $ 220, 022 in 2011 and $ 272, 312 in 2010. Total maintenance fees earned by Parking relating
to these facilities were $ 141, 664 in 2011 and $ 175, 381 in 2010. 

Parking also provides accounting and information systems services to Denison and other affiliates. Costs
incurred to provide these services of approximately $32, 700 in both 2011 and 2010 were allocated to the
appropriate affiliate and netted against Parking' s costs reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. 

11
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Independent Auditors' Report

on Consolidating Information

Board of Directors

Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2011, and our report thereon dated March 1, 2012, which
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements, appears on page 1. Our

audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The consolidating schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis of the
consolidated financial statements rather than to present financial position, results of operations, and
details of operating expenses of the individual companies, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States, In our opinion, this information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole. 

Indianapolis, Indiana

March 1, 2012

12



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE - BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
December 31, 2011

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equivalents

Accounts receivable

Amounts due from parking facilities' owners
Due from affiliates

Prepaid expenses and other

Total Current Assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total Property and Equipment

OTHER ASSETS
Investment - deferred compensation

Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in Parking Services, LLC and
Denison Global Parking, LLC

Total Other Assets

Denison Denison
Denison Parking Parking
Parking, Management, Lafayette, 

Inc. LLC LLC

3, 158, 019 $ 306, 542 $ 534, 502
39,638 13, 245

1, 297, 631

28, 853 1, 645

716,630

5,240, 771 306, 542 549, 392

1, 610,640 5, 600
62, 499

1, 078,738) ( 5, 600) 
594, 401

79,002

820, 439

135,504

1, 034,945

TOTAL ASSETS 1 6, 870, 117 $ 306, 542 549, 392

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long- term debt
Amounts due to parking facilities' owners
Parking coupons and deposits
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Due to affiliates
Total Current Liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred compensation

Equipment obligations

Total Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY

Common stock

Members' equity -contributed capital
Additional paid -in capital

Retained earnings

Total Owners' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

13

65,256

1, 293, 530 $ 693 $ 19, 324
320, 891

1, 303, 334 55,644 480
442,062 10, 354

3, 425,073 66,691 19, 804

113, 878

45, 822

159, 700

3, 584, 773 66, 691 19, 804

1, 000

1, 000 1, 000
1, 039,803
2, 244, 541 238,851 528, 588
3, 285, 344 239, 851 529, 588

6, 870, 117 $ 306, 542 - 1 549 392



Parking
Staffing

Solutions, 

LLC Eliminations Consolidated

51, 000 $ 4, 050,063

52, 883

1, 297, 631

30, 498

716,630

51, 000 6, 147, 705

1, 616,240

62, 499

1, 084,338) 
594,401

79, 002

820,439

135, 504

820,439 214, 506

51, 000 $ 820,439 $ 6, 956,612

65, 256

1, 313, 547

320, 891
1, 359, 458

452.416

3, 511, 568

113, 878

45, 822

159, 700

3, 671, 268

1, 000

2, 000

51, 000 51, 000 1, 039, 803

767, 439 2, 244, 541

51, 000 820,439 3, 285,344

51, 000 $ 820,439 $ 6, 956, 612

13



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE - STATEMENT OF INCOME INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31, 2011

REVENUES

Parking revenue from leased facilities
Parking management contract revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Parking facilities rental
Operating expenses
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Income from Operations

OTHER INCOME ( EXPENSE) 
Interest income

Interest expense

Income from subsidiaries

Equity in earnings of Parking Services, LLC
and Denison Global Parking, LLC
Other income -net

Total Other Income ( Expense) 

NET INCOME

14

8, 002

8, 979) 

179, 505

6, 604

27, 248

212, 380
859

859

541, 877 I 106, 654 $ 72, 851

Denison Denison
Denison Parking Parking
Parking, Management, Lafayette, 

Inc. LLC LLC

2, 066,723 904, 584 135,079
4, 029,747 72, 291
6,096,470 904, 584 207, 370

615,093 672, 472
4, 887, 798 125, 458 135,378

264, 082

5, 766, 973 797, 930 135,378

329,497 106, 654 71, 992

8, 002

8, 979) 

179, 505

6, 604

27, 248

212, 380
859

859

541, 877 I 106, 654 $ 72, 851



Parking
Staffing

Solutions, 

LLC Eliminations Consolidated

3, 106,386

4, 102, 038

7, 208, 424

1, 287, 565

5, 148,634

264, 082

6, 700,281

508, 143

8, 002

8, 979) 
179, 505

6, 604

28, 10_7_ 

179,505 33, 734

179, 505 $ 541, 877
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
Year Ended December 31, 2011

PARKING AND MANAGEMENT
CONTRACTS COSTS

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes

Group insurance
Health and welfare

Management fee

Credit card processing fees
Bank fees

Maintenance

Property taxes
Vehicle maintenance

Expense and supplies

Fuel

Utilities

Housekeeping
Travel and entertainment

Insurance

Workers' compensation insurance

Security
Shuttle expenses

Snow removal

Uniforms and laundry

Miscellaneous

Total Parking and Management
Contract Costs

GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Executive and administrative salaries

Office rent

Professional fees

Data processing
Dues and subscriptions

Contributions

Total General and

Administrative Expenses

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

15

1, 356, 141

123, 447

73, 488
47, 059

22, 350

13, 678 375

1, 636, 163 375

4, 887, 798 _$ 125, 458 135, 378

Denison Denison
Denison Parking Parking
Parking, Management, Lafayette, 

Inc. LLC LLC

1, 260,280 69, 052 68, 077
202, 162 6, 302 7, 083
236,024 8, 135 8, 626
122, 644

43, 046

204, 158 2, 555 28,963
31, 392 6, 290 1, 310
29,985 3, 066

10,772

42, 296

313, 382 9, 357 6, 245

30, 279

82, 898 3, 929 3, 293
316 3, 127 171

198, 528

14, 697 6, 480 8, 004

3, 059 883 1, 142
5,040

349,771

5, 249
6, 575 197 548

64, 331 461 1, 916

3, 251, 635 125, 083
1

135,378

1, 356, 141

123, 447

73, 488
47, 059

22, 350

13, 678 375

1, 636, 163 375

4, 887, 798 _$ 125, 458 135, 378



Parking
Staffing

Solutions, 

LLC Consolidated

1, 397, 409
215, 547

252, 785

122, 644

43, 046

235,676
38, 992

33, 051

10, 772

42,296

328, 984

30,279

90, 120

3,614

198, 528

29, 181

5,084

5,040

349, 771

5,249
7, 320

66. 708

3. 512. 096

1, 356, 141

123,447

73,488

47,059

22, 350

14. 053

1, 636, 538

5, 148,634
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Independent Auditors' Report

Board of Directors

Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Denison Parking, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of
income; stockholder' s equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December
31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Indianapolis, Indiana

March 21, 2011

wwir.ksmcpa. eau



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2010 and 2009

ASSETS

See accompanying notes. 

2010 2009
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equivalents 4,078, 043 4, 076, 805
Accounts receivable 29, 868 18, 785
Amounts due from facilities' owners 917, 017 698, 703
Due from affiliates 56, 385 60, 424
Prepaid expenses and other 366,425 425, 255

Total Current Assets 5, 447,738 5, 279, 972

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and equipment 1, 871, 437 1, 490, 616
Leasehold improvements 68, 442 68, 442
Less: Accumulated depreciation 1, 277, 498) l

45Total Property and Equipment 662, 381 478, 9) 
INVESTMENTS IN JOIN1' VENTURES

Investment in Parking Services, LLC 127, 920 123, 027
Investment in Denison Global Parking, LLC 980

Total Investments in Joint Ventures 128, 900 123, 027

TOTAL ASSETS 6, 239, 019 X51881, 144

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities on long- term debt 46, 881 33, 904
Amounts due to facilities' owners 1, 155, 619 1, 426, 478
Parking coupons and deposits 251, 499 246, 186
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1, 279, 746 1, 124, 085
Due to affiliates 374, 161

3
377, 030

Total Current Liabilities 107, 906 3, 207, 683

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Deferred compensation 85, 261 56, 163
Equipment obligations 62, 385 34, 387

Total Long-term Liabilities 147, 646 90, 550

Total Liabilities 3, 255, 552 3, 298, 233_ 

STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY

Common stock, no par value; 1, 000 shares authorized, 

100 shares issued and outstanding 1, 000 1, 000
Additional paid -in capital 1, 039, 803 1, 039, 803
Retained earnings 12942 664 1, 542, 108

Total Stockholder' s Equity 2983467 2, 582, 911

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY 6 239 019 51881, 144

See accompanying notes. 



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
REVENUES

Parking revenue from leased facilities $ 2, 158, 285 $ 2, 765, 896
Management contract revenue 3, 971 403 3, 473, 601

Total Revenues 61129, 688 6, 239, 497

EXPENSES

Parking facilities rental
Operating expenses
Depreciation

Total Expenses

Income from Operations

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 
Interest income

Interest expense

Equity in earnings of Parking Services, LLC
Other income -net

Total Other Income

NET INCOME

See accompanying noles. 

3

613, 993 1, 346, 179

4, 860, 906 4, 590, 384
232,272 241, 078

5, 707 171 6, 177, 641

422, 517 61, 856

6, 715 9, 151

9,436) 7, 938) 

4, 892 5, 003) 
50, 868 90, 814
53, 039 87, 024

475. 556 _ $ 148, 880 . 



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIlES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER' S EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

See accompanying nates. 

J

Additional Total

Common Paid -in Retained Stockholder' s

Stock Capital Earnings Equity

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2008 1, 000 1, 039, 803 1, 618, 228 2, 659, 031

Net income 148, 880 148, 880

Distributions to stockholder 225, 000) 225, 000) 

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 1, 000 1, 039, 803 1, 542, 108 2, 582,911

Net income 475, 556 475, 556

Distributions to stockholder 75, 000) 75, 000) 

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010--- Li 000 1, 039. 803 1. 942 bb4 2, 983, 467

See accompanying nates. 
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DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW:S
Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due from facilities' owners

Increase ( decrease) in amounts due to facilities' owners

Repayment of long- term debt
Distributions to stockholder

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE ( DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of Year

End of Year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash paid for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Debt incurred for acquisition of equipment

Equipment acquired with capital lease obligations

See accompanying notes. 

218, 314) ( 47, 549) 

270, 859) 166, 845
37, 025) ( 64, 619) 
75, 000) ( 225, 000) 

601, 198) ( 170, 323) 

1, 238 ( 242, 160) 

4, 076, 805 4, 318, 965

4, 078, 043 14, 076, 805

9, 436 $ 7, 938

78, 000

45, 006

2010 2009
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 475, 556 148, 880
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 232, 272 241, 078

Equity in ( earnings) loss of Parking Services, LLC 4, 892) 5, 003
Increase) decrease in certain current assets: 

Accounts receivable 11, 083) 1, 088) 
Due from affiliates 4, 039 39, 472) 
Prepaid expenses and other 58, 830 81, 559) 

Increase ( decrease) in certain current liabilities: 
Due to affiliates 2, 869) 2, 525

Parking coupons and deposits 5, 313 52, 425
Accrued expenses and other 184, 759 89, 942) 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 941 925 237, 850

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investment in Denison Global Parking, LLC 980) 

Purchases of property and equipment 338, 509) 309, 687) 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 339, 489) 309, 687) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in amounts due from facilities' owners

Increase ( decrease) in amounts due to facilities' owners

Repayment of long- term debt
Distributions to stockholder

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE ( DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of Year

End of Year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Cash paid for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities: 
Debt incurred for acquisition of equipment

Equipment acquired with capital lease obligations

See accompanying notes. 

218, 314) ( 47, 549) 

270, 859) 166, 845
37, 025) ( 64, 619) 
75, 000) ( 225, 000) 

601, 198) ( 170, 323) 

1, 238 ( 242, 160) 

4, 076, 805 4, 318, 965

4, 078, 043 14, 076, 805

9, 436 $ 7, 938

78, 000

45, 006



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE !S

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include ( lie accounts and transactions of Denison
Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively " Parking"). All tnalerial intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. Denison Parking, Inc., including its wholly- owned subsidiaries, Denison Parking
Management, LLC and Denison Parking Lafayette, LLC, manages parking facilities and operates certain
leased parking facilities. Parking is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Denison, Inc. ( Denison). 

Parking operates multi- level parking structures and surface parking lots under management or lease
contracts. Four of the parking facilities managed by Parking are owned by Denison. Parking operates
primarily in Indianapolis, but also operates in Virginia, New Jersey, New York, Massachusetts, Minnesota, 
Washington, D. C., Maryland, Nevada, Louisiana, Florida, and Georgia. 

Parking' s lease arrangements and management contracts are for fixed periods and are subject to renewal. 
There can be no assurance that Parking will be able to renew the leases or management contracts on
favorable terns. The loss, or renewal on less favorable terns, of a substantial number of these arrangements
could have a materially adverse effect on Parking' s financial position or results of operations if other
contracts are not obtained. 

Parking' s consolidated financial statements do not include the operating activities ( revenues and expenses) 
of the facilities which it manages. Amounts collected by Parking resulting from the operating performance
of the related managed facilities are recorded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and included
in amounts due to facilities' owners. Total parking revenues for managed and leased parking facilities, 
which represent gross revenues processed by Parking, approximate $ 66,560,000 in 2010 and $ 70, 777, 000 in
2009. Revenues processed by Parking for garages owned by the same facility owner comprise 49% of gross

revenues processed in 2010 and 56% in 2009. 

Estimates: Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Those estimates and assumptions affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the
reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used. 

Revenues: Parking revenue for leased facilities includes daily and monthly parking fees collected at leased
facilities. Management contract revenue includes the base monthly fee Parking receives on management
contracts as well as fees for ancillary services. For certain management contracts, Parking receives a
percentage of facility net revenues above a base amount and/ or a percentage of facility costs less than a base
amount. 

Cash and Equivalents: Cash equivalents include money market fund shares and all investments with
original maturities of three months or less. Money market fund shares are stated at fair value ( see Note 2 for
discussion of fair value measurements). Parking maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, 
may exceed federally insured limits. Parking has not experienced any losses from bank accounts or money
market fund shares. 



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CON`1f' ZNUED) 

Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. The assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives or
lease period using the straight- line method. Nonnal maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 
Estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Machinery and equipment
Leasehold Improvements

5 - 7 years

5 - 7 years

Investments in Joint Ventures are accounted for by the equity method, and are not consolidated in
Parking' s consolidated financial statements. 

Receivables: Amounts due from facilities' owners represent uncollateralized management contract fees, 
which include the base monthly fee plus fees for ancillary services. Obligations are due upon receipt, but do
not accrue interest. Generally, payments are received within 30 to 45 days of receipt of the billing by the
client. Payments of amounts due are allocated to the specific invoices identified on the client' s remittance

advice, If unspecified, Parking will discuss the payment with the client to determine how to apply the
payment. 

Parking deems all receivables to be collectible and provides no allowance for doubtful accounts. Parking
uses the direct write-off method to account for uncollectable receivables. Parking had no material write- offs
in 2010 or 2009. 

Advertising and Promotion Costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $251 in 2010 and 2009. 

Income Taxes: Denison Parking Inc. is a Qualified Subchapter S Subsidiary owned 100% by Denison, Inc. 
As a Qualified Subchapter S Subsidiary, the taxable income of Denison Parking; Inc. and Subsidiaries is
reported on the consolidated tax return of Denison, Inc and Subsidiaries. Denison, Inc., with the consent of
its stockholders, has elected under the Internal Revenue Code to be taxed as an 5 Corporation. The

stockholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the entity' s taxable income. This
election is also valid for the state of Indiana and the majority of the other states in which Denison, Inc. and
Subsidiaries conduct business. Therefore, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in the
consolidated financial statements. Certain specific deductions and credits flow through Denison; Inc. to its
stockholders. Louisiana, New York, New Jersey and Washington, D. C. do not recognize the
S Corporation election filed with the Internal Revenue Service. However, Denison, Inc. makes the
necessary filings in these three states and the district and is taxed at the entity level, but such taxes are not
significant. 

Parking' s parent files income tax returns in the U. S. federal jurisdiction and in various other jurisdictions. 
Generally, Parking' s parent is no longer subject to U. S, federal and slate incotne tax examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2007. 

Subsequent Events: Management has evaluated the consolidated financial staternents for subsequent events
occurring through March 21, 2011, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued. 

Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the 2009 consolidated financial statements have been reclassed to
conform with the presentation of the 2010 consolidated financial statements. 



NOTE 2 — FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company has categorized its assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, based on the priority
of the inputs to the valuation technique, into a three- level fair value hierarchy. I f the inputs used to measure

the assets and liabilities fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities
are categorized based on the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows: 

Level X — Assets or liabilities whose values are based on unadjusted quoted prices available in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level — Assets or liabilities whose values are based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or
model inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset
or liability. 

Level 3 — Assets or liabilities whose values are based on prices or valuatipn techniques that require
inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement. These inputs
reflect management' s own assumptions about the assumptions a market participant would use in

pricing the asset or liability. 

The fair value of Parking' s money market fund shares was based on unadjusted published net assets values
of the funds. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2010 and 2009. 

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, Parking' s assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis were
categorized as follows: 

2010: 

Cash Equivalents: 

Money market fund shares

2009: 

Cash Equivalents: 

Money market fund shares

Leven Total

2, 353, 369 $ 2, 351, 369

1. 74f_ 203 $ 1. 748203

Parking has no liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Parking Semites, LLC: Parking uses the equity method to account for its 25% interest in Parking Services, 
LLC, a joint venture providing a parking amenity program to shopping mall customers. Parking recorded
income of $4, 893 in 2010 and a loss of $5, 003 in 2009 as its proportionate share of the Parking Services, 
LLC income or loss for those years. 

Denison Global Parking, LLC.- Parking uses the equity method to account for its 49% interest in Denison

Global Parking, LLC, a joint venture to manage metered parking, parking garages and parking lots. During
2010 the joint venture was formed and Parking contributed $ 980 to the entity. There was no operating
activity during 2010. 



NOTE 4 - DEBT AND CREDIT ARRANGEMENTS

Parking has a credit facility with a bank that provides for an equipment line of credit for borrowings of up to
500, 000. Borrowings bear interest at the Bank' s prime lending rate, subject to a 4. 0% minimum. The

interest rate in effect at December 31, 2010 was 4. 0%. There were no borrowings against the line of credit
at December 31, 2010. Borrowings on the line are unsecured until such time they are converted into a tern
note secured by the related equipment. The line of credit is subject to renewal in November 2011. The

credit facility requires compliance with certain financial and nonfinancial covenants. 

Long- term debt consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009

Note payable to bank in monthly installments of $3, 398, including
interest computed at 4. 27%, through maturity in November, 2012. 
Secured by related equipment. $ 74, 879

Unsecured notes payable to bank in monthly installments of $5, 170, 
plus interest computed at 6. 47%. Paid off during 2010. $ 25, 854

Capital lease obligation payable in monthly installments of $880, 
including interest imputed at 6. 00%, with purchase options at the

conclusion of the lease in September 2014. Secured by related
equipment recorded at a cost of $45, 006 and accumulated

depreciation of $10, 126 at December 31, 2010. _ 34, 387 _ 42, 437

109,266 68, 291
Less: Current maturities — 46881 33, 904

Total Long-term Debt $__ 62, 385 Sjj,34L

The minimum future capital lease payments and aggregate long- term debt maturities as of December 31, 
2010, are as follows: 

Payable In

2011

2012

2013

2014

Less: Amount representing interest

Capital

Lease

Payments

10, 560

10, 560

10, 560

7, 920

39, 600

5, 213

Net Capital Lease Obligation 4 3

Principal

Debt

Maturities

38, 295

36,584



NOTE 5 - OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Parking's lease arrangements require it to pay the costs of operating the parking facilities including utilities, 
ordinary and routine maintenance and related payments to facility owners. Parking is generally not
responsible for major repairs and maintenance or property (axes. 

Parking leased and operated ten parking facilities at December 31, 2010 and 2009. The lease agreements for
the facilities are primarily for specified terms with expirations through June 2014_ Some of the leases
required contingent monthly rentals based on an agreed upon percentage of gross parking receipts. 

Additionally, Parking leases its corporate office facility. Costs associated with the corporate office facility
are allocated to Denison and other affiliates. Rent reimbursements received from Denison and other
affiliates, totaling approximately $ 31, 330 in 2010 and $ 33, 800 in 2009, have been offset against office rent
expense, which is included in operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated sta( ements of income. 

NOTE 6 - MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Parking' s management contracts expire at various dates through October 2012 and are subject to renewal
provisions. Amounts due to owners of parking facilities represent revenues collected by Parking net of

facility expenses from the management and operations of parking facilities. 

NOTE 7 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

40I(k) Retirement Savings Plan

Parking sponsors a 401( k) retirement savings plan ( the Plan) which covers substantially all Parking
employees who have completed one year of service, worked 1, 000 hours and reached the age of 18 years. 
Plan participants may make pre- tax contributions to the Plan based on a percentage of their annual
compensation, not to exceed the annual limit prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service. Parking may
make matching contributions to the Plan up to 4% of participants' annual compensation. Additionally, 
Parking may make profit- sharing contributions to the Plan at the discretion of Parking' s Board of Directors
Participants must meet certain eligibility requirements to receive Parking' s discretionary contributions. 
Parking made matching contributions to the Plan of $30, 734 in 2010 and $ 31, 174 in 2009. No profit- 
sharing contributions were made in 2010 or 2009, 

Deferred Compensation Plan

Parking created a deferred compensation plan effective January 1, 2009. Parking and certain of its officers
have entered into a deferred compensation agreement, which provides for certain postretirement payments. 
Eligible employees are fully vested upon retirement or departure from Parking_ Accrued compensation
related to the Plan was $ 85, 261 and $ 56, 163 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

NOTE 8 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parking manages four parking facilities owned by Denison. Total management fees earned by Parking
related to these facilities were $272, 312 in 2010 and $ 234, 348 in 2009. Total maintenance fees earned by
Parking relating to these facilities were $ 175, 381 in 2010 and $ 179, 687 in 2009. 

Parking also provides accounting and information systems services to Denison and other affiliates. Costs
incurred to provide these services of approximately $ 32, 700 in both 2010 and 2009 were allocated to the
appropriate affiliate and netted against Parking' s costs reported in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income. 

9



tri Sapper , LLP

1Z, SAPPER & MILLER ( rriGed Public AcvountanU

900 fiav 96th Srrcrt

Suitt 500
Indiana Polis, IN 46240

Td 317. 590.2000
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Independent Audilors' Report

on Consolidating Infornlalion

Board of Directors

Denison Parking, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Our report on our audit of the basic consolidated financial statements of Denison Parking, Inc. 
and Subsidiaries for 2010 appears on page 1. That audit was made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic
consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of

operations and details of operating expenses of the individual companies. Such information has

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Indianapolis, Indiana

March 21, 2011

wivn . ksmcpa. com



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE -BALANCE SHEET INFOW" ATION
December 31, 2010

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equivalent,, 
Accounts recievable

Amounts due from facilities' owner
Due from affiliate

Prepaid expenses and other

Total Current Asset,, 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Machinery and equipmen
Leasehold improvement: 

Less: Accumulated depreciatioi

Total Property and Equipmen

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in subsidiarie! 

Investment in Parking Services, LL( 
Investment in Denison Global Parking, LL( 

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

ASSETS

1, 674, 824 191, 013 5, 600
62, 499 5, 943

1, 074, 942) ( 196, 9561 ( 5, 600) 
662, 381

589, 934

127, 920
980

718, 834

6, 190, 445 $ ) 71, 341 __$_ 467_, 167

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long- term deb
Amounts due to facilities' owner

Parking coupons and deposit, 
Accrued expenses and other liabilitie: 
Due to affiliates

Total Current Liabilitie,, 

LONG- TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred compensation

Equipment obligations

Total Long - temp Liabilities

Total Liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY

Corni- non stool

Members' equity - contributed capita
Additional paid - in capita

Retained earnings

Total Owners' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

12

46, 881

1, 144, 298 $ 891 $ 10, 430
251, 499

1, 242, 493 37, 253

374, 161

3, 059, 332 _ 38, 144 10, 430

85, 261
62, 385

147, 646

3, 206, 978 38, 144 10, 430

1, 000

1, 000 1, 000
1, 039, 803

1, 942, 664 132, 197 455L37
2, 983, 467 133, 197 456, 737

6, 190, 445 -$- 171, 3 41 $ 467, 167

Denison Denison
Denison Parking Parking
Parking, Management, Lafayette, 

Inc. LLC LLC

3, 479, 943 170, 170 427, 930
20, 61) 9, 257

917, 017

25, 234 1, 171 29, 980
366, 425

4, 809, 230 171, 341 467, 167

1, 674, 824 191, 013 5, 600
62, 499 5, 943

1, 074, 942) ( 196, 9561 ( 5, 600) 
662, 381

589, 934

127, 920
980

718, 834

6, 190, 445 $ ) 71, 341 __$_ 467_, 167

LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long- term deb
Amounts due to facilities' owner

Parking coupons and deposit, 
Accrued expenses and other liabilitie: 

Due to affiliates

Total Current Liabilitie,, 

LONG- TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred compensation

Equipment obligations

Total Long - temp Liabilities

Total Liabilities

OWNERS' EQUITY

Corni- non stool

Members' equity - contributed capita
Additional paid - in capita

Retained earnings

Total Owners' Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY

12

46, 881

1, 144, 298 $ 891 $ 10, 430
251, 499

1, 242, 493 37, 253

374, 161

3, 059, 332 _ 38, 144 10, 430

85, 261
62, 385

147, 646

3, 206, 978 38, 144 10, 430

1, 000

1, 000 1, 000
1, 039, 803

1, 942, 664 132, 197 455L37
2, 983, 467 133, 197 456, 737

6, 190, 445 -$- 171, 3 41 $ 467, 167



Eliminations Consolidated

4, 078, 043

29, 868

917, 017

56,385

366, 425

5, 447, 738

1, 871, 437

68, 442

1, 277, 498) 
662, 381

589, 934

127, 920

980

589, 934 128, 900

589, 934 $ 6, 239, 019

46, 881

1, 155, 619

251, 499

1, 279, 746

374. 161

3, 107, 906

85, 261
62, 385

147, 646

3, 255, 552

111

2, 000
1, 039, 803

587, 934 1, 942, 664

589, 934 2, 983, 467

589, 934 $ 6, 239, 019

12



DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE -STATEMENT OF INCOME INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31, 2010

REVENUES

Parking revenue from leased facilitie
Management contract revenu( 

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

Parking facilities rental
Operating expense,, 
Depreciation and amonizatior

Total Expenses

Income from Operation! 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 

Interest income

Interest expense

Income from subsidiaries

Equity in income of Parking Services, LL( 
Other income-ne

Total Other Income (Expense

NET INCOME

13

6, 715

9, 275) ( 161) 

139, 464

4, 892

48, 563_ 2, 305

190, 359 ( 161) 2, 305

1 475, 556 _$ 80, 855 $ 58_ 609

Denison Denison

Denison Parking Parking
Parking, N/lanagement. Lafayette, 

Inc. LLC LLC

1, 247, 071 794, 578 116, 636
3, 899, 112 72, 291

5, 146, 183 794, 578 188, 927

50, 162 563, 831

4, 592, 890 135, 643 132, 373

217, 934_ 14, 088 250

4, 860, 986
y

713, 562 132, 623

285, 197 81, 016 56, 304

6, 715

9, 275) ( 161) 

139, 464

4, 892

48, 563_ 2, 305

190, 359 ( 161) 2, 305

1 475, 556 _$ 80, 855 $ 58_ 609



Elimination, Consolidated

2, 158, 285

3, 971, 403

6, 129, 688

613, 993

4, 860, 906

232, 272

5, 707, 171

422, 517

6, 715

9, 436) 

139, 464

4, 892

50, 868

139,464 53, 039

139,464 $ 475, 556

13



1

DENISON PARKING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIF--S

CONSOLIDATING SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPII; NSES
Year Ended December 31, 2010

GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Executive and administrative salane! 

Office rent

Professional fees

Data processing
Dues and subscriptions

Contributions

Total General and Administrative Expense: 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

1, 191, 027 1, 191, 027

Denison Denison

53, 296 53, 296

Denison Parking Parking

22, 408

13, 004 320

Parking. Management. Lafayette, 

4. 592. 890 $ 135. 643 $ 132, 373 4. 860. 906

Inc. LLC LLC Consolidated

PARKING AND MANAGEMENT
CONTRACTS COSTS

Salaries and wages 1, 381, 386 71, 886 S 67, 131 1, 520,403

Payroll taxes 190, 955 6, 523 6, 246 203, 724

Group insurance 210, 349 7, 795 8, 435 226, 579

Workers' compensation insurance 6, 643 892 1, 097 8, 632

Health and welfare 141, 393 141, 393

Expense and supplies 354, 566 9, 264 6, 912 370, 742

Credit card processing fee: 228, 101 892 27, 466 256, 459

Maintenance 36, 912 27, 674 592 65, 178

Management fee 43, 006 43, 006

Insurance 1, 339 5, 720 7, 752 14, 811

Travel and emertaintnen 172, 466 100 172, 566

Uniforms and laundrl 12, 783 322 13, 105

Utilities 78, 124 1, 798 3, 123 83, 045
Vehicle maintenance 88, 506 88, 506

Shuttle expenses 91, 560 91, 560

Fuel 46,896 46, 896

Miscellaneous 37, 711 2, 879 3, 197 43, 787

Total Parking and Managemen, 
Contract Costs 3. 122 696 135, 323 132, 373 3, 390, 392

GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Executive and administrative salane! 

Office rent

Professional fees

Data processing
Dues and subscriptions

Contributions

Total General and Administrative Expense: 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

1, 191, 027 1, 191, 027

115, 726 115, 726

53, 296 53, 296

74, 733 74, 733

22,408 22, 408

13, 004 320 13, 324

1, 470, 194 320 1, 470, 514

4. 592. 890 $ 135. 643 $ 132, 373 4. 860. 906

14
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Operating Assumptions
2014 Budget

Enforcement Vehicle

Collection Van

Office Furniture

Computer

Enforcement Equipment

Cain Counter

Camera /DVR

Office Build Out

Safe

10

20,000

20,000

2, 000

3, 000

48, 025

5, 000

10, 000

4, 000

1, 500

113, 525 @ 8% over 36 months = $ 3, 558



per month
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Operating Assumptions
2014 Budget

Enforcement Vehicle

Collection Van

Office Furniture

Computer

Coin Counter

Camera / DVR

Office Build Out

Safe

10

20, 000

20,000

2, 000

3, 000

5, 000

10, 000

4, 000

1, 500

65, 500 @ 8% over 36 months = $ 2, 053
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Company Information that would be helpful in assessing experience — i. e. case studies, 
company history, and company statistics. 

Experience and Qualifications

Denison Parking, Inc. was founded in Indianapolis, Indiana in 1934, and has enjoyed a history
of nearly 80 years of continuous operations. This means that Denison Parking is one of the
oldest parking operators in existence today. The company provides parking management
services of uncompromising quality to leading real estate developers, asset management
companies, REITs, municipalities and individual property owners. 

Ownership and Management

Denison is a debt free company and has nearly 80 years of experience as an owner and
operator of multi- level and surface public parking facilities, as well as experience in the many
ancillary services that comprise the parking industry today. 

The company is owned in its entirety by the third generation of its founders. The Griffith family
remains active in the day to day operation of the company by virtue of its holding a number of
seats on the board of directors. Perry Griffith, one of four family members who own the
company, serves as the company' s Chairman of the Board. 

Headquartered in Indianapolis, Indiana since 1934, Denison Parking currently operates office
parking, retail and entertainment center parking, hotel and convention center parking, hospital
and medical center parking, stadium and event parking, mixed- use development parking and
stand-alone garages and lots of all scales. Denison brings to every property a personalized
responsiveness to address our clients' needs promptly and effectively. 

Management Services and Facility Types

Denison Parking offers a full range of professional services to property owners of every type. 
The company currently operates a complete spectrum of facility types ranging from small
surface lots to garages that experience twenty- five thousand customers a day. Our managed
facilities serve every conceivable type of user from hospitals to office buildings to sports
complexes to some of the most upscale retail centers in the world. 

Office and Mixed Use Developments

Mixed Use Developments offer a number of challenges and opportunities for the parking
operator, and Denison excels at handling all of them. We are proud to offer asset managers
and building owners' decades of experience managing mixed- use developments of all
scales. We understand the importance of integrating the parking facility through partnerships
with tenants, building management, retailers and others, to best represent the property and the
needs of the customers. Our expert and ongoing analysis ensures the maximum utilization of
parking spaces serving a number of different user groups having different demand
characteristics, and that efficient utilization leads to maximum returns for the owners of such



developments

Retail and Entertainment Center Parking

Denison Parking is proud to be a provider of parking management services for the Simon
Property Group ( NYSE Listed: SPG). Denison currently operates many self -parking facilities
totaling 17, 000 spaces in Simon' s portfolio in the United States. Our commitment to total

customer satisfaction, customized reporting, operating excellence and the professionalism of
our staff provide a benchmark that clearly distinguishes Denison Parking as a leader in the
parking industry. 

Municipal, Government, Privatization Initiatives

Denison Parking is proud to be the visitor -parking manager for one of our country' s national
monuments, the Hoover Dam in Boulder City Nevada. This represents the first such contract
privatized by the federal government. The company also provides on -street parking
management for the City of Indianapolis, and Ft Myers, FL. 

Stadium & Event Parking

Denison Parking is proud to be the operator of parking facilities and was recently chosen as the
3P provider for the city of Cincinnati. Our revenue controls, customer service and dedication to
controlling costs have led to contracts at other stadium and event parking locations such as
Lucas Oil Stadium 8, 000 spaces, home of the NFL Indianapolis Colts, and Banker' s Life
Fieldhouse, 3, 000 spaces, home of the NBA Indiana Pacers. 

Hospital Parking

The personalized service that Denison Parking provides all of its clients and customers results
in Denison being a natural choice for hospitals and medical centers. Denison understands that
parking per se is not the critical mission of hospitals and medical centers — patients and

caregivers are. We understand the importance of maintaining productivity and profitability for
our clients, while simultaneously attending to the often specialized and demanding requests of
our customers at hospital locations. Denison understands the sensitivity that must accompany
any service provided in a medical environment, and its implementation of parking programs with
superior service and sensitivity have led a number of major medical institutions to choose
Denison for their parking needs. 

Hotel/Convention Parking

Denison Parking operates daily, overnight, event and valet parking for hotel and convention
center operations. Our commitment to total guest satisfaction and understanding of hotel and
convention center operations help distinguish Denison from other parking operators. We
understand the image of our client and make it a priority to integrate our parking operation within
the operations of the property. Denison' s executives have managed valet and self -parking
services for every major urban hotel group in the country. 

Leadership and Key Personnel

Denison has assembled a diverse and highly experienced group of professionals from the many
disciplines needed to operate in an ever-changing business environment. 
Sometimes, it is indeed possible to judge a book by its cover, and at Denison, the key
executives in our company tell quite a story. In an industry dominated by either large, cookie - 
cutler firms where customers are just another number or local firms that can offer management

experience limited in scope by geography, exposure, and the experience of a small business
owner, Denison stands out as an operator offering a select, blue- chip clientele a highly



experienced management team. 

Management Profile

Just what is the experience level of the management personnel assigned to your facility? In

most cases, our national competitors assign either entry level trainees or persons with less than

two or three years total experience to manage complex properties generating millions of

revenue dollars. Additionally, their mid- level managers have so many properties and duties that
it just isn' t possible for them to provide the support needed to facility managers. As a result, 

quality suffers and their clients do not receive the attention to detail and financial analysis
necessary to ensure the peak performance of parking assets. 

We hope you find this information informative and that it adequately communicates information

you need in reaching a decision to hire Denison. 

We know how important your parking program is to your overall business plan, as well as the

value of your time. Denison sincerely appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal and
your review of it. 
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Leadership and Key Personnel

Denison has assembled a diverse and highly experienced group of professionals from
the many disciplines needed to operate in an ever- changing business environment. 

Sometimes, it is indeed possible to judge a book by its cover, and at Denison, the key
executives in our company tell quite a story. In an industry dominated by either large, 
cookie -cutter firms where customers are just another number or local firms that can offer

management experience limited in scope by geography, exposure, and the experience
of a small business owner, Denison stands out as an operator offering a select, blue- 
chip clientele with a highly experienced management team. 

Manaaement Profiles

Just what is the experience level of the management personnel assigned to your facility? 
In most cases, our national competitors assign either entry level trainees or persons with
less than two or three years total experience to manage complex properties generating
millions of revenue dollars. Additionally, their mid- level managers have so many
properties and duties that it just isn' t possible for them to provide the support needed to

facility managers. As a result, quality suffers and their clients do not receive the
attention to detail and financial analysis necessary to ensure the peak performance of
parking assets. 

Perry Griffith
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Mr. Griffith, a director of Denison Parking, Inc. since 1981, is a
member of the National Parking Association and a former member of
the Board of Directors and Executive Committee. Before turning his
full attention to the growth of Denison Parking, Mr. Griffith specialized
in commercial lending at Merchants Bank of Indianapolis for ten
years, last serving as Vice President of the National Division at
Merchants. 

Email: parlffithaa.denisonparking. com

MARK PRATT

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Pratt began his career in parking over 25 years ago in Lexington, 
KY with an international parking entity. Since then he has worked
directly in, or overseen from a more senior level, parking operations
in 45 markets across the United States and Canada. Mark also

provided underwriting and valuation expertise in the purchase of
many large parking properties across the US. 



Mark came to Denison as president in 2002. Today he routinely works with Denison' s
clients to assist in matters of valuation as relates to the financing or sale of parking
assets. Mark directly oversees the structural maintenance and integrity of the numerous
parking assets directly owned by Denison, Inc. and as such, has become fluent in the
many facets of facility construction, maintenance, repair and longevity. Mark' s
experience and desire for sound operations and a confident, well- informed management

team led him to develop and implement one of the first instructional programs aimed at
creating successful parking managers. 

In 2001 Mark and a business partner filed a patent for the two-way audio/video
communication process between parking equipment and a centralized command center. 
A patent was issued in May 2010. This process allows for the management of multiple
parking facilities from a centralized location. Denison Parking has utilized this technology
to become the industry leader in this form of facilities management, having installed the
first fully functional operation in 2004. Mark is a member of IPI and NPA, where he
serves on the executive committee. 

Email: mpratt0clenisonparkina. com

Jeff Line

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Mr. Line brings to Denison more than 20 years of experience in

Human Resources, Information Technology, Legal and Financial
Management. At Denison, Jeff has executive responsibility for HR, 
IT, finance and general counsel functions. He was previously
employed as the President of an Indianapolis based employee

benefit consulting firm. Jeff has a Bachelor of Science in Business
from Indiana University and a Juris Doctor degree from the Indiana
University Law School in Indianapolis. He is a member of the Society
of Human Resource Management. 

Email: jllne@denisonparking.com

Mike Davis
VICE PRESIDENT, ACCOUNTING & FINANCE

Mr. Davis has worked in the financial management arena since 1979, 

having been responsible for accounting systems, internal controls, 
banking, contract administration and insurance requirements. He holds
an MBA from Butler University, is a Certified Public Accountant in the
State of Indiana and is a member of the Indiana CPA Society and the
Institute of Management Accountants. 

Email: mdavisAdenisonparkina. com



Mark Pryor

VICE PRESIDENT - BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT & SPECIAL PROJECTS

Mr. Pryor started in the parking industry in the summer of 1981 as a
valet driver for a National Parking Company. In 1982, Mr. Pryor
joined Denison Parking as a valet driver and soon rose to rank of
Facility Manager. In 1986, Mr. Pryor was promoted to Operations
Manager for Denison Parking where he directed the day to day
operations for 52 properties in Indianapolis. 

In 1991, Mr. Pryor left Denison Parking and began working for a full- 
service National Parking Company where he directed the operations

for 22 properties and new business development in five states. Mr. Pryor returned to

Denison in 2002 as the General Manager. During his time as General Manager, Mr. 
Pryor worked with the other department heads within Denison to implement policies, 

procedures, reduce ticket loss, and raise the cleaning standards for the Denison parking
facilities. He acquired 43 new properties and was instrumental in the purchase of the

Lafayette, Indiana contracts. 

Email: marvorCtDdenisonparking.com

Kathy Richardson
VICE PRESIDENT AUDITING

Ms. Richardson joined Denison Parking in 1977. As Vice President, 
Audit and Compliance, she has the responsibility of ongoing audits of
the parking facilities to ensure compliance with all operational and
accounting policies and procedures. Through the use of current
technology she gains real time access to the parking and accounting
systems both locally and out of state. 

Before assuming her current position Kathy spent many years in the
operations side of the business. She has had hands- on experience

with self -park, valet, monthly and event parking in office and mixed -used projects, 
hospitals, airport, urban retail, shuttle service and professional sporting venues. She also
provides training and support for the on- site operations staff. Ms. Richardson' s extensive
background and experience in all areas of Denison Parking have made her an integral
part of the Company. 

She is actively involved in the opening of new locations. Her in- depth knowledge of the
various types of parking equipment has proven to be a definite benefit during new
location transitions. Email: krichardsonAdenisonaarkino.com



Client References

Kathy Burnett
Manager of Parking Services
Simon Business Network

PO Box 7033

Indianapolis, Indiana 46207

317) 263- 7077
kbumett(ftlmon.com

Angela Aniasco

Visitor Services Manager
Bureau of Reclamation

Lower CO Dam Facilities

Washington, DC 20036
702) 494- 2859

aaniasco0usbr.00v

Barney Levengood
Executive Director

Capital Improvement Board

100 S. Capital Avenue

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

317) 262- 3450
bleve naoodOiccrd. com

Michael Nichols

Vice President

Next Realty
1750 Old Meadow Road, Suite 250

McLean, VA. 22102

703) 442- 4500
mnicholsOnextrealty. com

Sharon Williams

Property Manager
National City Center
115 W. Washington Street, Suite 700

Indianapolis, Indiana 46207

317) 632- 2626
Swilliams0reitmccom

Greg Noble
General Manager

Houston Galleria Mall

5085 Westheimer Road

Houston, TX 77056

713) 966-3500

gnoble(a.simon.com

David Burrill

Managing Director
Ryan Companies

Midtown Exchange

2908 Chicago Avenue, Suite 150
Minneapolis, MN 55406

612) 492- 4226

Jeff Borst

Property Manager
Ryan Companies

TCF Tower

121 S. 8'h Street, Suite 200
Minneapolis, MN 55402

612) 492- 4213

Patricia Grazzini

Deputy Director
Minneapolis Institute of Arts
2400 Third Avenue South

Minneapolis, MN 55404

612) 870-3015
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POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060



April 30, 2014

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

T- 43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

The City is seeking proposals from qualified firms to provide Parking Operations and
Management services to the City of Pompano Beach, FL. 

The City will receive sealed proposals until 2: 00 p. m. ( local), May 29, 2014, in the City' s
Purchasing Office, 1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. 
E- mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable. 

Introduction

On October 1, 2013, the City of Pompano Beach created a separate Parking Enterprise Fund
the Parking Fund) for the purpose of managing and operating the City' s parking assets in a

prudent and economically viable manner and to provide transparency of its operations. The
City' s core goal is to provide a seamless, efficient, customer -friendly, progressive and cost- 
effective parking system for its stakeholders. The City has undertaken significant master
planning efforts and is now investing in its infrastructure in ways that will result in the need for
future construction of numerous parking garages and additional metered parking. To maximize
the City's return on its investment, the City is hereby soliciting the services of professional
parking management firms to operate its system. 

The City currently has a total of 1, 355 parking spaces ( includes Harbor Village lot & N. E. 1s' 
Street spaces) dispersed in three ( 3) municipal parking lots ( Pier, Oceanside & Alsdorf) and two
2) leased lots, with the remainder of spaces encompassing on -street parking. The City has a

total of 20 multi -space pay meters and 67 individual ( lollipop) meters. The multi -space pay
meters, which are supplied by Digital Payment Technologies, currently accept credit cards, 
cash and coins. During fiscal year 2013, the City generated approximately $ 222K in parking
citations ( 5,454 citations) revenue and approximately $ 1 M in parking revenues. The Current
Parking Fund has an annual budget of $ 1. 2 million. 

The multi -space pay meters ( Luke I and Luke 11) are remotely managed by Enterprise
Management System ( EMS) software, which allows both pay station configuration and the
collection of transaction data to create financial management reports. EMS is a real time web

based service utilized by Digital Payment Technologies ( current multi -space pay meter vendor) 
to provide information on the status of parking spaces and to provide information for auditing
and revenue reporting. Additionally, the pay stations are managed offline and online with Back
Office Support System Software ( BOSS) to configure all operating aspects for the meters ( e. g. 
adding meters to the network, language settings for interface menus, establish ingladiusting
parking fees, and credit card processing). 

Parking Enforcement is currently provided through a Policing Services agreement with the
Broward Sheriffs Office ( BSO). The City is exploring an opportunity to include provision of
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these services by Proposers. Parking operations currently falls under the direction of the Public
Works Department of the City. 

Attached to this document is Attachment A & Attachment B, which provides an inventory of
parking meters with current locations and a map indicating geographic location of meters in the
City, respectively. Proposers are required to independently verify this inventory as part of their
due diligence. The City makes no representations as to the accuracy of this inventory. 

The City is currently exploring the construction of a 500 space pier parking garage and over the
next years will also be contemplating the construction of several other parking garages
throughout the City. 

Scope Of Services

Proposers or its employees must have at least three ( 3) years of experience managing
municipal parking operations and must be able to service an office within the City of
Pompano Beach. Proposers must have on its staff at least one ( 1) senior level manager

that possesses on -street, parking lots and parking garage management experience, 
inclusive of parking enforcement experience. 

The successful Proposer will be responsible for providing, at a minimum, the following
services: 

Meter Enforcement

a. Patrol of and enforcement for single- space, multi -space meters and parking lots, 
inclusive of issuance of parking citations for all parking violations throughout the
City, in accordance with City ordinance. Proposer would be responsible for
providing sufficient personnel to issue parking violation citations at a level of
enforcement specified by the City. Proposer must submit separate pricing for
this enforcement activity in its proposals. Proposer must be capable of

providing this service seven days a week, 24 hours a day, and Proposers pricing
must reflect such. 

b. Provide for all support vehicles, office and computer equipment as required to

perform the day- to- day operations of the parking program. Proposers are

responsible for any Internet service connections fees, as a result of any remote
access to the City' s network. Proposers, as part of their response, must include
an itemization of anticipated support vehicles needed per the scope of services

being solicited. Proposers would be responsible for all associated maintenance
costs. 

c. Coordination of the installation and maintenance of parking meters, pay stations
and change machines. The Proposer shall provide price quotes for both

purchase and lease options, at the City' s discretion when new parking equipment
is to be acquired by the City directly. Equipment type and installation shall be in
accordance with standards issued by the City. Requests for the repair of all
parking equipment and appurtenances shall be requested, within twenty- four
24) hours of Proposer becoming aware of defects, from the City' s provider and

must be repaired or replace within forty-eight ( 48) hours or in accordance with
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provider contractual terms. All purchases must conform to the City' s purchasing
policies and procedures. 

Currently, the City's citation issuance process utilizes ticket books and is a highly
manual process, which involves the manual input of citations into the City' s
citations database. It is the City' s intention to utilize hand held ticket issuance
devices (" TIDs") to automate this process. As part of response to proposal, 
Proposer must provide recommendations ( inclusive of prices) for hand held

ticket issuance devices (" TID"), which allows enforcement personnel to conduct

enforcement on tablets or similar devices. The TID should be user- friendly and
include software that allows enforcement personnel to take pictures to support

issuance of parking violations and allow for attachable print devices. It is

expected that TID should be compatible with the City' s current software
application provider, SunGard HTE, to allow for the download of citation
information from SunGard' s citation database system to the TIN and upload

from the TIDs to SunGard. This will allow for automation of citation input and

tracking identifying violators with multiple violations outstanding. Proposer's bid
price should be reflected of this planned automation of the process. 

e. Monitoring, ordering and stocking of expendable products for meters ( i. e. printer
ink and printer paper). Proposers will have access to Parking Enterprise Budget
for such expenses and must submit requests for processing payments via the
City' s normal purchasing and accounts payable process. 

f. Utilization of Enterprise Management System ( EMS) Back Office Support

System ( BOSS) Software to re -program meters, as necessary. 

g. Manage and oversee the use of any third party programs ( i. e. Passport Parking -- 
pay -by -phone) by the City to support its parking activities. 

h. Provide boots for habitual parking enforcement violations. Note: the City has not
enacted this policy as of yet, but may contemplate in the near term. Proposer
should provide a narrative as to their experience with the use of such devices

and at what point other clients have placed boots on vehicles. 

i. Provide for towing, as applicable. The cost for this component of the contract
should be separately identifiable. 

j. Coordinating the repair or needed maintenance of any field parking software
systems with the City' s designated vendor(s). 

Provide employees with identifiable badges and uniforms, as approved by the
City. All vehicles must also have appropriate identifiable marks to indicate
Proposer' s affiliation with the City of Pompano Beach Parking Services, subject
to City approval. As part of proposal, Proposers must provide color pictures of
what possible uniforms and vehicle decals might look like with the City' s logo
Florida' s Warmest Welcome). 

Enforcement personnel assigned to the contract should be appropriately trained
and possess all required certifications andlor licenses for issuing non- moving
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violations. It is further Proposer' s responsibility ( at own expense) to provide for
pre- screening background checks for all personnel to be assigned to the City. 

m. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to the parking program. 

n. Provide annual reporting ( within 90 days of fiscal year end) to the City describing
the current state of parking enforcement activity. The report should, at a

minimum, indicate no. of citations issued for the previous fiscal year ( October 1s' 

through September W), no. of enforcement personnel writing citations, no. of
citations issued per staff member writing citations and any recommendations for
improvements to operations detailing any associated costs. As part of proposal, 
proposer must provide any recommended benchmark or national standard for
expected no. of citations to be written monthly or annually per citation personnel
etc., based on the size/ structure of the City' s parking space program. Proposer
must also describe any internal mechanism utilized by their management staff to
monitor the performance of enforcement personnel, in this regard. A copy of
citation database generated report must be provided as part of the package, 

which should reconcile to no. of citations indicated as issued in the annual report. 

o. Provide, as part of the required annual reporting, an annual survey to City of
neighboring cities parking rates, at Proposer' s own expense. 

p. Assistance and consultation with the City, as necessary in any enhancement, 
change or modification of its parking enforcement program. 

Assistance in implementing parking programs, including working with
businesses, neighborhood groups, and other organizations, as needed. 

Citation Management

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued. 

b. Inputting citations issued within 48 hours of issuance, including those written by
BSO personnel. 

c. Generate letters to violators within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of violation being
issued, to include assessment of late fees. 

d. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to citations. Proposer must
provide a phone, fax and email address to which violators may direct inquiries. 
Such must be indicated on the parking citation issued. Proposer must also

coordinate requests by violators for a court date to contest citations and
coordinate such efforts with the City Attorney's Office. Also, attend enforcement
court proceedings for disputed citations and follow through with hearing officers' 
decisions, as necessary. 

e. City will provide for a local office within the boundaries of the City whereby
customers may visit to make inquiries about or appeal parking citations issues or
for general parking inquiries. 
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f. Quarterly, coordinate with the City' s Information Technology Department, to
generate a report of outstanding parking citations older than ninety ( 90) days. 
Export information to excel and email to the City's Finance Department for
referral to the City' s outside collection agency. Note: The City' s system
automatically adds a collection fee ( i. e. 17%) to each citation amount due once

this process has been activated. If Proposer would be utilizing its own
accounting systems for input of citations and processing cash receipts, Proposer
would be responsible for generating a query of parking citations outstanding for
ninety ( 90) days or greater, exporting detailed information for each citation to
excel and submitting such report to the City' s Finance Department for referral to
the outside collection agency. Once Finance Department forwards accounts to
collections, Proposer would be notified and must add collection fee to

outstanding balance for each violator' s account to reflect new amount due. As an
example, if violator owes $ 47 initially, a 17% collection fee would require amount
owed to be adjusted to $ 54.99. Proposer' s systems must be able to separately
identify initial violation and penalties collected from any collection fee amounts
collected. 

Cash Receipts Collection, Handling and Processing

Proposers must provide pricing for the two options listed below: 

Option 1: City Systems Utilized for Processing & Recording of Transactions

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing the City' s current citation management system, 
a component of SunGard HTE. Selected vendor would be granted remote

access to the City' s system. 

b. Proposer would be responsible for daily collection and delivery of cash and coins
extracted from parking meters to the City' s Treasury Division located at City Hall. 
Proposer would be responsible for delivery of cash and coins to the Treasury
Division at least three ( 3) days a week ( weekday -every other day). However, for
special events or holidays, proposer shall make more frequent deliveries. For

special events or holidays falling on the weekends, whereby it may be necessary
to empty the meters on a weekend, Proposer would be responsible for
maintaining coins/ cash in a safe ( combination & key, with limited staff access) at
Proposer' s local office until such time as delivery to City Hall is possible, during
in normal operating hours. Meter generated audit reports must accompany
collections ( with the exception of lollipop extractions) from pay by space meters
and provided to Treasury for reconciliation to the actual collections. 

c. Parking citation payments will be made at the City' s Treasury Division, currently
located on the I" Floor of City Hall, and processed through the City's cash
receipts system. 
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Option 2: Proposer Systems Utilized for Processing & Initial Recording of
Transactions

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing its own database management system and to
record receivables and deferred revenue for all citations written, and cash and

revenues as receipts are processed. City staff must be provided inquiry access
to such system. 

Proposers would be responsible for the collection of all parking citation payments
at its local office site and entry into Proposer' s own cash receipts system. Such
cash receipts system must accommodate a triple copy receipts system with
customer obtaining original, Proposer maintaining a copy and a copy being
remitted to the City's Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt should
indicate the parking citation no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and
nature of payment ( i. e. parking citation). Proposer would be responsible for the
processing of such receipts for bank deposit with City providing for daily pickup
of bank deposits by an armed security service. Proposer would be required to
submit a copy of the bank deposit slip and a report from Proposers cash receipts
system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the City' s Treasury
Division. For non -sufficient funds ( NSF) payments made via check, the City' s
Treasury Division will inform Proposer of such for update of provider' s records. 
Proposer would be responsible for assessing the NSF fee ( in accordance with
City policy) to the violator and updating Proposer' s financial records accordingly. 
All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive of a cash receipts
processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

c. Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from parking meters. Under this
Option, Proposer would accept these funds at its local office site and process the

receipts in its own cash receipts system. Proposers would be responsible for

generating meter audit reports ( with the exception of lollipop meter extractions) 
to accompany each extraction of cash and coins from the meters and reconcile
to the coin/ cash counts. Proposers would be responsible for taking a physical
count of cash and coins ( a coin counter would be necessary) and completing a
bank deposit slip( s) for deposit of the meter collections. City would provide daily - 
armed service pickup for physical deposit of meter collections to the bank. 
Proposer must arrange for deposit and pickup of meter collections within 48
hours of collection from meters. For special events or holidays, proposer shall

make more frequent visits to the meters for collection of coins/cash as such

volume of activity might warrant such. Proposer must provide for a secure safe
combination & key, with limited staff access) at local office site to hold meter

collections pending armed service pickup. Proposer must provide a copy of the
meter audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit report

and a copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. Such must be
provided timely to the City' s Revenue Collections Division via mail or email as
follows: 

RFP T-43- 14 Page 6 MP Initial



City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rm 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060
ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager

or

Llnda.dveQcoobfl. com with copy to
Glselle.wishinsky0c obfi,com

Separate ledger accounts would need to be established by lots/ locations as follows: 

Municipal Pier Lot

Oceanside Lot

Beach Parking Lot
Alsdorf Lots

Street Parking Meters
Harbor Village/ N. E. 191 Street

Proposer would be required to provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division for
each deposit to Indicate the locations of each collection for each bank deposit as

stated above. All reporting to the City's Treasury Division must be inclusive of a
cash receipts processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing
of transactions. 

a. Proposer would be responsible for administering the City's residential
parking permit program. The City currently issues approximately 200
residential parking permits per year for its Oceanside and Municipal Pier
Lots. The City Issues semi-annual permits at a price of $ 30 and annual
permits at a price of $60, based on certain qualifying criteria ( i. e. proof of
residency). Proposer would be required to process and record receipts
related to this program. Such cash receipts system must accommodate

a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining original, Proposer
maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted to the City's Treasury
Division. At a minimum, such receipt should indicate the parking permit
no., recelpt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and nature of payment

i. e. residential parking permit). Proposer would prepare bank deposit

slips for this activity and the City would provide for daily -armed service
pickup of such deposits. Proposer would be responsible for recording
this activity In a dedicated system account ( i. e. residential parking
permits) and must submit a copy of the bank deposit slip, a cash receipts
report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s Treasury Division. 
Proposer would be responsible for maintaining all applications and proof
of qualification for each permit issued, in accordance with the City' s
records retention policy. 

b. Any request for refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed
above must be handled by the City' s Treasury Division and
communicated to Proposer for update of Proposer's records and
systems. 
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c. Proposers would be responsible for voiding any transactions, in
accordance with City' s established practices and must provide a reporting
of such to the City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing. 

d. Proposer would be responsible for establishing an online system to allow
violators to make credit/ debit card payments via a secure website

complying with all regulatory requirements). Proposer would be

responsible for ensuring such system is PCI compliant and on an annual
basis must submit report to Visa/ MC as such. Proposer would be

responsible for the posting of these online payments to Proposer' s cash
receipts system. Proposer would be responsible for linking online
receipts directly to the City' s designated bank account for daily deposit
and submittal of cash receipts reports to the City' s Treasury Division
within 24 hours of processing. 

e. Should the City elect Option 2, Proposer would be responsible for having
an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of its system
of internal controls performed annually, by a certified independent
accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a
Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a
report will be in accordance with the requirements of Statement on

Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

f. Currently, the City' s Information Technology Department ( IT) provides
citation information to the State of Florida Division of Motor Vehicles (the

State) to allow the State to place a hold on violators, whereby tag renewal
will be delayed if violators have at least three ( 3) regular unpaid citations

or one ( 1) unpaid handicap citation. The State also provides detailed
information for violators ( i. e. addresses, DL# etc.) directly to the City to
allow for the mailing of letters to violators and assist in follow- up
collection efforts. Should Proposer elect Option 2, Proposer would be

responsible for establishing an infrastructure to allow for this two- way
communication and ensuring compatibility of Proposer' s system with the
State's system, to allow for this interface of data. 

g. Within thirty ( 30) days from City's fiscal year end ( September 30th), 
Proposer would be responsible for providing an aging report of
outstanding parking citation receivables ( at fiscal year-end) to the City' s
Finance Department. 

General Requirements

a. Proposer ( all parties to the Agreement) must be licensed to do business

in the State of Florida and must obtain a business tax receipt for the City
and Broward County, prior to commencement of services. 

b. Proposer must staff a temporary office within the limits of the Pompano
Beach, to be provided by the City, to generally contain the management
of the parking program, inclusive of accepting customer inquiries, 
acceptance and processing of payments (assumes City elects Option 2) 
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and issue late notices for overdue payment of citations etc. The intent of

the City is to eventually provide a permanent location within the pier
parking garage upon its completion and the City will provide a temporary
site for the temporary office within reasonable proximity to the beach/ pier
area immediately, at City' s expense. It is Proposers responsibility to
provide for all costs associated with staffing and operating the location
within Proposer' s budgeted costs. 

c. Handle all customer service associated with the parking program. 

It is anticipated that the City will be designing and constructing a 500 - 
space pier parking garage within the next 1. 5 to 2 years. Proposers are
required to propose a tentative separate price structure to contemplate

the management of the garage, to include provision of valet parking
approximately 100 spaces in pier garage) for beach parking and future

restaurant locations in the Pier Redevelopment area. Such proposed

pricing structure should present a line item detail of all costs to be
covered in proposers budget and should be specific as to what will be

included in proposers budget, as well as what would be excluded or

Proposers may indicate as " optional" services. Proposers management
structure should be discussed. Proposer must discuss client references
name of client, contact name, title, phone, email) for which similar

services have been provided within the past three ( 3) years, including, but
not be limited to contractual arrangement for compensation

e. Provide weekly, monthly and annual reports as may be required by the
City. 

The Proposer may propose the purchase of equipment, data software
and information systems relating to and associated with the day- to- day
operations of the parking management program to enhance operating
efficiency, with prior approval of the City. All purchases must be in
accordance with City policies and procedures. All program specific

products purchased by the Proposer on behalf of the City shall upon
termination of the Contract remain the property of the City. 

Coordinate the implementation of any changes in the City's parking rates
or policies. 

Provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of
Proposer' s system of internal controls performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on
Controls at a Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or
designee. Such a report will be in accordance with the requirements of
Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued

by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

I. As part of Proposal, Proposer must submit, at a minimum, compiled

financial statements to indicate financial capacity to provide the services
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herein, without interruption. Proposer may choose to submit reviewed or
audited financials instead. 

j. Coordinate special City events with City staff. 

k. Within 6 months of hire, meet with City and CRA staff and review current
parking operations and provide a report to the City Manager with
observations and recommendations etc. May include new technologies, 
payment acceptance methods, additional meter locations, garage

locations, marketing, signage, experience/suggestions for a 100% 
cashless system etc. 

Any reasonably related services upon request. 

2. Term of Contract

The City anticipates awarding a Service Provider Agreement for a term of three ( 3) 
years with an option for one ( 1) additional term of two (2) years, for a possible total of

five ( 5) years. Hourly rates and all other negotiated expenses will remain in effect
throughout the duration of the contract term, including the optional renewal term, unless
mutually agreed upon by both parties. Additional services and responsibilities may be
added to this agreement as agreed upon by both parties. 

3. Small Business Enterprise Proaram

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business
Enterprise ( SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business

Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano
Beach Is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises
SBE's) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. 

The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City's voluntary program, is taken from
the State of Florida Statute 288.703( 1). 

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an

independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer
permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of

not more than $ 5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business
Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the $ 5 million net
worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments. 

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate
Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business

Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the
State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, 
and other agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations
from the City' s website www,pompanobeachfl. gov. Please indicate in your response if
your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise. 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages small business participation in all of its
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procurements. 

4. Local Business Proaram

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local
Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach
businesses in the City's procurement process. 

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the
City's website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by
the bid specifications. The business Information, sorted by business use classification, 
is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages Local Business participation in all of Its
procurements. Proposers interested in local business participation are

encouraged as part of their proposal package to discuss planned efforts In this

respect. 

5. Reaulred Proposal Submittal

Submission/ Format Requirements

Submit one ( 1) original unbound and five ( 5) bound copies of the proposal. All copies

will be on 8 Yz" x 11" plain white paper, typed, and signed by an authorized
representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers
must submit one ( 1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe
or Microsoft Word format ( or other format approved by the City). Failure to adhere to
the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non- 
responsive. 

Information to be Included in the proposal: In order to maintain comparability and
expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner

specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections: 

Title page: 

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer' s firm, address, 
telephone number, name of contact person and the date. 

Table of Contents: 

Include a clear Identification of the material by section and by page. 

Letter of Transmittal: 

Briefly state the Proposer's understanding of the project and express a positive
commitment to provide the services described herein. State the name(s) of the

person( s) who will be authorized to make representations for the Proposer, their title(s), 
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office and E- mail addresses and telephone numbers. Please limit this section to two
pages. 

Scope of Services: 

For each item listed under scope of services, proposers are required to provide a

narrative discussing each respective area, to include, but not be limited to: 

a. Discussion of experience and ability to manage a 500 space parking garage, to
include any experience in operating a valet service. Discussion should include

proposed contract structure in terms of Proposer compensation and any general
revenue split arrangements generally contemplated. May also include discussion of
how the garage might be manned or not, based on entry and exit points, pay meters
etc. Should also include Proposer' s experience with other client references as
discussed above. 

b. Discussion of number of personnel anticipated to be assigned to the contract, to
include title and duties, at a minimum. 

c. Discussion of vehicles to be assigned to the contract, type, description etc. 

d. Discussion of benchmarks and/ or national standards against with performance of

parking operations may be measured, to include parking enforcement activity. 
e. Discussion of any proposed general improvements already observed per Proposer' s

own due diligence in preparing proposal. 
f. Discussion of experience with placing boots on parking violators vehicles. 
g. Discussion of hand held ticket devices and recommendations of specific TIDs. 
h. Discussion of any parking program analysis reports prepared for previous clients. 

Proposer must include an example ( s) in proposal submittal. 

I. Discussion of proposed monitoring mechanisms for monitoring the performance of
personnel, as it relates to administration of the parking enforcement function. 

j. Discussion of cash receipts processing and recording capacity and internal controls
in place to ensure accurate and complete collection, recording and reconciliation of
transactions. In addition, discuss planned segregation of duties for collection, 

recording, cashier drawer balancing procedures ( to include reconciliation of opening
cash drawer amount, daily receipts and cash receipts system report reconciliation) a, 
deposit and reconciliation of all parking related revenues, should the City elect
Option 2 above. 

k. Discussion of the City's current parking rate structure of $ 1. 25 per hour ( unadjusted
for peak days/ hours/ locations) and any recommendations based on prior clients or
general industry practice. City also currently has a boat launch and charges $ 10 for
a 24- hour period to park a boat trailer. 

I. Discussion of planned collection efforts to maximize collections on outstanding
parking citations. Proposers should incorporate specific experience/ success in this
area with other client references to include client name, contact name, title, phone, 

email, etc. and approximate value or receivables managed, annual collections and

annual collection rate for client' s most recent fiscal year. 

m. Discussion on any proposed efforts to enhance collections on parking citations
written for out of state violators. 

n. Discussion of transition plan, inclusive of detailed tasks to be completed, and

planned coordination effort with BSO, the City' s current parking enforcement
partner. 

o. Discussion of anticipated timeframe from contract award to being fully operational. 
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6. 

Fees & Costs: 

Proposer must provide a line item budget for fees for all contract years, including any
optional renewal periods. In narrative, please discuss basis for each annual escalator, if

applicable ( i. e. specific consumer price index). 

Include a concise narrative with sufficient detail indicating the proposed approach to
providing the required services, including a description of the types and qualities of
service that would be provided. Provide a cost for each of the major services provided

along with the estimated number of expected work hours for each qualified staff. 
Proposer must itemize all costs to complete all necessary tasks as described under
Scope of Services. Miscellaneous expenses should be adequately described. Proposer
must be clear as what is included in price proposal, what is excluded and what might be

optional. 

References: 

Submit a client reference list, including name of contact, firm and/or governmental
entity, address, telephone number and type of service provided to each reference. At
least Three ( 3) references should be for clients within Broward, Dade, or Palm Beach
Counties if applicable, with an emphasis on event or recreational type of facilities with

more than 1, 000 parking spaces. 

Litigation: 

Disclose any litigation within the past five ( 5) years arising out your firm' s performance. 

City Forms: 
The RFP Proposal Signature Page must be completed, signed and returned. Proposer

should return all RFP pages, initialed where indicated. 

Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary
for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect
at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried
or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to
determine the most qualified Proposer. 

The successful Proposer( s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of

insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved
by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager. 

The following insurance coverage shall be required. 

Worker' s Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as
required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company ( number
of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control

and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the
course of their employment. 

Liability Insurance
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I ) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability
Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract. 

2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance
and indicated minimum policy limits. 

Tvpe of Insurance

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

each

occurrence aggregate

GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM $1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE/ $ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis

XX comprehensive form

XX premises - operations

explosion & collapse

hazard

underground hazard

XX products/completed

XX

operations hazard

XX contractual insurance

XX broad form property

XX

damage
XX independent contractors

XX personal injury

bodily injury

property damage

bodily injury and
property damage
combined

personal injury

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM $1, 000,000perOCCURRENCE/$ 1, 000,000

AGGREGATE

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form

EXCESS LIABILITY

umbrella form

other than umbrella
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XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY $ 1, 000,000. $ 1, 000, 000. 

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City
thirty ( 30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance
required by the provisions set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award
of contract. 

Selection/Evaluation Process

A Selection/ Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm( s). 

The SelectionlEvaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission. 

Proposals will be evaluated using the following criteria. 

Criteria Point Range

A. Experience and Expertise 0- 35

Previous related work experience and qualifications of firm and

personnel. Demonstrates a clear understanding of scope of work and
other technical or legal issues related to the project. 

B. References 0- 5

History and performance of firm/ project team on similar projects. 
References and recommendations from previous clients. 

C. Resources and Methodology 0- 15

Adequacy of amount of quality resources assigned to the project. 
Overall approach to project. Consideration of services provided and

approach to meeting goals and deadlines. 

D. Location of Regional Office 0-5

Proximity to Pompano Beach Office location. 

E. Cost 0- 40

Including the proposed mark up ( indicate what benefits are included
and amount of the mark up) for field staff, costs for management and
the proposed fee structure. 

Total 0- 100

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short- list
Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short- listed Proposers
following presentations ( if deemed necessary) with a score of " 1" assigned to the short- 
listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee. 
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Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm' s capability to provide
the services required for the Committee' s review for short listing purposes. After an
initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss
the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be
assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it is understood that
the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in
further consideration of the submittal. 

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City
Commission ( for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms
deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms
respond to the RFP, the list will contain the ranking of all responses. 

The City Commission has the authority to ( including, but not limited to); approve the
recommendation; reject the recommendation and direct staff to re -advertise the

solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/ or request oral presentations and

determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally
presented to the City Commission. 

8. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all
of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or
expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether
direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties
may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be
liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or
property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its
officers, agents or employees. 

9. Retention of Records and Riaht to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, 
receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the

approval of the City' s Internal Auditor. Recommendation for changes, additions, or
deletions by the City' s Internal Auditor must be complied with by the selected firm. The
City' s Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and
examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The
selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of
the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under
the contract. 

10. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a
result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which
are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on
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behalf of the City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in
writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms. 

11. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in

the operations conducted under any contract with the City. 

12, Independent Contractor

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of

this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm
and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the
City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, 
employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures
applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm. 

U. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, 
Proposer' s staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be
required. 

14. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RFP shall include, but not be limited to the following
terms: 

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RFP document, together
with the successful Proposer' s proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of
Pompano Beach City Attorney. 

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit
arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct

of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the
contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of
Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney' s fees, and court costs incurred in defending
such claim, cause of action or lawsuit. 

15. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RFP, or of
any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing
and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver
or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or
litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or
obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly
executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be
waived except by a duly executed writing. 
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16. 

fVl

18. 

0

20. 

Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RFP shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, 

successors and assigns. 

Termination

The contract resulting from this RFP may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach
without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty (60) days prior written notice. 

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP for a period of thirty ( 30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the
non -defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon
delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing
rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may
have. 

Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal

and state laws, rules and regulations. 

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RFP
shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified
and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees

to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, 
license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and
regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will

maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees
will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by
applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. 
Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of
contract. 

Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RFP must be valid for a period no less than

ninety (90) days from the closing dale of this solicitation. 

RFP Conditions and Provisions

The completed and signed proposal ( together with all required attachments) must be

returned to City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by
submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements
and instructions of this RFP as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting
materials submitted will become the property of the City. 
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Any alteration, erasure, or interlineations by the Proposer in this RFP shall constitute
cause for rejection. Exceptions or deviations to this proposal may not be added after
the submittal date. 

All Proposers are required to provide all information requested in this RFP. Failure to do

so may result in disqualification of the proposal. 

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RFP, or reject all proposals, if in
its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so. 

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to
reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in part or whole, if it is

determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so. 

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of
proposals or for any work performed in connection therein. 

21. Standard Provisions

a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement
will be in Broward County, Florida. 

b. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible conflict of interest, each Proposer
must disclose if any City employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee of the firm. If any City employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County
Supervisor of Elections pursuant to § 112. 313, Florida Statutes. 

C. Drug Free Workplace

The selected firm( s) will be required to verify they will operate a " Drug Free
Workplace" as set forth in Florida Statute, 287.087. 

d. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a
conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to
provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a
contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or
public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, 
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or
consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business
with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida
Statute, Section 287.017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from

the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
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e. 

9• 

In. 

Patent Fees, Royalties And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, 
device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected
Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and
all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, 
device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work

agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, 
royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any
infringement at any time during or after completion of the work. 

Permits

The selected Proposer shall be responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses, 
certifications, etc., required by federal, state, county, and municipal laws, 
regulations, codes, and ordinances for the performance of the work required in
these specifications and to conform to the requirements of said legislation. 

Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm(s) will be

laws, ordinances, rules and regulations

this RFP. Ignorance on the part of the

responsibility. 

Withdrawal Of Proposals

familiar with all federal, state and local

that may affect its services pursuant to
firm will in no way relieve the firm from

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised
deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General
Services Department, 1190 N. E. 3`" Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, 
Florida 33060. 

Composition Of Protect Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the

proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless

otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to
same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or
personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the

qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement( s) is submitted to and

approved by the City in writing. 

Variances

While the City allows Proposers to take variances to the RFP terms, conditions, 
and specifications, the material nature, number, and extent of variances taken

will be considered in determining proposal responsiveness and in allocating
proposal evaluation points. 
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k. Invoicing/ Payment

All invoices should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P. O. 
Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida
Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a
proper invoice. 

Public Records

The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida's Public Records
Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be
required by the City in order to perform the service; 

b. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms

and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that
does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise

provided by law; 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and

exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as

authorized by law; and

d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, 
at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon

termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that
are exempt or confidential and exempt, All records stored electronically
must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the
information technology systems of the agency. 

The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article
shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall
enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein. 

22. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RFP are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 
1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C ( Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax ( 954) 
786- 4168, or email purchasinclOcopbfi,gom. All questions must include the inquiring
firm' s name, address, telephone number and RFP name and number. Questions must

be received at least seven ( 7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. 
Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any
addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City's website, and it is
the Proposer's responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the
solicitation. 

23. Addenda
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The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, 
clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this
solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it
shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact
the City Purchasing Office at ( 954) 786- 4098 to determine if addenda were issued and
to make such addenda a part of their proposal. 

RFP T-43- 14 Page 22 MP Initial



Does not yet include Harbor Village/ N. E. 1st Street
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ATTACHMENT " A" 

Lot Machine Serial Numbers

Pier, Spaces 001 to 323

Machine 1 NE 300009420069

Machine 2 NW 300009420070

Machine 3 SW 300009420071

Machine 4 SE 300009420074

Oceanside

Machine 7 West Side 300010270008

Machine 8 East Side 300010270010

Parcel A, Spaces2001 - 2126

SW Corner Temp Lot 500012360986

Temp Lot East Side, North 500012360979

Temp Lot East Side, South 500012360978

Briny Pub Corner 500012360983

PB Blvd., Spaces 1001 - 1122

North of Pier 1 500012360981

North of Pier 2 500012360980

North of Pier 3 500012360977

South of Pier 1 500012360984

South of Pier 2 500012360987

South of Pier 3 500012360982

South of Pier 4 500012360985

16th Street, Spaces 800 - 827 300009420073

Alsdorf

North 300010270009

South 300010270011

Does not yet include Harbor Village/ N. E. 1st Street
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ATTACHMENT "B" 

Parking meter Locations 2012 Revised
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PROPOSAL SIGNATURE PAGE

RFP T-43- 13, MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

To: The City of Pompano Beach, Florida

The below signed hereby agrees to furnish the proposed services under the terms stated
subject to all instructions, terms, conditions, specifications, addenda, legal advertisement, and

conditions contained in the RFP. I have read the RFP and all attachments, including the
specifications, and fully understand what is required. By submitting this signed proposal, I will
accept a contract if approved by the City and such acceptance covers all terms, conditions, and
specifications of this proposal. 

Proposal submitted by: 

Name ( printed) Mork PI' 6r Title M 13msiriQSS 1 em P en+ 
Company ( Legal Registered) D e V V S" PAA kl V q, IHC - 
Federal

HC

Federal Tax Identification Number

Address 3u S- PtllrlS' 

City/State/ Zip I H a 1 a Hof

lvaviita Styat, Suite 200

IIS , Ih dl omor ULoZoLi

Telephone No. 317 - Lot S - 3 12- 1 Fax No. 

Signature : `" I Date

317 - L9SS - 3101

CQ/(- Q/ Iy

Addendum Acknowledgment - Proposer acknowledges that the following addenda have been
received and are included in his/ her proposal: 

Addendum No. 41
1 8 FP T- W3 I H Date Issued 5 %2 2 I L) 

2, RFP T -H3 - JH Lo/ 3/ ly
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HCl I ano City of Pompano Beach, Purchasing Divisionp
1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building Cbeach. 

Florida' s Warmest Welcome Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060

May 22, 2014

ADDENDUM # 1, RFP T-43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

To Whom It May Concern, 

The deadline for acceptance of sealed bids in the Purchasing Office, 1190 N. E. 3rd
Avenue, Bldg. C, Pompano Beach, 33060, HAS BEEN EXTENDED to 2: 00 p. m. 
local), June 12, 2014. 

The remainder of the solicitation is unchanged at this time. 

Si ) 

Z4
J

Otis J. Thomas

General Services Director

cc: website

file



p Mpano City of kvmpano Beach, Purchasing Division

beach. 1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C
N" U." W. 1. 611wUcam, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060

June 3, 2014

ADDENDUM #2, RFP T-43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

To Whom It May Concern, 

No further technical specification questions will be accepted for this Proiecl. 

Please review the following questions submitted by potential proposers, and responses
from the City. 

01: What items, if any, are reimbursable? 

Response: Any hems not specifically addressed in the RFP would not be automatically
reimbursable. For instance the RFP mentions that the Parking Fund will cover such
operating expenses as leased office space, paper and other meter supplies, meter
maintenance charges and connectivity charges etc. If proposers have certain expenses
in mind to be contemplated as potentially reimbursable, they should discuss In their
RFP response. Otherwise, the awarded contractor would need prior City approval on a
case by case basis prior to incurring expenses and then requesting reimbursement. 
The City will then contemplate approval of the expenses and whether it should be
disbursed via the City's normal purchasing procedures. 

02: Who currently manages the EMS ( Enterprise Management System)? 

Response: Broward Sheriffs Office (BSO) and programs EMS as well as the Back
Office Support System ( BOSS). 

03: Please provide the current enforcement hours or provide a copy of the current
schedule? 

Response: 24 hours a day, 7 days a week

04: What is your current outstanding AR for violations issued in the past three years? 

Response: 157,095

05: May we see a copy of the annual parking budget? 

Response: See T- 43-14 Addendum # 2 on our website at www.pom anon boachif nov, 



Addendum 42, TA3. 14

Qe: Please provide parking revenues by month for the past three years. 

Response: See T-43- 14 Addendum #2 on our website all yyvw P-0Wagoboach%floy

Q7: Is the enforcement piece operated year round or during season? If so, what is the
season? 

Response: Year round

Q8: What is your occupancy rale for the City of Pompano Beach per location ( H this
data is tracked) during the peak season and shoulder season? 

Response: Yes. The and of the peak season varies a bit, depending somewhat when
Easter/Passover holiday falls on calendar, so up until Mid -April. 

Q8: What is your current collection percentage rate for violations? 

Response: 65% 

Q10: What are the upload requirements for the HTE Sunguard system? 

Response: The system is not programmed for uploads. Your company would need to
coordinate your application with SunGard, if an interface needed to be written between

your company and SunGard. 

011: What file format would need to be used for the HTE Sunguard system? 

Response: The system is not programmed for uploads. Your company would need to
coordinate your application with SunGard, if an interface needed to be written between

your company and SunGard. 

Q12: What are the ages of the Luke I and Luke II pay stations? 

Response: Meters were purchased in 3 increments and installation dates are as
follows: 

Luke 1( 6 meters): April 2010
Luke 1 ( 3 meters): October 2011

Luke II ( 11 meters): November 2012

013: Who is the vendor for the Luke I and Luke 11 pay stations? 

Response: Digital Payment Technologies

014: What are the ages of your single space meters? 

Response: Installed varying dates in 2010 from June through end of that calendar
year. 



Addendum p2, T-43- 14

Q16: Who is the vendor for your single space meters? 

Response: P. O. M. Incorporated

Q16: Please explain your current violation collection procedures and detail your fine
structure. 

Response: The City assesses $32 for regular pkg. citations and $ 250 for handicap
citations. Violators are cited and if payment is not received within 14 calendar days of

being cited, a letter is mailed to the violator and a $ 12 late fee is assessed and added. 

If payment is not received within 90 days of being cited, BSO refers the accounts to the
City's Finance department via spreadsheet and Finance then emails the accounts to the
City's outside collection agency for additional letters and phone calls etc. Once
accounts are referred to the collection agency, the City automatically adds 17% 
collection fee to value of the fine on our books. The collection agency works on a 100% 
contingent basis and does not get paid unless they collect. 

Q17: Will the selected parking contractor be responsible for issuing citations for all non. 
moving violations or just unpaid parking violations? 

Response: YES

Q18: Please explain your residential parking permitting process. 

Response: The City issues a semiannual residential permit from $30 and an annual
permit for $60. The permits can only be used at the pier and Oceanside lots. See T- 
43- 14 Addendum #2 on our website at www.nomnanoboachft. nov

Q19: What is the current schedule of PEO being provided by BSO? Does the City
require 2417 enforcement? 

Response; 24r7 enforcement, Yes. 

Q20: Is the operator responsible for all maintenance of vehicles? Or will the City
consider maintaining the vehicles purchased on behalf of the operation at no cost to the
operation? 

Response: Yes. City's preference is for operators to provide for this. 

Q21: What is the city's capital plan as it relates to meters? 

Response: Currently no funding budgeted with respect to replacement of meters. 

Q22: Will the new office space require the operator to provide walk-in services? If so, 

what are the required hours of operation for parking in- offioe walk- in services? 

Response: Yes. Same as City Hall B am- 5 pm



Addendum q2, T43. 14

Q23: Are we responsible for providing Internet service to the payslations; i. e. TMobile, 
etc or will the City continue its service agreement separately? 

Response: City will continue its service agreement with T -Mobile

Q24: What are the hours of operation of the potential new parking garage? Will it be
fully automated? 

Response; Indeed, I would expect the design/ build team to make a recommendation

regarding automation. That decision will made no earlier than 60-90 days. Hours of
operation must be consistent with the Developer' s Agreement and the City' s Code of
Ordinances. I believe the Code allows parking from 7: 00 AM until 1: 00 AM. However, 
the Developers Agreement extends those hours from 6: 00 AM until 2: 00 AM. The

Developers Agreement will be amended shortly. Therefore, although unlikely, this
stipulation may change. 

025: Will the City cover the cost of armored car services? 

Response: Yes

028: The city references Passport Parking, can the City elaborate their current
relationship with these programs/ products? Addendum 1 indicates the City pays

10/ month lot for this service, what Is this fee for? 

Response: This provider allows parking patrons to pay for perking with a credit card via
their smart phones. Provider assesses a fee to customer for this service, so no cost to

City other than the $ 10 fee noted. The fee is $ 10/ month/meter. The City currently has
20 multi -space meters in operation, and all but two are configured for passport parking. 
Therefore Monthly fee for the City is $ 180. NOTE: There are many third party vendors
that offer the Pay -by -Phone feature for the multi -space meters. Regardless of which
vendor selected, our meter vendor, Digital Payment Technologies, will assess a $ 10

monthly fee per meter to implement. ( The only 2 meters currently not configured for
passport parking are located at Alsdorf Park. Since this parking lot is Pay and display
the passport parking feature cannot be implemented; eventually the goal is to
Implement pay by license plate at this lot which would allow Implementation of the
passport parking application. 

027: Will the city provided by large enough for a maintenance program including the
storing of spare parts and meters? 

Response: Yes. We cannot expect the operator to store parts somewhere else, unless

all the necessary equipment is slored somewhere else. In essence, everything should
be in the same place, under the same roof. 

Q28: Will the City allow the operator to fuel vehicles in the City's facilities or shall we
budget using privately owned gas stations? 

Response: The City will not allow use of its fueling facilities
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Q29: What is the total number of unpala parking citations from 2011, 2012 and 2013
respectively? 

Response: 

Here is outstanding for 2011: Count 305, Total $ 11, 191. 90
Here is outstanding for 2012: Count 1115, Total $ 48, 386.80
Here is outstanding for 2013: Count 1009, Total $ 84, 888. 00

030: What is the City's current collection role on the parking citations that are being
issued? 

Response: 65% 

031: Does the City currently issue warning tickets? If yes, what are the criteria for
issuing one? 

Response: No

032: Will the City remain the merchant of record ( pays the credit card fees directly) and
thereby all of the funds will be deposited directly into the City' s bank account. Or will
the operator need to be prepared to establish a bank account and credit card

processing arrangement for the follow: 
a. Digital Payment Technologies

b. Passport Parking
G. Violation payments made in the office

d. Violation payment made on the web

Response: City will continue to be the merchant of record and funds will be deposited
directly to City's bank account for all above. 

033: Who is the manufacturer of the current single space meters and what is their

functionality? 

Response: P. O. M. Incorporated is manufacturer. Limited functionality as they are not
networked and provide no data regarding usage or revenues collected. Accept coins
only. 

The deadline for acceptance of sealed bids in the Purchasing Office, 1190 N. E. 3rd
Avenue, Bldg. C, Pompano Beach, 33060, is 2: 00 p. m. ( local), June 12, 2014. 

The remainder of the solicitation is unchanged at this time. Acknowledge receipt of this

Addendum in the area provided on Page 23 of the RFP. 



cc'. website

file

f
Otis J. Thos

General Services Director

cc'. website

file



3

ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 71

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING

AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO

EXECUTE A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT

FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN

THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH AND DENISON

PARKING, INC. TO EXTEND CURRENT SERVICES TO

PROVIDE FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE PARKING

GARAGE LOCATED AT 275 SEA BREEZE WAY; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten ( 10) days' notice has been given by publication in a

paper of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a

public hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the

published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so

desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore, 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That a First Amendment to the Agreement for Parking Management

Services between the City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc., a copy of which

Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth in full, is hereby

approved. 

SECTION 2. That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to execute said

Agreement. 

1



SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of

this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this

end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 

PASSED FIRST READING this 12th day of J u 1 y 2016. 

PASSED SECOND READING this 2 6 t h day of July 2016. 

L RIAYOR

ATTEST: 

ASCELETA HA M OND, CITY CLERK

jrm

6/ 28/ 16

L:ord/ 2016- 252
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR

PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT to the Agreement for Parking Management Services last
dated January 30, 2015, issued in response to Request for Proposals for Parking Management
Services, No. T- 43- 14 ( hereinafter referred to as " Original Agreement") by and between City of
Pompano Beach " City") and Denison Parking, Inc. (" Parking Manager") is made as of

u d 2016. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, City is currently under contract with Parking Manager as the City' s parking
management manager as described in an Agreement dated January 30, 2015, a copy of which is
attached herein as Exhibit " A"; and

WHEREAS, City is completing construction of a parking garage with 609 spaces located
at 275 Sea Breeze Way in Pompano Beach, Florida, (herein referred to as the " Parking Facility"); 
and

WHEREAS, Parking Manager is engaged in and has substantial experience in managing
and operating vehicular parking facilities for clients; and

WHEREAS, City desires to expand the services of Parking Manager under the Original
Agreement to include the management of the Parking Facility as contemplated by the Original
Agreement and Request for Proposals for Parking Management Services, No. T-43- 14
hereinafter referred to as " RFP T-43- 14"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein

contained, City and Parking Manager agree as follows: 

1. Original Agreement. The Original Agreement remains in effect, without change

with respect to the matters addressed therein. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the

Original Agreement and this First Amendment, the Original Agreement shall control unless

doing so would render impossible providing the services as contemplated by this First
Amendment. 

2. Definitions. 

2. 1 Budget. A written projection of all receipts and expenditures for the

operation of the Parking Management Services by individual service or facility for each fiscal
year as mutually agreed by the parties. 

2.2 Emergency Expenses. Expenses as declared by the City or that are made
in the event of an emergency due to weather, vehicular accidents, criminal incidents, or other



acts of God that are necessary to protect the safety and welfare of the general public and the
City' s employees and vendors. 

2. 3 Fiscal Year. Each fiscal year ending the 30th day of September, all or a
part of which falls within the term of this First Amendment. 

2. 4 Personal Property. All equipment, supplies, filrnishings, filrniture and all
other items of personal property now or hereafter owned or leased or subleased by City and
located upon and used for the operation of the Additional Parking Management Services. 

2. 5 Gross Revenue. The aggregate of all receipts received directly by City or
Parking Manager ( inclusive of sales tax), its representatives, agents or employees, in connection
with the operation and management of the Additional Parking Management Services. 

2. 6 Operating Expenses. Operating Expenses shall include any and all
ordinary direct expenses of operating the Parking Facility as more particularly set forth in
Exhibit " B," attached hereto and incorporated herein, but excluding those costs and expenses
which are specifically the Expenses of Parking Manager or Expenses of City specifically set
forth in each Exhibit. 

2. 7 Expenses of Parking Manager. Expenses, designated as Expenses of

Parking Manager in Exhibit " B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be
the sole responsibility of Parking Manager. 

2. 8 Expenses of City. Expenses designated as Expenses of City in Exhibit
B," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be the sole responsibility of

City. 

2. 9 Operating Surplus. Operating Surplus shall equal Gross Revenue minus
Operating Expenses for the Parking Facility. 

2. 10 Monthly Operating Statement. The Monthly Operating Statement shall
mean the profit and loss statement for the Parking Facility, presented in reasonable detail
including the Gross Revenue and Operating Expenses incurred for the preceding month. In
addition to actual monthly activity, the Monthly Operating Statement shall include year- to- date
actual results compared to the Budget for the current Fiscal Year and such other financial data

and copies as may be required from time to time at City's reasonable request. Parking Manager
shall submit the Monthly Operating Statement to the City' s Finance Director or designee by the
201h of each month for the preceding month end. 

2. 11 Annual Operating Budget. Parking Manager shall submit each year by
March 1 preceding each fiscal year the projected budget for the Parking Facility. 

3. Employment. City hereby grants to Parking Manager, as an independent
contractor, the right to manage, operate and maintain the Parking Facility, subject to the terms
and provisions of this First Amendment and the Original Agreement. The Parking Manager shall

First Amendment Between City or Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc. 2



be deemed an independent contractor for all purposes, and the employees of the Parking
Manager or any of its contractors, subcontractors and the employees thereof, shall not, in any
manner, be deemed to be employees of City. As such, the employees of the Parking Manager, its
Contractors or subcontractors, shall not be subject to any withholding for tax, social security or
other purposes by City, nor shall such Contractor, subcontractor or employee be entitled to sick
leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life insurance, workers or unemployment

compensation or the like from City. 

4. Duties. 

4. 1 Subject to the limitations of the approved Budget, Parking Manager
covenants and agrees that it ( i) shall use due diligence and exercise its best professional

judgment and expertise to manage and operate the Parking Facility in a prudent manner
consistent with the Budget and with the management and operation of comparable parking
facilities and ( ii) shall provide such services as are customarily provided by managers of services
and facilities of comparable size, class and standing. Specifically, Parking Manager shall
perform the following services and duties for City: 

4. 1. 1 Employ persomtel capable of managing and operating the Parking
Facility in accordance with the terms of this First Amendment and the Original Agreement. 

4. 1. 2 Operating the Parking Facility on a 24- hour, 7 days -a -week basis, 
issuing parking permits to residents, non- residents and businesses for monthly overnight parking
for the fifth floor ( roof) of the Parking Facility, provide collection and enforcement for large
events such as July 4 weekend, Seafood Festival, and others as requested by City and providing
special consulting to the City for parking matters for both emergencies, as well as parking policy
recommendations. 

4. 1. 3 Maintain business -like relationships with patrons of the Parking
Facility. 

4. 1. 4 Execute City' s directives as to the policies pertaining to the
Parking Facility whether or not specifically covered in this First Amendment. 

4. 1. 5 Recommend to City improvements in the management and
operation of the Parking Facility. Ln addition, Parking Manager shall provide consulting and
advisory services to City conceming the Parking Facility without additional charge to City. 

4. 1. 6 Notify City in advance of any expenditures that are not in the
approved Budget and obtain City' s approval prior to incurring such expenditure. 

5. Staff. 

5. 1 Parking Manager shall employ as an Operating Expense experienced and
competent personnel (" Employees") capable of managing and operating the Parking Facility in
accordance with the terms of this First Amendment and the Original. Agreement. The number of

first Amendment Between City of Pornpano Hench and Denison Parking, Inc. 3



persons employed at the Parking Facility shall be mutually agreed upon by Parking Manager and
City, and shall be increased or decreased as reasonably determined by Parking Manager
consistent with this First Amendment, the Original Agreement and the Budget. Parking Manager
shall negotiate and obtain any necessary labor covering its Employees providing services
relevant to the Parking Facility. 

5. 2 Subject to such restrictions on pre- employment screening and background
checks as are imposed by law, such personnel shall be screened by the Parking Manager before
hiring at Parking Manager' s own cost, and Parking Manager acknowledges that all matters
pertaining to the employment, supervision, discipline, promotion, discharge and direction in the
performance of the duties of such employees shall be the sole responsibility of the Parking
Manager and the City shall have no liability with respect thereto. During working hours, such
Employees ( other than supervisory personnel) shall wear neat and clean uniforms, which identify
them as employees of Parking Manager and shall be identified with nametags. 

5. 3 Parking Manager shall lease or purchase uniforms subject to City approval
for Employees providing the services herein. The actual costs of unifonns used for services

hereunder shall be an Operating Expense described in the Parking Manager' s annual budget to
the City. 

5. 4 Subject to any collective bargaining agreements and applicable laws, 
Parking Manager acknowledges City's right to require Parking Manager to transfer any
Employee providing the services herein whose performance and/ or conduct shall not satisfy City
for any legally permissible reason. 

5. 5 Parking Manager shall hire qualified and experienced on-site managers of
the Parking Facility. City shall have an opportunity to participate in the development of criteria
to be employed in selection of the on- site manager and to interview and consult on the selection

decision. 

6. Hours of Operation. Management of the Parking Facility shall be provided on a
schedule to be established by City and Parking Manager. Current proposed schedule for the

Parking facility is seven ( 7) days a week, 24 hours a day. Such schedule may be changed by
City ( to reduce required hours) upon seven ( 7) days' notice to Parking Manager and any
appropriate resulting change in the Budget will be made promptly thereafter by Parking
Manager. 

7. Term. Parking Manager shall provide for the management of the Parking Facility
for a term commencing on the date the First Amendment is executed by the City and the Parking
Manager and shall continue for a term coinciding with the end of the term of the Original
Agreement, including the first term and any options to renew. 

8. Financial Terms. 

8. 1 Budget: Parking Manager submits herein the projected operating statement
for the operation of the Parking Facility at Exhibit " C," for the remainder of fiscal year 2016

First Amendment Between City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc. 4



1

August 1, 2016 through September 30, 2016), for fiscal year 2017 and for fiscal year 2018

through the end of the Original Agreement term ( January 30, 2018). ' The proposed expenses for

the Parking Facility are inclusive of a management fee and proposed operating expenses for the
Parking Facility. The annual fee charged by the Parking Manager for management of the
Parking Facility described in Exhibit " C shall not exceed the amounts proposed herein. Parking
Manager shall submit for approval to City, by March 1 prior to the begiruling of each Fiscal
Year, a proposed Budget with respect to the operation and management of the Parking Facility
for the ensuing Fiscal Year. Both City and Parking Manager shall use good faith efforts to agree
on each annual Budget submission. In the event City and Parking Manager cannot agree on a
Budget for the ensuing year, the prior fiscal year' s Budget shall control, until such time as a
Budget is agreed upon. 

8. 2 Payment of Expenses and Management Fee: Parking, Manager shall
deposit the Gross Revenue within 24-48 hours into a bank account maintained by City. ' The

Operating .Expenses for each month' s operation shall be disbursed by City as follows: 

8. 2. 1 Parking Manager shall direct pay all Operating Expenses outlined
at Exhibit " C." 

8. 2. 2 City shall pay to Parking Manager a monthly management fee, as
well as reimburse Parking Manager for the operating expenses, all as outlined at Exhibit " C"' for
the management of the Parking Facility, as invoiced by Parking Manager on a monthly basis. 
The amounts shown in said Exhibit are maximum amounts and the actual amount owed and paid

will be based upon specific hours of service, which may fluctuate from period to period. Such

payment shall be made by City within fifteen ( 15) calendar days of receipt of invoice by City. 
Management fee shall be suspended during any period the Parking Facility cannot be utilized due
to damage or other force majeure event. 

8. 3 Processing & Accounting for Receipts. 

8. 3. 1 Parking Manager is responsible for the collection of cash within
the parking garage facility and for recording such activity timely to Parking Manager' s own cash
receipts system. Such cash receipts system, relative to the utilization of an onsite cashier for

special events must accommodate a triple copy receipts system ( sequential numbering of receipts
must be provided for) with customer obtaining original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy
and a copy being remitted to the City' s ' Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt should

indicate the Facility location identifier, receipt no., the date paid. the amount paid, and nature of
payment ( i. e. cash or credit card). Parking Manager is responsible for the processing of all
receipts for bank deposit with City providing for at least twice weekly pickup of bank deposits
by an anned security service from Parking Manager' s office location for deposit to the City' s
bank account. Parking Manager is required to submit a copy of the bank deposit slip and a report
from Parking Manager' s cash receipts system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the
City' s Treasury Division. All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive of a
cash receipts processing report and shall be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

8. 3. 2 Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from pay station( s) 
within parking garage facility - Parking Manager shall extract cash and coins from the pay
station( s) and process the receipts in its own cash receipts system. Parking Manager is
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responsible for generating pay station( s) audit reports to accompany each extraction of cash and
coins from the pay station( s) and reconcile to the cash/ coin counts. Parking Manager is
responsible for taking a physical count of cash and coins and completing a bank deposit slip(s) 
for deposit of the collections. City shall provide a minimum of two weekly annored service
pickups from Parking Manager' s office location for physical deposit of pay station collections to
the City' s bank account. Parking Manager must arrange for deposit and pickup of pay station( s) 
collections within 48 hours of collection from pay station( s). For special events or holidays, 

Parking Manager shall make more frequent visits to the pay station( s) for collection of cash/ coins
as such volume of activity might warrant such. Parking Manager will provide for a secure safe
combination & key, with limited staff access) at local office site to hold pay station ( and valet

stations) collections pending anned service pickup. Parking Manager shall provide a copy of the
pay station( s) audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit report and a
copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. Such must be provided timely to the
City' s Treasury Division via mail or email as follows: 

City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rm 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager ( or designee) 

or

Linda.dye@copbfl. com ( or designee email) with copy to
Giselle.wishinsky@copbfi. com

A separate ledger account shall be established by location as follows: 

Pier Parking Garage

Parking Manager is required to provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division
for each deposit to indicate the name of the Parking Facility for each bank deposit
as stated above. All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive
of a cash receipts processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of
processing of transactions. 

Parking Manager is responsible for administering any of the City' s prepaid
parking card programs or pen -nit or decal programs relative to the Parking
Facility, as applicable, or as may be implemented from time to time. Parking
Manager shall be required to process and record receipts related to these

programs. Such cash receipts system must accommodate a triple copy receipts
system with customer obtaining original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy
and a copy being remitted to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such

receipt should indicate, the name of the facility, the parking permit, decal or card
no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and nature of payment and

payment type ( cash or credit card). Parking Manager is to prepare bank deposit
slips for this activity and the City would provide for twice -weekly armed service
pickup of such deposits. Parking Manager is responsible for recording this
activity in a dedicated accounting system account ( i. e. parking pennits, parking
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decals, parking card etc.) and must submit a copy of the bank deposit slip, a cash
receipts report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s Treasury Division. 
Parking Manager is responsible for maintaining all applications and proof of
qualification for each program item processed, in accordance with the City' s
records retention policy. 

Any request for refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed above must
be handled by the City' s Treasury Division and communicated to Parking
Manager for update of Parking Manager' s records and systems. 

Parking Manager is responsible for voiding any transactions, in accordance with
City' s established practices and must provide a reporting of such to the City' s
Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing. 

Any parking citations issued relative to the Parking Facility provided herein shall
be handled in accordance with terms and conditions established in the Original

Agreement with Parking Manager. 

City is responsible for establishing a payment processing mechanism for the
processing of credit card transactions related to the management of the Parking
Facility, to include remittance of all credit card processing fees and compliance
with any and all industry standards and regulations governing such arrangements. 
That being said, Parking Manager is responsible for ensuring its employees are
fully trained in such industry practices relative to appropriate security procedures
when accepting credit cards directly from patrons, if applicable. 

8. 4 Parking Garage Ticket Dispenser Reconciliation: Each morning Parking
Manager shall be responsible for recording the beginning ticket from each entrance' s ticket
dispenser and recording this number, along with the non- resettable count number from each
entrance/ exit device. The non- resettable number is a counter, built into the device that tracks the

number of times that a gate has opened. At the end of each day, Parking Manager shall repeat
this process. This process shall provide a starting and ending ticket number for each day, as
well as a total number of tickets issued each day. Parking Manager will match the total number
of tickets issued to the total number of tickets recovered each day, ensuring that this number
matches the total number of times that the gate was vended " non- resettable count numbers". 

Parking Manager will then match the beginning and end of day ticket numbers, as well as the
non- resettable count numbers, to the audit reports generated from the revenue control

equipment. 

9. Repairs and Emergency Expenses. 

9. 1 Repairs: City agrees to maintain the sidewalks and curb cuts adjacent to
the Parking Facility in accordance with applicable municipal codes. City shall also be
responsible for all. repairs of a structural nature for the Parking Facility including, but not limited
to, electrical, plumbing, pavement repair, painting of the structure, replacement of all mercury or
sodium lighting tubes and ballasts, repairs to the walls and floors of the Parking Facility, 
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sinkholes, and maintenance of ventilation system and elevators. Any structural, mechanical, 

electrical or other installations or any alterations required by statutes or regulations pertaining to
air quality, environmental protection, provisions for persons with disabilities or other similar
governmental requirements shall be the sole responsibility of City, Parking Manager agrees to
use reasonable diligence in the care and protection of the Parking Facility during the term of this
First Amendment and to surrender the Parking Facility at the termination of this First
Amendment in as good condition as received, ordinary wear and tear and other casualty
excepted. Parking Manager shall report any damages or necessary maintenance and repair as
soon as they are made known. 

9. 2 Emergency Expenses. City and Parking Manager agree to jointly
coordinate preparing for emergency situations such as hurricane preparedness. The expenditure
of funds by the Parking Manager for preparedness, repairs, and protection of public and private
property will require the written or email approval of the City Manager or designee. 

10. Meetings. City shall appoint an individual to serve as liaison with Parking
Manager' s on-site manager for the purpose of reviewing all matters under this First Amendment. 
The City's representative shall meet with Parking Manager' s manager from time to time, either
telephonically or in person, to carry out these purposes, but not less than once monthly. 

11. Records and Audits. 

11. 1 Parking Manager shall install and maintain an accurate and efficient
accounting system that accounts for all the Operating Expenses and Gross Revenue for the
Parking Facility. Such accounting system shall be kept for the duration of the contract term and
shall continue until the expiration of three years after contract termination or expiration. All

records pertaining to Gross Revenue and Operating Expenses shall be available for examination
and audit by City and its authorized representatives on reasonable request during non -nal
business hours. Parking Manager shall conduct monthly audits of parking ticket utilization and
monthly cash deposit activity. City shall have access to Parking Manager' s self -audits of the
operations and ticket utilization for the Parking Facility. In addition, the Parking Manager shall
permit the authorized representatives of the City to inspect and audit all data and records of the
Parking Manager specifically and directly related to the services rendered under or pursuant to
this Agreement by the Parking Manager to the City, if' any, relating to performance under the
contract until the expiration of three years after contract termination. The Parking Manager
further agrees to require a subcontractor to agree that City or any of their duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three years after contract termination, have access to

and the right to examine any directly pertinent City books, documents, papers and records of
such subcontractor, involving transactions related to the subcontractor. By mutual agreement, 
the Parking Manager and the City may choose to store the records in the parking office located at
the Parking Facility. 
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11. 2 Public Records. 

11. 2. 1 The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter
119, Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida' s Public Records Law, as
amended. Specifically, the Contractor shall: 

11. 2. 1. 1 Keep and maintain public records required by the
City in order to perform the service. 

11. 2. 1. 2 Upon request from the City' s custodian of public
records, provide the City with a copy of requested records or allow the records to be inspected or
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, 

Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law. 

11. 2. 1. 3 Ensure that public records that are exempt or

confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as

authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract
if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the City. 

11. 2. 1. 4 Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost

to the City, all public records in possession of the Contractor, or keep and maintain public
records required by the City to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records

to the City upon completion ,of the contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. 

If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the

Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored

electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City' s custodian of public
records in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City. 

11. 2. 2 Failure of the Contractor to provide the above described public

records to the City within a reasonable time may subject Contractor to penalties under 119. 10, 
Florida Statutes, as amended. 

PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS

REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF

CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO

THE CONTRACTOR' S DUTY TO PROVIDE

PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS

CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN

OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: 
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CITY CLERK

100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Suite 253

Pompano Beach, Florida 33060

954) 786- 4611

RecordsCustodiankeopbfl. co m

The failure of Parking Manager to comply with the provisions set forth in this section shall
constitute a default and material breach of this Agreement and the City shall enforce the default
in accordance with the provisions set forth in this First Amendment and Original Agreement or

as provided by law. 

11. 3 Parking Manager shall inquire of the City' s Finance Director or designee, 
within sixty (60) days of September 30 of each year as to whether an annual review of the design
and operating effectiveness of parking Manager's system of internal controls over the parking
management services to be provided herein needs to be performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and if such a report is deemed necessary, provide a copy of the report
Report on Controls at a Service Organization) to the City's Finance Director or designee within

120 days of September 30th of each year. Such a report shall be in accordance with the

requirements of Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued by the
American .Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

11. 4 Parking Manager shall be provided adequate office and storage facilities
within the Parking Facility with appropriate basic office finish and utilities to accommodate the
on- site manager and any other personnel required to perform this First Amendment plus
adequate storage for records and separate employee restroom facilities. To the extent possible, 

same shall be in sight of the main parking exit. Parking Manager has reviewed the existing
office and storage facilities and finds them to be acceptable. 

12. Insurance: 

12. 1 General Insurance Provisions. Each policy of insurance maintained
pursuant to the following provisions of this First Amendment shall comply with the following
requirements: 

12. 1. 1 Within seven ( 7) days of execution of this First Amendment, the

Parking Manager' s insurance agent shall provide the City with evidence of the insurance
coverages specified in this First Amendment in the form of Certificates of .Insurance. 

12. 1. 2 Each policy shall specifically provide for thirty ( 30) days' prior
written notice to the City in the event of a cancellation, reduction or detrimental material change
in coverage or change in the named insured. 

12. 1. 3 Certificates of Insurance provided by Parking Manager shall name
the City as additionally insured with respect to the insurance specified herein. 
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12. 1. 4 Each policy shall be issued by insurers of recognized financial
responsibility and shall be licensed or permitted to do business in the state in which the Parking
Facility is located

12. 1. 5 All insurance coverages are subject to a deductible amount not to

exceed the lesser of (a) Parking Manager' s actual out-of-pocket deductible ( b) $ 1, 000.00, except

Workers' Compensation which deductible shall be $ 0 and the payment of the deductible amount

of all claims will be an Operating Expense. 

12. 2 Parking Manager' s Required Insurance Coverage. Parking Manager shall
provide and maintain the following insurance coverages during the term of this First Amendment
and shall obtain and maintain such other insurance and increase the amounts of the designated

insurance coverages as City may request, subject to its availability. 

12. 2. 1 General or Garage Liability: 

1, 000, 000.00 combined single limit each occurrence for

bodily injury and property damage

12. 2. 2 Garagekeeper

1, 500,000.00 limit - legal liability. 

12. 2. 3 Automobile Liability: $ 1, 000,000. 00

12. 2.4 Umbrella Excess Coverage: $ 26, 000,000. 00

12. 2. 5 Crime and Fidelity: 

1, 500,000.00 Commercial Blanket - including employee theft
1, 500, 000.00 Broad form money - inside

1, 500, 000.00 Broad form money - outside

12. 2. 6 Worker's Compensation and Employer Liability: 

Coverage A - Statutory
Coverage B - $ 500,000. 00 BI Accident

500, 000.00 BI Disease - each employee

500,000.00 BI Disease - policy limit

Premiums, with respect to policies required of the Parking Manager, shall be paid
by the Parking Manager and premiums directly attributable to the management of the Parking
Facility shall constitute an Operating Expense. Parking Manager may purchase such insurance
on a blanket policy or binder provided that City' s protection shall not be diminished by claims at
other locations and the amounts provided above shall be available for the Parking Facility. 
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12. 3 City's Required Insurance Coverage: City shall obtain and maintain fire
and extended coverage insurance covering the Parking Facility and Personal Property contained
therein. 

13. Default. Either party shall have the right to terminate this First Amendment in the
event the other party has failed to perform any of the terms and conditions specified herein, if
said failure has been called to the attention of the responsible party in writing via certified mail
and that party has not corrected said failure within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of written notice
except as is provided in paragraph 9. 21)). In the event of such termination, Parking Manager

agrees to vacate the Parking Facility by midnight of the ( 90th) day after delivery of said notice. 

14. CaTital Improvements and Equipment. The cost of all capital equipment and

improvements, as the case may be shall constitute Expenses of City. 

15. Assi 7izg7 Hent. Parking Manager shall not assign its rights nor delegate its duties
hereunder in whole, without the prior written consent of City. 

16. Permits and Licenses. Parking Manager shall apply for and secure, on City's
behalf, all municipal. or other permits and licenses required for the provision of management

services for the Parking Facility and carry out the responsibilities under all permits and licenses
to the public and to the agencies having jurisdiction. Expenses incurred by Parking Manager in
discharging its responsibilities under this section shall be an Operating Expense. 

17. Restrictive Covenant. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, Parking Manager
agrees that neither Parking Manager nor any of their affiliates or subsidiaries, shall employ in
any capacity, any person that the City has had in its employ during this First Amendment. This
provision shall survive expiration or other termination of this First Amendment for a period of

one ( 1) year. 

18. Laws and Ordinances. 

Parking Manager and City agree to comply with all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and orders of such related to the parties under this First

Amendment, and such governing laws thereby and hereby incorporated by reference into this
First Amendment. Any expenses incurred by Parking Manager by reason of this section shall be
included as an Operating Expense. 

19. No Presumptions. This First Amendment shall be construed without regard to

any presumption or rule of law or equity regarding a construction of this First Amendment
against the party causing this First Amendment to be drafted or prepared. Any provision of this
First Amendment prohibited by law, invalid by any law, or invalid by any order of authority
with lawful jurisdiction shall be effective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, 
without in any manner invalidating or affecting the remaining provisions of this First
Amendment, such provision being deemed severable. 
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20. Entire First Amendment. This instrument contains the entire First Amendment

between the parties and no statements, promises, or inducements made by either party to this
First Amendment or any agent of either party to this First Amendment that is not contained
within this written First Amendment, shall be valid or binding upon the other party. This First

Amendment shall not be enlarged, modified, or altered in any manner, except in writing signed
by all parties to this First Amendment. 

21, Authority. Both persons signing this First Amendment on behalf of the City and
Parking Manager represent and warrant that they have full authority to enter into this First
Amendment on behalf of the party represented. This First Amendment shall be deemed to have

been accepted and its terms enforceable only upon execution thereof by both parties. 

22. Duties. City in no event shall be construed as a partner or associate of Parking
Manager nor shall it be liable for any of Parking Manager' s debts. Likewise, Parking Manager is
the manager acting on behalf of City and is not a fiduciary for City. 

23. Governing This First Amendment shall be deemed to have been made, 

governed by and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State in which the Parking
Facility management services are performed. Any action brought by either party to enforce the
terms of this First Amendment shall be brought in Broward County, Florida. 

24, Notices. Any notice, approval or other communication required hereunder shall
be deemed given in writing and personally given or mailed by U.S. Registered or Certified mail, 
addressed as follows: 

If to City: 

Dennis Beach, City Manager
City of Pompano Beach
100 West Atlantic Blvd, 4th Floor

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

Email: denn1s.beach0)copbfl.com

and to: 

Suzette Sibble, Finance Director

City of Pompano Beach, Florida
100 W. Atlantic Boulevard

Room No.480

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

Email: suzette.sibbleocopbfl. com

Robert McCaughan, Public Works Director

City of Pompano Beach, Florida
1201 NE 5th Avenue

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

Email: robert.mccaughanPcopbfl. com
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If to Parking Manager: 

Mark Pratt, President & CEO

Denison Parking, Inc. 
200 Century Building
36 South Pennsylvania Street

Indianapolis, fN 46204

Email: mprattOddenisonparking corn

and to: 

Jeff Lantz, Director of Operations

Denison Parking, Inc. 
1937 E. Atlantic Boulevard, No. 102

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

Email: ilantz(a denisonparkin , com

Or to such other address as last designated by such addressee in written notice. 

25. Termination. 

Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this First Amendment, or as

otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, Parking Manager shall: 

25. 1 Deliver to City or City's agent copies of current fiscal year Gross Revenue
account activity, and maintenance and service contracts pertaining to the operation of the

Parking Facility; and

25. 2 Provide to City a list of all vendors, including names and addresses, for
the providers of equipment and services for the Parking Facility; and

25. 3 Deposit to City' s bank account, within 24- 48 hours of receipt any and all
gross receipts not yet deposited; and

25. 4 Deliver to City a comprehensive list of all open insurance claims, 
including the status of each; and

25. 5 Return all Personal Property in the same condition as originally accepted, 
normal wear and tear excepted; and

25. 6 At request of City, shall use its best effort to work with City or City's
agent for a period of not less than sixty ( 60) days prior to discontinuance of this First

Amendment to make a smooth transition of management services and operation of the Parking
Facility from one entity to the other at no additional fee other than that provided herein. 
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26. Security Services. City expressly acknowledges that the Parking Manager' s
obligations in connection with the management, operation and promotion of the Parking Facility
and employment of persons in connection therewith, do not include the rendition of service, 

supervision or furnishing of personnel in connection with the personal safety and security of
employees, tenants, customers or other persons within and about the Parking Facility. Parking
Manager does not have knowledge or expertise as a guard or security service and does not
employ personnel for that purpose, nor do Parking Manager' s employees undertake the
obligation to guard or protect customers against the intentional acts of third parties. City shall
determine, at City' s discretion, whether and to what extent any precautionary warnings, security
devices or security services may be required to protect patrons in and about the Parking Facility. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment the day and
year first above written. 

Witnesses: 

Attest: 

A CELETA HAMMOND, CITY CLERK

Approved As To

ATTORNEY

CITY": 

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

M- 

M

MAYOR

DENNIS W. BEACH, CITY

SEAL) 

GER
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STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROW ARD

The foregoing instruments were acknowledged before me this 
I-141

day of

U% , 2016 by LAMAR FISHER as Mayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City Manager and
ASCELETA IfAMMOND as City Clerk of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on
behalf of the municipal corporation, who are personally known to me. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

po
Name of AcknowleAger Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

Witne ses: 

b• MI AAel by q I' S

Print Name

i.. &Vw' 

Print Name

Commission Number

PARKING MANAGER": 

DENISON PARKING, INC. 

Title:  0 U, t -Nd

STATE OF I V1Al0iKA

COUNTY OF A VI U111

f
Theorisg tng ins ' utnent was acknowledged before me this

7t" 
day of J LA IV , 

20161 by  T om'( Lt to e. as of DENISON

PARKING, INC., an Indiana corporation, authorized to do business in he State of Florida, on behalf of the

corporation. He/she is personally known to me or who has produc d i n I A h [ 1 PI' ye V --, I . l a-yIS. 0
type of identification) aspde3ficatipp. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: 

Name of Acknowledgcr Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

4 L cO- 70- 7 Sr-7lz.r, z--3
Commission Number

CLS:jrm

7/ 5/ l6

L:agt•/finance/ 2016- 1006
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EXHIBIT A

ORIGINAL AGREEMENT



ORDINANCE NO. 2015- 24

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

Broward County, Florida

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA, APPROVING

AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO

EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR PARKING

MANAGEMENT SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF

POMPANO BEACH AND DENISON PARKING, INC.; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to law, ten ( 10) days' notice has been given by publication in a

paper of general circulation in the City, notifying the public of this proposed ordinance and of a

public hearing in the City Commission Chambers of the City of Pompano Beach; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing before the City Commission was held pursuant to the

published notice described above, at which hearing the parties in interest and all other citizens so

desiring had an opportunity to be and were, in fact, heard; now, therefore, 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. That an Agreement between the City of Pompano Beach and Denison

Parking, Inc., a copy of which Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference

as if set forth in full, is hereby approved. 

SECTION 2. That the proper City officials are hereby authorized to execute said

Agreement. 

SECTION 3. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person

or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of



this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this

end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 4. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage. 

PASSED FIRST READING this _ 13th,` day of _ ] anuary , 2015. 

PASSED SECOND READING this 27th day of January , 20L5-• 

ATTEST: 

MARY L. CHA BERS, CITY CLERK

jrm

11/ 20/ 14

Lord/ 2015- 108

AMARF E 4bffYOR
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AGREEMENT FOR PARKING MANAGEMENTSERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, 
FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation, ( the " City") and DENISON PARKING, INC., ( the

PARK.LNG MANAGER"), 

WHEREAS, the City issued its Request for Proposals for Parking Management Services, No. T- 
43- 14 ( the " RFP") to solicit proposals to serve as the City' s Parking Manager, and

WHEREAS, the Parking Manager responded to the RHP by submitting its proposal dated June 6, 
2014 (" Proposal") which Proposal was selected by the City to be the best value; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties hereto to enter into an agreement whereby the Parking
Manager will provide Parking Management services to encompass parking enforcement, collections and
consulting services as it relates to the design and construction of the pier parking garage as might be
requested by City under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

1. Entirety- f Agreement. The entire and integrated agreement between City and Parking Manager
related to the services to be provided shall consist of ( 1) this Base Agreement ( items 1- 25 herein), ( 2) 

Parking Manager' s Revised Scope of Services as outlined at Attachment A ( 3) Parking Manager' s
detailed fee and rate structure Proposal included as Attachment B, ( 3) City' s Request for Proposals, 

Matuzgement of Parking Operations - T-43- 14 ( the " RFP"), included as Attachment C and ( 4) Parking
Manager' s Bid Response ( the " Proposal"), included as Attachment D. 

2. ParkinnManagement Services. Parking Manager shall provide the services described in the RFP, 
the terms of which are incorporated by reference in its entirety, and the Proposal, the terms of which are
incorporated by reference in its entirety ( which services, as may be added or changed, are hereinafter
referred to as the " Services"), as more defined at Attachment A. The City acknowledges that the
Parking Manager shall use reasonable care in performing its obligations under this .Agreement. 

Parking Manager agrees that the City will riot be charged an additional fee for expanding the meter
enforcement zone east of US I ( Federal Ilighway). City understands that should the meter enforcement
zone expand outside of this geographic boundary, whereby it requires additional enforcement personnel, 
Parking Manager and City may negotiate an additional fee, subject to approval by the City Commission. 

Parking Manager agrees that whereby Parking Manager is responsible for establishing a system for over
the counter or online processing of credit card transactions, which does not flow through the City' s
network, that Parking Manager will be responsible for compliance with all regulations governing
merchant acceptance and processing of credit card transactions, inclusive of compliance with Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standards. 

Parking Manager agrees to provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of
Parking Manager' s system of internal controls to be performed annually, by a certified independent
accountant, and to provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a Service Organization) to the
City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a report will be in accordance with the requirements of

Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 15, as issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. 

3. Additional or Revised Services. The parties acknowledge and agree that, in the event that the

City elects to utilize any of the Parking Manager' s services not set forth in the Proposal, or in the event



that the Parking Manager, in the normal course of its business, develops specific services agreement in the
future for Parking Managing services requested by the City in addition to those covered by the UP and
Proposal, the Parking Manager will provide the specific services agreement, which shall be deemed to be
an amendment to and subject to this Agreement, whether or not specifically stated in the service
agreement, with such amendment subject to approval by the City Commission. 

CompensLoon. 

4. 1 Parking Manager' s detailed fee and rate structure is included as Attachment B and will
be in effect for the entire period of this Agreement, inclusive of any mutually agreed upon renewal
periods. The Parking Manager shall prepare a monthly billing for Services rendered. The billing will
reflect the amount due for services performed by the Parking Manager. The Fees shall be the sole
compensation paid to the Parking Manager in connection with the rendition of the Services and the
performance of any and all of its other obligations hereunder. 

4. 2 City will pay the Parking Manager in accordance with the Local Government Prompt
Payment Act, Section 217. 70, et al., Florida Statutes, as amended, which also establishes a process and

remedies for non- compliance. Invoices must be submitted to City of Pompano Beach Public Works
Department, 1201 N. E. 5` h Avenue, Pompano Beach, FL., 33060, Attention: Public Works Director. A
copy of the invoice should also be forwarded to the City' s Finance Department at 100 W. Atlantic Blvd., 
Pompano Beach, FL 33060, Room 480. Invoices shall show the nature of the service and dates of

service. 

4. 3 No payment made under this Agreement shall be conclusive evidence of the performance

of this Agreement by the Parking Manager, either wholly or in part, and no payment shall be construed to
be art acceptance of or to relieve the Parking Manager of liability for the defective, faulty or incomplete
rendition of the Services. 

5. TERM. The term of the engagement under this Agreement shall commence on the last date

executed by the later of the City and the Parking Manager and shall continue for a term of three ( 3) years. 
This Agreement may, by mutual agreement, be renewed for two additional one. ( 1) year periods. 

6. COMPLIANCE_ WITH LAWS. In the conduct of the Services under this Agreement, the Parking
Manager in good faith shall comply in all material respects with all applicable federal and state laws and
regulations and all applicable county and City ordinances and regulations, including, but not limited to, 
standards of licensing, conduct of business and those relating to crinunal activity. 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Parking Manager shall he deemed an independent
contractor for all purposes, and the employees of' the Parking Manager or any of its contractors, 
subcontractors and the employees thereof, shall not in any manner be deemed to be employees of City. 
As such, the employees of the Parking Manager, its Contractors or subcontractors, shall not be subject to
any withholding for tax, social security or other purposes by City, nor shall such Contractor, 

subcontractor or employee be entitled to sick leave, pension benefits, vacation, medical benefits, life

insurance, workers or unemployment compensation or the like from City. 

8. AUDIT AND; CNSPECTION OF RECORDS. The Parking Manager shall permit the authorized
representatives of the City to inspect and audit all data and records of the Parking Manager specifically
and directly related to the services rendered under or pursuant to this Agreement by the Parking Manager
to the City, if any, relating to performance under the contract until the expiration of three years after
contract ternunation. 



The Parking Manager further agrees to require a subcontractor to agree that City or any of their duly
authorized representatives shall, until the expiration of three years after contract termination, have access

to and the right to examine any directly pertinent City books, documents, papers and records of such
subcontractor, involving transactions related to the subcontractor. 

9. INSURANCE. 

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary for this contract by
the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect at the time of submittal, but
certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade
ability will speed the review process to determine the most qualified Proposer. 

The Parking Manager shall not commence operations until certification or proof of insurance, detailing
terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved by the City of Pompano Beach Risk
Manager. 

The following insurance coverage shall be required. 

a. Worker' s Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as
required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company ( number
of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control

and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the
course of their employment. 

b. I-Jahility Insurance
1) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General

Liability Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract. 

2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance
and indicated minimum policy limits. 

Type of Insurance

LIMITS OF LLABIL.rYY

each

occurrence aggregate

GENERAL LIABILITY: MINLMUM $ 1, 000, 000 per OCCURRENCE / $ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis

XX comprehensive form

XX premises - operations

explosion St collapse

hazard

underground hazard

XX products/ completed

operations hazard

XX contractual insurance

XX broad form property
damage

XX independent contractors

XX personal injury

bodily injury

property damage

bodily injury and
property damage
combined

personal injury

3



AUf'ONIOBLLE LIABILI'T' Y: MIN [MUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURPL-'NCE/ $ 1, 000,000 AGGREGATE

bodily injury
each person) 

bodily injury
XX comprehensive form ( each accident) 

XX owned property damage
XX hired bodily injury and
XX non -owned property damage

combined

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

EXCESS LIABILITY

bodily injury and
umbrella form property damage
other than umbrella combined $ 2, 000,000. $ 2, 000,000. 

XX PROFESSIONAL LIABFL.ITY $ 1, 000,000. $ 1, 000,000. 

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City thirty ( 30) 
days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

Parking Manager shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance required by the provisions
set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award of contract. 

10. HOLD HARMLESS_ AND I.NDENINLRCATION, Parking Manager covenants and agrees that it
will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officers, agents, and employees from any clairn, 
loss, damage, cost, charge or expense arising directly out of any act or ornission by the Parking Manager, 
whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties may be subject, except that neither the
Parking Manager nor any of its subcontractors will be liable under this section for damages arising out of
injury or damage to persons or property directly caused by or resulting from the negligence of the City or
any of its officers, agents or employees. 

11. TEt.MD',IATION. Each party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in
part, with or without cause, and for its convenience, when in that party' s sole discretion it deems such
termination is its best interest, upon ninety ( 90) days prior written notice. Payment for Services rendered
shall be made in accordance with this Agreement. Upon termination, this Agreement shall have no further

force or effect and the parties shall be relieved of all further liability hereunder, except that the provisions
of this Section and the provisions regarding the right to audit, insurance, indemnification, governing law
and litigation shall survive termination of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect. 

4



Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may terminate the Agreement for cause. A party shall be in
default if a party fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder and such failure continues for a period
of twenty ( 20) days after written notice as provided in Paragraph 12, below, from the non -defaulting party
specifying the nature of the failure. 

12. NOTICE. All written notices, demands and other communications required or provided for under

this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, in the case of
mailing, or by overnight or same day courier, or by electronic transmission producing a written record, or
hand delivered to the Parking Manager or to the City, at the address below Agreement: 

PARKING MANAGER: 

Mark Pryor, VP of Business Development

36 S. Pennsylvania Street, Suite 200
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

CITY: 

Robert McCaughan, Public Works Director and Suzette Sibble, Finance Director

1201 N. E. 5" Avenue 100 W. Atlantic Blvd. 

Pompano Beach, FL 33060 Pompano Beach, Florida 33060

13. NON- DISCRIMINATION. Ln performing under this Agreement, the Parking Manager shall not
discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, gender identity or expression, 
genetic information, national origin, age, disability, familial status, marital status or sexual orientation. 

14. ASSIGNMENT. The Puking Manager shall not assign, sublet, convey or transfer its interest in
this Agreement without notification to City, at which point City may elect to terminate its Agreement
with Parking Manager should such assignment, sublet, conveyance or transfer of Parking Manager' s
interest not be acceptable to City. It is further agreed that said notice shall be given where feasible i)y
Parking Manager not less than thirty ( 30) days prior to the date of any proposed assignment, 

15. FORCE MAJEURE. Paiking Manager shall not be held responsible for losses, delays, failure to
perform or excess costs caused by events beyond the control of the Parking Manager. Such events may
include, but are not restricted to the following: Acts of God; fire, epidemics, earthquake, flood or other

natural disaster; acts of the government; riots, strikes, war or civil disorder; unavailability of fuel. 

16. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. The Parking Manager represents that to its knowledge, no City
employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an employee of the Parking Manager, Parking Manager
further acknowledges that if it comes to Parking Manager' s attention that any City employee is an owner, 
corporate officer, of an employee, the Parking Manager will, as it may determine, file a statement with the
Broward County Supervisor of Elections pursuant to § 112, 313, Florida Statutes. 

17. PATENT FEES, ROYALTIES AND LICENSES. Parking Manager agrees, as described herein, 
that if Parking Manager requires or desires to use any design, trademark, device, material or process
covered by letters of patent or copyright in connection with the Services contemplated herein, the Parking
Manager and its surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all claims for
infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, trademark, copyright, material or
process in connection with the work agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, 
expense, royakty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any infringement at any
time during or after completion of the work. With respect to the services and/ or technology

Technology") provided to the City directly by the Parking Manager which is used by the City in an
approved manner (" Approved Use"), the Parking Manager shall indemnify the City from and against any



and all losses resulting solely from a claim brought by a third party that specifically alleges any Approved
Use of the Technology infringes on any third parry copyright, trademark, service mark or trade secret. 
The foregoing states Parking Manager' s entire obligation and liability with respect to infringement of
third party intellectual property rights. 

18. PUBLIC ENTITY CRLMES ACT, The Parking Manager represents, to the knowledge of the
undersigned, that the execution of this Agreement will not violate the Public Entity Crimes Act ( Section
297. 133, Florida Statutes), and certifies that, to the knowledge of the undersigned, the Parking Manager
has not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of
Management Services within 36 months from the date of submitting its Proposal for this Agreement or
entering into this Agreement. Violation of this section may result in termination of this Agreement and
recovery of all monies paid hereto, and may result in debarment from City' s competitive procurement
activities. 

19. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and
delivered within the State of Florida, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida, both as to interpretation and performance. Any action at
law, or in equity, shall be instituted and maintained only in courts of competent jurisdiction in Broward
County, Florida. 

20. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any term or provision of this shall to any extent be held
invalid or unenforceable, it is agreed that the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such

terns or provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or

unenforceable, shall not be affected and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be
deemed valid and enforceable to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

21. WAIVER. Any waiver by either party hereto of any one or more of the covenants, conditions, or
provi'sions of this Agreement, shall not be construed to be. a waiver of any subsequent or other breach of
the same or any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement. 

22. READINGS. The headings contained in this Agreement are provided for convenience only and

shall not be considered in construing, interpreting or enforcing this Agreement. 

23, PUBLIC RECORDS. 

A. The City is a public agency subject to Chapter 119. Florida Statutes. The

Contractor shall comply with Florida' s Public Records Law. Specifically, the Parking Manager shall: 

1. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would
be required by the city in order to perform the service; 

2. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms

and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed that provided in
Chapter 199, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law; 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and

exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; and

4. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the
City, at no cost, all public records in possession of the Parking Manager upon termination of the contract
and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored

Co



B. The failure of Parking Manager to comply with the provisions set forth in this
section shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the city shall enforce the Default in
accordance with the provisions set forth in this Agreement or as provided by law. 

24. MUTI !AL COOPERA"PION. The City represents that the performance of this contract is essential
to the provision of vital public services and the accomplishment of the statedgoals and mission of City. 
I' herefore, Parking Manager agrees to act in gond faith in all relations with City in its performance under this
Agreement, 

25. CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, in the event of
any conflict between the specific provisions of this Agreement and the requirements or provisions of the RFP
and/ or Proposal, the provisions shall be given precedence in the following order: ( 1) this Base Agreement

Items 1- 25 herein); ( 2) Scope of Services at Attachment A; ( 3) Detailed Fee and Rate Structure at

Attachment B; ( 3) the R_FP; and ( 4) the Proposal, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties liereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their proper

and appropriate officials on the day and year first above written. 

Witnesses: 

Attest: 

MARY L. CHAMBERS, 1TY CLERK

Approved! To Form: 

G RDON B. LJNN, CI" Y ATl'URNEY

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

By: --- 
LA N1

y:

LA1vI AjDf 46
Z4

i

DENN[ S Vv. BEACH, CITY MANAUER

SEAL) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before "'-
W

g S g ..__, tTlt.._... tf is.___--- -_ day of

2014 by LAMA _.FZS..HER--ag- NvvTayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City
Manager, and MARY_;i,._CH> MBFR'Sas' City Clerk of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal

one6~half of the municipal corporation, who is personally known to me. 
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ST'AT'E OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 30th day of January

20 5 by LAMAR FISHER as Mayor, DENNIS W. BEACH as City Manager, and
Citr-6la l: of the City of Pompano Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, on behalf of the municipal corporation, 
who is personally known to me. 

NOTARY' S SEAL: NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

KRYSTAL AAPON

TAR'' PU51-1C
7. a:'t- y'', a '' i i:. . im- )' 17LO-Ri A

S' bet Expil-s-s 2114i2017

Witnesses: 

L1

s

STATE OF T f

COUNTY OF _ pet v. 

Krystal Aaron

Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

Commission Number

PARK -MG NIANAGER" 

DENISON PAR_IdNG, INC. 

M'l4izk

Print

Narne: 

PRA -M

Title: Ppk-slpC-rj'T i e -f—= -O

Business License No. 

The foregoing
intirneiP

was nowledt;ed before me this day of n- fn! 

20t( by . _ __ LA 1 Q1..._..__.. - -- as 0- 4? 

of VENISON PARKfNG, INC.,, acorporation on behalf of the corporation. 

He/ she is_personally known to me or who has produced
type of iderntificat. on) as i e tAi op , A

NOTARY' S SEAL: NOT P1IBLIC, STATE OF , jc

Lixe
Name of AcknowlecIger Typed, Printed or Stamped) 

W3 -3)- j_- . - - --- --- 
Commission Number

rm

12' 12114

L. Agr±pwi2015- 330



STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF BROWARD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 30`
h

day of
January, 2015 by ASCELETA HAMMOND, as Acting City Clerk of the City of
Pompano Beach, a municipal Florida corporation, on behalf of the municipal

corporation, who is personally known to me. t

NOTARY'S SEAL: NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORIDA

Jn KRYS' . AARON

c• 
NWITAF%Y' KIE:LIG

TAT>= OF FLORIDA

ay4 1(7 u Exp' rss 2114/ 2017

Krvstal Aaron

Name of Acknowledger Typed, Printed or

Sta m ped) 

Commission Number



ATTACHMENT A

Parking Manager' s revised scope of services



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT FOR PARKING MANAGEMENT SERVICES

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Parking Manager shall provide the following services during the term of the Agreement: 

Meter Enforcement

a. Patrol of and enforcement for single- space, multi -space meters and

parking lots, inclusive of issuance of parking citations for all parking
violations, in accordance with City ordinance. 

b. Provide for all support vehicles, office and computer equipment as

required to perform the day- to- day operations of the parking program. 
Parking Manager shall be responsible for any internet service connections
fees, as a result of any remote access to the City' s network and any
associated maintenance costs. 

c. Provide for GPS tracking of enforcement vehicles and assigned personnel
via cell phone. 

d. Coordinate the installation and maintenance of parking meters, pay

stations and change machines and for the general maintenance of all City
parking meter lots and on -street parking (sweeping, striping etc.). 

e. Provide price quotes for both purchase and lease options, at the City' s
discretion when new parking equipment is to be acquired by the City
directly. Equipment type and installation shall be in accordance with

standards issued by the City. 

f. Provide for the repair or replacement of all parking equipment and
appurtenances within forty ( 48) hours or in accordance with City' s
contractual terms with equipment vendor. 

g. Coordinate selection of and pay for costs associated with the selection of
ticket held devices ( TIDs) and license plate recognition technology. The

selection of such software or technology shall allow for import and export
of data fronVto the citation management database, as maintained and

operated by Parking Manager. 

h. Monitoring, ordering and stocking of expendable products for meters ( i. e. 
printer ink, printer paper, batteries etc.) and TlDs. 

i. Utilization of Enterprise Management System ( EMS) Back Office Support

System ( BOSS) Software to re -program meters, as necessary. 



j. Manage and oversee the use of any third party programs ( i. e. Passport

Parking-- pay- by- phone) by the City to support its parking activities. 

k. Provide boots for habitual parking enforcement violations in accordance
with City policy, if program is iMplernented by the City. 

1. Provide for towing, as applicable. 

m. Coordinate the repair or needed maintenance of any field parking software
systems with the City' s designated vendor( s). 

n. Provide employees with identifiable badges and uniforms, as approved by

the City. All vehicles shall have appropriate identifiable marks to indicate
Parking Manager' s affiliation with the City of Pompano Beach Parking
Services, subject to City approval. 

o. Ensure enforcement personnel assigned to the contract are appropriately
trained and possess all required certifications and/ or licenses for issuing
non- moving violations. Parking Manager shall be responsible to provide
at own expense) for pre- screening background checks for all personnel to

be assigned to the City. 

p. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to the parking
enforcement program. 

q. Provide annual reporting ( within 90 days of City' s fiscal year end) to the
City describing the current state of parking enforcement activity. The

report shall, at a minimum, indicate no. of citations issued for the previous

fiscal year ( October 1" through September 30'
h), 

number of enforcement

personnel writing citations, number of citations issued per staff member
writing citations and any recotrtmendations for improvements to

operations detailing any associated costs. A copy of citation database
generated report shall be provided as part of the package, which shall

reconcile to no. of citations indicated as issued in the annual report. 

r. Provide, as part of the required annual reporting ( within 90 days of City' s
fiscal year end), an annual survey to City of neighboring cities parking
rates, at Parking Manager' s own expense. 

s. Assist and consult with the City, as necessary in any enhancement, change
or modification of its parking enforcement program. 

t. Assist in implementing general perking programs, including working with
businesses, neighborhood groups, and other organizations, as needed. 



Citation Manaamment

a. Processing and maintaining a database of pari ing citations issued. 

b. Inputting citations issued within 48 hours of issuance, including those
written by Broward Sheriff' s Office (BSO) personnel, if applicable. 

c. For citations issued by Parking Manager, shall generate letters to violators
within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of citations being issued, to include
assessment of late fees, in accordance with City policy. Letter shall also

notify violators that if payment is not received in full within thirty days of
the date indicated on the letter, the obiigation shall be referred to the

City' s collection agency, which shall result in the violator being obligated
for all collection fees incurred by the City to effect such. Language in

letter must be pre -approved by the City. 

d. Shall provide a phone, fax and email address to which violators may direct
inquiries. Such shall be indicated on the parking citation issued. Parking
Manager shall also coordinate requests by violators for a court date to
contest citations and coordinate such efforts with the City Attorney' s
Office, Parking Manager shall also attend enforcement court proceedings
for disputed citations and follow through with hearing officers' decisions, 
as necessary. 

e. Provide for a local office within the boundaries of the City, whereby
customers may visit to make inquiries about or appeal parking citations
issues, make citation payments ( via, cash, check or credit card) or for

general parking inquiries. Such office shall he operated Monday through

Friday, 8 a. m. to 5 p. m. 

f. For citations issued by Parking Manager, on a Quarterly basis, Parking
Manager shall generate a report of outstanding parking citations older than
ninety ( 90) days and export data to an excel tile. Parking Manager shall
email a spreadsheet to the City' s Finance Director or designee showing aL' 
relevant information for each citation. Parking Manager shall add a
collection fee of' 17% ( as may be amended from time to time) to each
citation amount due once the account has been referred to the Finance

Department for formal collection action. Parking Manager' s systems shall
separately identify initial violation and penalties ( i. e. City' s late fee) and
amounts ( 17%) assessed each account placed with the collection and any
reports of revenue collected and subnutted to the City' s Treasury Division
must clearly delineate such. 

g. Shall be responsible for providing citation infomiation to the State of
Florida Division of Motor Vehicles ( the State) to allow the State to place a

hold on violators, whereby tag renewal shall be delayed if violators have



at least three ( 3) regular unpaid citations or one ( 1) unpaid handicap
citation, Parking Manager shall be responsible for establishing a process
whereby the State shall provide detailed information for violators ( i. e. 

addresses, DL# etc.) directly to Parking Manager to allow for the mailing
of letters to violators and assist in follow- up collection efforts. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for establishing an infrastructure to allow for
this two- way communication and ensuring compatibility of Parking
Manager' s system with the State' s system, to allow for this interface of

data. 

Cash Receipts Collection, Handling and Processing

a. Processing and maintaining a database of parking tickets issued to record
receivables and deferred revenue for all citations written, and cash and

revenues as receipts are processed. City staff shall be provided inquiry
access to such system. 

b. Collection of all parking citation payments at local office site and entry
into Parking Manager' s cash receipts system. Such cash receipts system

must accommodate a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining

original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted
to the City' s " Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt shall indicate
the parking citation no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and

nature of payment ( i. e, parking citation). Parking Manager shall be
responsible for the processing of such receipts for bank deposit with City
providing for daily pickup of bank deposits by an armed security service. 
Parking Manager shall be responsible for securing deposit bags and tickets
for City' s banking partner. Parking Manager shall submit a copy of the
bank deposit slip and a report from Parking Manager' s cash receipts
system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the City' s Treasury
Division. For non -sufficient funds ( NSF) payments made via check, the

City' s Treasury Division shall inform Parking Manager of such for update
of Parking Manager' s records. Parking Manager shall be responsible for

assessing the NSF fee ( in accordance with City policy) to the violator and
updating Parking Manager' s financial records accordingly. All reporting
to the City' s Treasury Division shall be inclusive of a cash receipts
processing report and shall be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

c. Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from parking meters. Parking
Manager shall accept these funds at its local office site, to include

facilitation of payment via credit card and process the receipts in its own

cash receipts system. Parking Manager shall be responsible for all
payment processor fees governing credit card acceptance. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for generating meter audit reports ( with the
exception of lollipop meter extractions) to accompany each extraction of



cash and coins from the meters and reconcile to the coin/ cash counts. 

Parking Manager shall be responsible for taking a physical count of cash
and coins ( and provision of a coin counter) and completing a bank deposit
slip( s) for deposit of the meter collections. City shall provide daily- anned
service pickup for physical deposit of meter collections to the bank. 
Parking Manager shall arrange for deposit and pickup of meter collections
within 48 hours of collection from meters. For special events or holidays, 

Parking Manager shall make more frequent visits to the meters for
collection of coins/ cash as such volume of activity night warrant such. 

Parking Manager shall provide for a secure safe ( combination & key, with
limited staff access) at local office site to hold meter collections pending
armed service pickup. Parking Manager shall provide a copy of the meter
audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit

report and a copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. 
Such shall be provided timely to the City' s Revenue Collections Division
via mail or email as follows: 

City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rm 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager

or

Linda. dye@copbfl. com with copy to
Giselle. wishinsky@copbfl. com

Parking Manager shall establish separate ledger accounts by lots/ locations
as follows ( and for any other new locations added by City): 

Municipal Pier Lot

Oceanside Lot

Beach Parking Lot
Alsdorf Lots

Street Parking Meters
Harbor Village/N. E. I" Street

Parking Manager shall provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division for
each deposit to indicate the locations of each collection for each bank

deposit as stated above. All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division shall
be inclusive of a cash receipts processing report and must be provided
within 24 hours of processing of transactions, 

d. Administer the City' s residential parking permit program and parking
passes, as applicable. The City currently issues approximately 200
residential parking permits per year for its Oceanside and Municipal Pier
Lots. The City issues semi- annual permits at a price of $30 and annual
permits at a price of $60, based on certain qualifying criteria ( i. e. proof of



residency). Parking Manager shall be required to process and record
receipts related to this program. Such cash receipts system shall

accommodate a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining

original, Parking Manager maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted
to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt shall indicate

the parking permit no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and

nature of payment ( Le. residentiaJ parking permit). Parking Manager shall
prepare bank deposit slips for this activity with the City providing for
daily -armed service pickup of such deposits. Parking Manger shall be
responsihle for recording this activity in a dedicated system account ( i. e. 
residential parking permits) and shall submit a copy of the bank deposit
slip, a cash receipts report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s
Treasury Division. Parking Manager shall be responsible for maintaining
aJl applications and proof of qualification for each perrrut issued, in

accordance with the City' s records retention policy. 

e. Shall request refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed above be
processed through the City' s Treasury Division and Treasury Division
shall communicate such refunds to Parking Manager for update of Parking
Manager' s records and systems once refund has been processed, 

f. Shall be responsible for voiding any transactions, in accordance with
City' s established practices and must provide a reporting of such to the
City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing. 

g. Shall be responsible for establishing an online system to allow violators to
make credit card payments via a secure website ( complying with all

regulatory requirements). Parking Nlanager shall be responsible for
ensuring such system is PCI compliant ( providing for any system scans if
applicable) and on an annual basis must ensure submittal of PCI complaint

report to Visa/ MC by parking Manager' s designated payment processor, if
required, Parking Manager shall be responsible. for the posting of these
online payments to Parking Manager' s cash receipts system. Parking
Manager shall be responsible for linking online receipts directly to the
City' s designated batik account for daily deposit and submittal of` cash
receipts reports to the City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of
processing, 

h. Within thirty ( 30) days from City' s fiscal year end ( September 30th), shall

be responsible for providing an aging report of outstanding parking
citation receivables ( at fiscal year- end) to the City' s Finance Department. 

Garage Design/ Construction Consulting Services

a. Review pro -forma estimates of revenue and expense expectations. 



b. Assist in selection of PARCS ( Parking and Revenue Control Systems) equipment
needed in the pier parking garage facility to properly control monthly/contract, 
transient/ cash and validation business. 

c. Provide advice regarding most efficient lighting methodology. 

d. Estimate the proper maintenance reserve fund that should be accrued to provide

for long- term structural stability. 

e. Assist in selection and placement of signs needed to properly control the parking

facility traffic flow, ingress/ egress, etc. 

f. Provide any other consulting services requested by City, on an as needed basis. 

General Requirements

a. Parking Manager ( all parties to the Agreement) shall be licensed to do business in the
State of Florida and shall obtain a business tax receipt for the City and Broward
County, prior to commencement of services. 

b. Parking Manager shall staff an office within the limits of the Pompano Beach, at own
expense, to generally contain the management of the parking program, inclusive of
accepting customer inquiries, acceptance and processing of payments and issue late
notices for overdue payment of citations etc. City reserves the right to provide a
permanent location within the pier parking garage upon its completion, at which point
Piuking Manager shall no longer be compensated for office rent as outlined in the
Parking Managers line item budget. 

c. Handle all customer service associated with the parking program. 

d. Provide weekly, monthly and annual reports as may be required by the City. 

e. Propose the purchase of equipment, data software and information systems relating to
and associated with the day- to- day operations of the parking management program to
enhance operating efficiency, with prior approval of the City. All purchases shall be
in accordance with City policies and procedures. All program specific products

purchased by the Parking Manager with City funds, outside the scope of the agreed
upon compensation under this Agreement shall upon termination of the Contract

remain the property of the City. 

f. Coordinate the implementation of any changes in the City' s parking rates or policies. 

g. Provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of parking
Manager' s system of internal controls to be performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a
Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a report shall



be in accordance with the requirements of Statement on Standards for Attestation

Engagements No. 16, as issued by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. 

h. Coordinate special City events with City staff. 

Within 6 months of the execution of this Agreement, meet with City and CRA staff
and review current parking operations and provide a report to the City )`Manager with
observations and recommendations etc. May include new technologies, payment

acceptance methods, additional meter locations, garage locations, marketing, signage, 
experience/ suggestions for a 10017o cashless system etc. 

j, , Any reasonably related services upon request. 

Additional Services as Elected by City of Pompano Beach

a. Parking Manager recognizes that City has agreed to parking enforcement being
provided for shifts covering the period from 7 a. m. to 11 p. m., Citywide, seven

days/ week. Parking Manager understands that should City require additional
enforcement periods, such shall be provided by Parking Manager on an as -needed
basis ( i. e. special even( s) for a flat hourly rate of $ 18. 

b. Parking Manager agrees to provide for booting equipment ( one boot) if such a

program is implemented by the City. The cost of this boot shall be depreciated over
the remaining term of the contract at the point the boot is purchased. 



ATTACHMENT B

Agreement for Parking Management Services
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Operadnp Assumptlons: Capital

Enforcement Vehicle 5 20, 000

Collection Van 20, 000

Office Furniture 2, 000

Computer 3,000

Enforcement Equip. 51, 925

Coin Counter 5, 000

Camera/ DVR 10, 000

Office Build Out 4, 000
Sate 1, 500

117, 425 Q A% over 36 monks = $ 3, 679. 67 per month x 12 rn,onihs- 44, 156 Deprecia:.on
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Attachment B ( Fees) - Pier Garage Design/ Construction Consulting Services

Parking Manager will provide consulting services related to the design/construction of
the Pier Parking Garage at a rate of $ 150 per hour, plus reasonable out of pocket

expenses. Out of pocket expenses may include postage, copying, any travel required to
review the site in person. Consulting fees, inclusive of out of pocket expenses shall not
exceed $ 10, 000. 



ATTACHMENT C

City request for proposal, Management of Parking Operations RFP T- 43- 14



ATTACHMENTC

Florida' s Warmest Welcome

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

T- 43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

RFP OPENING: MAY 27, 2014 2: 00 P. M. 

PURCHASING OFFICE

1190 N. E. 3RD AVENUE, BUILDING C ( Front) 

POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33060



April 28, 2014

CITY OF POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

T- 43- 14

MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

The City is seeking proposals from qualified firms to provide Parking Operations and
Management services to the City of Pompano Beach, FL. 

The City will receive sealed proposals until 2; 00 p. m. ( local), May 27, 2014, in the City' s
Purchasing Office, 1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33060. 

E- mailed or faxed proposals will not be acceptable. 

Introduction

On October 1, 2013, the City of Pompano Beach created a separate Parking Enterprise Fund
the Parking Fund) for the purpose of managing and operating the City' s parking assets in a
prudent and economically viable manner and to provide transparency of its operations. The

City' s core goal is to provide a seamless, efficient, customer -friendly, progressive and cost- 
effective parking system for its stakeholders. The City has undertaken significant master
planning efforts and is now investing in its infrastructure in ways that will result in the need for
future construction of numerous parking garages and additional metered parking. To maximize

the City' s return on its investment, the City is hereby soliciting the services of professional
parking management firms to operate its system. 

The City currently has a total of 1, 355 parking spaces ( includes Harbor Village lot & N. E. 1s' 

Street spaces) dispersed in three ( 3) municipal parking lots ( Pier, Oceanside & Alsdorf) and two

2) leased lots, with the remainder of spaces encompassing on -street parking. The City has a
total of 20 multi -space pay meters and 67 individual ( lollipop) meters. The multi -space pay
meters, which are supplied by Digital Payment Technologies, currently accept credit cards, 
cash and coins. During fiscal year 2013, the City generated approximately $ 222K in parking
citations ( 5, 454 citations) revenue and approximately $ 1 M in parking revenues. The Current

Parking Fund has an annual budget of $ 1. 2 million. 

The multi -space pay meters ( Luke I and Luke II) are remotely managed by Enterprise
Management System ( EMS) software, which allows both pay station configuration and the
collection of transaction data to create financial management reports. EMS is a real time web

based service utilized by Digital Payment Technologies ( current multi -space pay meter vendor) 
to provide information on the status of parking spaces and to provide information for auditing
and revenue reporting. Additionally, the pay stations are managed offline and online with Back
Office Support System Software ( BOSS) to configure all operating aspects for the meters ( e. g. 
adding meters to the network, language settings for interface menus, establishing/ adjusting
parking fees, and credit card processing). 

Parking Enforcement is currently provided through a Policing Services agreement with the
Broward Sheriff' s Office ( BSO). The City is exploring an opportunity to include provision of

RFP T-43- 14 Page l initial



these services by Proposers. Parking operations currently falls under the direction of the Public
Works Department of the City. 

Attached to this document is Attachment A & Attachment B, which provides an inventory of
parking meters with current locations and a map indicating geographic location of meters in the
City, respectively. Proposers are required to independently verify this inventory as part of their
due diligence. The City makes no representations as to the accuracy of this inventory. 

The City is currently exploring the construction of a 500 space pier parking garage and over the
next years will also be contemplating the construction of several other parking garages
throughout the City. 

Scope Of Services

Proposers or its employees must have at least three ( 3) years of experience managing
municipal parking operations and must be able to service an office within the City of
Pompano Beach. Proposers must have on its staff at least one ( 1) senior level manager

that possesses on -street, parking lots and parking garage management experience, 
ncluslve of parking enforcement experience. 

The successful Proposer shall/ may be responsible for providing, at a minimum, the
following services: 

Meter Enforcement

Patrol of and enforcement for single- space, mu' ti- space meters and parking lots, 
inclusive of issuance of parking citations for ail parking violations throughout the
City, in accordance with City ordinance. Proposer would be responsible for

providing sufficient personnel to issue parking violation citations at a level of
enforcement specified by the City. Proposer must submit separate pricing for
this enforcement activity in its proposals. Proposer must be capable of

providing this service seven days a week, 24 hours a day, and Proposers pricing
must reflect such. 

b. Provide for all support vehicles, office and computer equipment as required to

perform the day- to- day operations of the parking program. Proposers are

responsible for any Internet service connections fees, as a result of any remote
access to the City' s network. Proposers, as part of their response, must include
an itemization of anticipated support vehicles needed per the scope of services

being solicited. Proposers would be responsible for all associated maintenance
costs. 

Coordination of the installation and maintenance of parking meters, pay stations
and change machines. The Proposer shall provide price quotes for both

purchase and lease options, at the City' s discretion when new parking equipment
is to be acquired by the City directly. Equipment type and installation shall be in
accordance with standards issued by the City. Requests for the repair of all
parking equipment and appurtenances shall be requested, within twenty- four
24) hours of Proposer becoming aware of defects, from the City' s provider and

must be repaired or replace within forty-eight ( 48) hours or in accordance with

RFP T- 43- 14 Page 2 Initial



provider contractual terms. All purchases must conform to the City' s purchasing
policies and procedures. 

d. Currently, the City' s citation issuance process utilizes ticket books and is a highly
manual process, which involves the manual input of citations into the City' s
citations database. It is the City' s intention to utilize hand held ticket issuance
devices (" TIDs") to automate this process. As part of response to proposal, 

Proposer must provide recommendations ( inclusive of prices) for hand held

ticket issuance devices (" TID"), which allows enforcement personnel to conduct

enforcement on tablets or similar devices. The TID should be user- friendly and
include software that allows enforcement personnel to take pictures to support

issuance of parking violations and allow for attachable print devices. It is

expected that TID should be compatible with the City' s current software
application provider, SunGard HTE, to allow for the download of citation

information from SunGard' s citation database system to the TIDs and upload

from the TIDs to SunGard. This will allow for automation of citation input and

tracking identifying violators with multiple violations outstanding. Proposer' s bic

price should be reflected of this planned automation of the process. 

Monitoring, ordering and stocking of expendable products for meters ( i. e. printer
ink and printer paper). Proposers will have access to Parking Enterprise Budget
for such expenses and must submit requests for processing payments via the
City' s normal purchasing and accounts payable process. 

Utilization of Enterprise Management System ( EMS) Back Office Support

System ( BOSS) Software to re -program meters, as necessary. 

g. Manage and oversee the use of any third party programs ( i. e. Passport Parking -- 
pay -by -phone) by the City to support its parking activities. 

Provide boots for habitual parking enforcement violations. Note: the City has not
enacted this policy as of yet, but may contemplate in the near term. Proposer

should provide a narrative as to their experience with the use of such devices

and at what point other clients have placed boots on vehicles. 

Provide for towing, as applicable, The cost for this component of the contract
should be separately identifiable. 

Coordinating the repair or needed maintenance of any field parking software
systems with the City' s designated vendor( s). 

Provide employees with identifiable badges and uniforms, as approved by the
City. All vehicles must also have appropriate identifiable marks to indicate

Proposer's affiliation with the City of Pompano Beach Parking Services, subject
to City approval. As part of proposal, Proposers must provide color pictures of

what possible uniforms and vehicle decals might look like with the City' s logo
Florida' s Warmest Welcome). 

Enforcement personnel assigned to the contract should be appropriately trained
and possess all required certifications and/ or licenses for issuing non- moving
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violations. It is further Proposer' s responsibility ( al own expense) to provide for
pre- screening background checks for all personnel to be assigned to the City. 

m. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to the parking program. 

n. Provide annual reporting ( within 90 days of fiscal year end) to the City describing
the current state of parking enforcement activity. " rhe report should, at a

minimum, indicate no. of citations issued for the previous fiscal year ( October I" 
through September 30'

h), 

no. of enforcement personnel writing citations, no. of

citations issued per staff member writing citations and any recommendations for
improvements to operations detailing any associated costs. As part of proposal, 

proposer must provide any recommended benchmark or national standard for
expected no. of citations to be written monthly or annually per citation personnel
etc., based on the size/structure of the City' s parking space program. Proposer

must also describe any internal mechanism utilized by their management staff to
monitor the performance of enforcement personnel, in this regard. A copy of
citation database generated report must be provided as part of the package, 

which should reconcile to no. of citations indicated as issued in the annual report. 

o. Provide, as part of the required annual reporting, an annual survey to City of
neighboring cities parking rates, at Proposer' s own expense. 

p. Assistance and consultation with the City, as necessary in any enhancement, 
change or modification of its parking enforcement program. 

q. Assistance in implementing parking programs, including working with

businesses, ne;ghborh:ooci groups, and other organizations, as needed. 

Citation Manaaement

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued. 

b. Inputting citations issued within 43 hours of issuance, including those written by
1350 personnel. 

c. Generate letters to violators within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of violation being
issued, to include assessment of late fees. 

d. Fielding customer inquiries and complaints related to citations. Proposer must

provide a phone, fax and email address to which violators may direct inquiries. 
Such must be indicated on the parking citation issued. Proposer must also

coordinate requests by violators for a court date to contest citations and
coordinate such efforts with the City Attorney' s Office. Also, attend enforcement

court proceedings for disputed citations and follow through with hearing officers' 
decisions, as necessary. 

e. City will provide for a local office within the boundaries of the City whereby
customers may visit to make inquiries about or appeal parking citations issues or
for general parking inquiries. 
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Quarterly, coordinate with the City' s Information Technology Department, to
generate a report of outstanding parking citations older than ninety ( 90) days. 
Export information to excel and email to the City' s Finance Department for
referral to the City' s outside collection agency. Note: The City' s system
automatically adds a collection fee ( i. e. 17%) to each citation amount due once

this process has been activated. If Proposer would be utilizing its own

accounting systems for input of citations and processing cash receipts, Proposer
would be responsible for generating a query of parking citations outstanding for
ninety ( 90) days or greater, exporting detailed information for each citation to
excel and submitting such report to the City' s Finance Department for referral to
the outside collection agency. Once Finance Department forwards accounts to

collections, Proposer would be notified and must add collection fee to

outstanding balance for each violator' s account to reflect new amount due. As an
example, if violator owes $ 47 initially, a 17% collection fee would require amount

owed to be adjusted to $ 54. 99. Proposer' s systems must be able to separately
identify initial violation and penalties collected from any collection fee amounts
collected. 

Cash Receipts Collection, Handling and Processing

Proposers must provide pricing for the two options listed below: 

Option 9: City Systems Utilized for Processin.g & Recordin_g of Transactions

a. Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing the City' s current citation management system, 
a component of SunGard HTE. Selected vendor would be granted remote

access to the City' s system. 

b. Proposer would be responsible for daily collection and delivery of cash and coins
extracted from parking meters to the City' s Treasury Division located at City Hall. 
Proposer would be responsible for delivery of cash and coins to the Treasury
Division at least three ( 3) days a week ( weekday -every other day). However, for

special events or holidays, proposer shall make more frequent deliveries. For

special events or holidays falling on the weekends, whereby it may be necessary
to empty the meters on a weekend, Proposer would be responsible for

maintaining coins/ cash in a safe ( combination & key, with limited staff access) at
Proposer' s local office until such time as delivery to City Hall is possible, during
in normal operating hours. Meter generated audit reports must accompany
collections ( with the exception of lollipop extractions) from pay by space meters
and provided to Treasury for reconciliation to the actual collections. 

Parking citation payments will be made at the City' s Treasury Division, currently
located on the

151

Floor of City Hall, and processed through the City' s cash
receipts system. 
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Option 2: Proposer Systems Utilized for Processing & Initial Recording of

Transactions

Proposer will be responsible for processing and maintaining a database of
parking tickets issued by utilizing its own database management system and to
record receivables and deferred revenue for all citations written, and cash and

revenues as receipts are processed. City staff must be provided inquiry access
to such system

Proposers would be responsible for the collection of all parking citation payments
at its local office site and entry into Proposer' s own cash receipts system. Such

cash receipts system must accommodate a triple copy receipts system with
customer obtaining original, Proposer maintaining a copy and a copy being
remitted to the City' s Treasury Division. At a minimum, such receipt should

indicate the parking citation no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and

nature of payment ( i. e. parking citation). Proposer would be responsible for the

processing of such receipts for bank deposit with City providing for daily pickup
of bank deposits by an armed security service. Proposer would be required to

submit a copy of the bank deposit slip and a report from Proposers cash receipts
system, reconciled to the bank deposit slip amount to the City' s Treasury
Division. For non -sufficient funds ( NSF) payments made via check, the City' s
Treasury Division will inform Proposer of such for update of provider' s records. 
Proposer would be responsible for assessing the NSF fee ( in accordance with
City policy) to the violator and updating Proposer' s financial records accordingly. 
All reporting to the City' s Treasury Division must be inclusive of a cash receipts
processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing of
transactions. 

Daily collection of cash and coins extracted from parking meters. Under this

Option, Proposer would accept these funds at its local office site and process the

receipts in its own cash receipts system. Proposers would be responsible for

generating meter audit reports ( with the exception of lollipop meter extractions) 
to accompany each extraction of cash and coins from the meters and reconcile
to the coin/ cash counts. Proposers would be responsible for taking a physical
count of cash and coins ( a coin counter would be necessary) and completing a
bank deposit slip( s) for deposit of the meter collections. City would provide daily - 
armed service pickup for physical deposit of meter collections to the bank. 
Proposer must arrange for deposit and pickup of meter collections within 48
hours of collection from meters. For special events or holidays, proposer shall

make more frequent visits to the meters for collection of coins/ cash as such

volume of activity might warrant such. Proposer must provide for a secure safe
combination & key, with limited staff access) at local office site to hold meter

collections pending armed service pickup. Proposer must provide a copy of the
meter audit report, reconciliation of physical count to individual meter audit report

and a copy of bank deposit slip for each bank deposit processed. Such must be

provided timely to the City' s Revenue Collections Division via mail or email as
follows: 
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City of Pompano Beach
100 W. Atlantic Blvd., Rm 135

Pompano Beach, FL 33060

ATTN: Revenue Collections Manager

or

Linda. dye cr. copbfl. com with copy to
Giselle. wishinsky(a, copbfl. com

Separate ledger accounts would need to be established by lots/ locations as follows: 

Municipal Pier Lot

Oceanside Lot

Beach Parking Lot
Alsdorf Lots

Street Parking Meters
Harbor Village/ N. E. 15' Street

Proposer would be required to provide a report to the City' s Treasury Division for
each deposit to indicate the locations of each collection for each bank deposit as

stated above. All reporting to the City' s Treasury ( Division must be inclusive of a
cash receipts processing report and must be provided within 24 hours of processing
of transactions. 

a. Proposer would be responsible for administering the City' s residential
parking permit program. The City currently issues approximately 200
residential parking permits per year for its Oceanside and Municipal Per
Lots. The City issues semi- annual permits at a price of $ 30 and annual

permits at a price of $ 60; based on certain qualifying criteria ( i. e. proof of
residency). Proposer would be required to process and record receipts

related to this program. Such cash receipts system must accommodate

a triple copy receipts system with customer obtaining original, Proposer
maintaining a copy and a copy being remitted to the City' s Treasury
Division. At a minimum, such receipt should indicate the parking permit
no., receipt no., the date paid, the amount paid, and nature of payment

i. e. residential parking permit). Proposer would prepare bank deposit

slips for this activity and the City would provide for daily -armed service
pickup of such deposits. Proposer would be responsible for recording
this activity in a dedicated system account ( i. e. residential parking

permits) and must submit a copy of the bank deposit slip, a cash receipts
report and a reconciliation of the two to the City' s Treasury Division. 
Proposer would be responsible for maintaining all applications and proof
of qualification for each permit issued, in accordance with the City's
records retention policy. 

b. Any request for refunds pertaining to any of the activities discussed
above must be handled by the City' s Treasury Uvision and

communicated to Proposer for update of Proposer' s records and

systems. 
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c. Proposers would be responsible for voiding any transactions, in

accordance with City' s established practices and must provide a reporting
of such to the City' s Treasury Division within 24 hours of processing

d. Proposer would be responsible for establishing an online system to allow
violators to make crediUdebit card payments via a secure website

complying with all regulatory requirements). Proposer would be

responsible for ensuring such system is PCI compliant and on an annual
basis must submit report to Visa/ MC as such. Proposer would be

responsible for the posting of these online payments to Proposer' s cash
receipts system. Proposer would be responsible for linking online
receipts directly to the City' s designated bank account for daily deposit
and submittal of cash receipts reports to the City' s Treasury Division
within 24 hours of processing. 

e. Should the City elect Option 2, Proposer would be responsible for having
an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of its system
of internal controls performed annually, by a certified independent
accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on Controls at a
Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or designee. Such a

report will be in accordance with the requirements of Statement on

Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued by the
American institute of Certified Public Accountants. 

Currently, the City' s Information Technology Department ( IT) provides

citation information to the State of Florida Division of Motor Vehicles ( the

State) to allow the State to place a hold on violators, whereby tag renewal
will be delayed if violators have at least three ( 3) regular unpaid citations
or one ( 1) unpaid handicap citation. The State also provides detailed

information for violators ( i. e. addresses, DL# etc.) directly to the City to
allow for the mailing of letters to violators and assist in follow-up
collection efforts. Should Proposer elect Option 2, Proposer would be

responsible for establishing an infrastructure to allow for this two- way
communication and ensuring compatibility of Proposer' s system with the
State' s system, to allow for this interface of data. 

g. Within thirty ( 30) days from City' s fiscal year end ( September 30th), 
Proposer would be responsible for providing an aging report of

outstanding parking citation receivables ( at fiscal year- end) to the City' s
Finance Department. 

General Requirements

a. Proposer ( all parties to the Agreement) must be licensed to do business

in the State of Florida and must obtain a business tax receipt for the City
and Broward County, prior to commencement of services. 

b. Proposer must staff a temporary office within the limits of the Pompano
Beach, to be provided by the City, to generally contain the management
of the parking program, inclusive of accepting customer inquiries, 
acceptance and processing of payments ( assumes City elects Option 2) 
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and issue late notices for overdue payment of citations etc. The intent of

the City is to eventually provide a permanent location within the pier
parking garage upon its completion and the City will provide a temporary
site for the temporary office within reasonable proximity to the beach/ pier
area immediately, at City' s expense. It is Proposers responsibility to
provide for all costs associated with staffing and operating the location
within Proposer' s budgeted costs. 

c. Handle all customer service associated with the parking program. 

d. It is anticipated that the City will be designing and constructing a 500 - 
space pier parking garage within the next 1. 5 to 2 years. Proposers are

required to propose a tentative separate price structure to contemplate

the management of the garage, to include provision of valet parking
approximately 100 spaces in pier garage) for beach parking and future

restaurant locations in the Pier Redevelopment area. Such proposed

pricing structure should present a line item detail of all costs to be
covered in proposers budget and should be specific as to what will be

included in proposers budget, as well as what would be excluded or

Proposers may indicate as " optional" services. Proposers management

structure should be discussed. Proposer must discuss client references

name of client, contact name, title, phone, email) for which similar

services have been provided within the past three ( 3) years, including, but
not be limited to contractual arrangement for compensation

e. Provide weekly, monthly and annual reports as may be required by the
City. 

The Proposer may propose the purchase of equipment, data software
and information systems relating to and associated with the day-to- day
operations of the parking management program to enhance operating
efficiency, with prior approval of the City. All purchases must be in
accordance with City policies and procedures. All program specific

products purchased by the Proposer on behalf of the City shall upon
termination of the Contract remain the property of the City. 

g. Coordinate the implementation of any changes in the City' s parking rates
or policies. 

Provide for an annual review of the design and operating effectiveness of
Proposer' s system of internal controls performed annually, by a certified
independent accountant, and provide a copy of the report ( Report on

Controls at a Service Organization) to the City' s Finance Director or
designee. Such a report will be in accordance with the requirements of

Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No. 16, as issued

by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

i. As part of Proposal, Proposer must submit, at a minimum, compiled

financial statements to indicate financial capacity to provide the services
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herein, without interruption. Proposer may choose to submit reviewed or
audited financials instead. 

Coordinate special City events with City staff. 

Within 6 months of hire, meet with City and CRA staff and review current
parking operations and provide a report to the City Manager with
observations and recommendations etc. May include new technologies, 
payment acceptance methods, additional meter locations, garage

locations, marketing, signage, experience/suggestions for a 100% 

cashless system etc. 

Any reasonably related services upon request. 

2. Term of Contract

The City anticipates awarding a Service Provider Agreement for a term of three ( 3) 
years with an option for one ( 1) additional term of two ( 2) years, for a possible total of

five ( 5) years. Hourly rates and all other negotiated expenses will remain in effect
throughout the duration of the contract term, including the optional renewal term, unless
mutually agreed upon by both parties. Additional services and responsibilities may be
added to this agreement as agreed upon by both parties. 

Small Business Enterprise Program

The Pompano Beach City Commission has established a voluntary Small Business
Enterprise ( SBE) Program to encourage and foster the participation of Small Business

Enterprises in the central procurement activities of the City. The City of Pompano
Beach is strongly committed to ensuring the participation of Small Business Enterprises
SBE' s) as contractors and subcontractors for the procurement of goods and services. 

The definition of a SBE, for the purpose of the City' s voluntary program, is taken from
the State of Florida Statute 288. 703( 1) 

As of the date of publication of this solicitation, a small business means an

independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer
permanent full- time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of

not more than $ 5 million or any firm based in Florida that has a Small Business
Administration 8( a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the $ 5 million net

worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments. 

The City encourages all firms to undertake good faith efforts to identify appropriate
Small Business Enterprise partners. Sources of information on certified Small Business

Enterprises include the Broward County Small Business Development Division, the
State of Florida Office of Supplier Diversity, South Florida Water Management District, 
and other agencies throughout the State. The City includes links to these organizations
from the City' s website www. pompanobeachfi.gov. Please indicate in your response if

your firm is a certified Small Business Enterprise. 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages small business participation in a// of its
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5. 

procurements. 

Local Business Program

On March 23, 2010, the City Commission approved a Resolution establishing a Local
Business Program, a policy to increase the participation of City of Pompano Beach
businesses in the City' s procurement process. 

You can view the list of City businesses that have a current Business Tax Receipt on the
City' s website, and locate local firms that are available to perform the work required by
the bid specifications. The business information, sorted by business use classification, 
is posted on the webpage for the Business Tax Receipt Division: 

ht^ tp:// pom anobeachfl. gov/ pages/department directory/development services/ business
tax receipt division/ pdfs/ FAQ sheet BTR. pdf or you may contact Susan Kores at the

Pompano Beach Community Redevelopment Agency Business Resource Center at
L954) 586- 1 199 or at susan(aD_iedfl. com. 

Please note that, while no voluntary goals have been established for this
solicitation, the City encourages Local Business participation in all of its
procurements. Proposers interested in local business participation are

encouraged as part of their proposal package to discuss planned efforts in this

respect. 

Required Proposal Submittal

Submission/ Format Requirements

Submit one ( 1) original unbound and five ( 5) bound copies of the proposal. All copies

will be on 8 '/ 2" x 11" plain white paper, typed, and signed by an authorized
representative who is able to contractually bind the Proposer. In addition, Proposers

must submit one ( 1) original copy of the Proposal on electronic media in printable Adobe
or Microsoft Word format ( or other format approved by the City). Failure to adhere to

the submittal quantity criteria may result in the Proposal being considered non- 
responsive. 

Information to be included in the proposal: In order to maintain comparability and
expedite the review process, it is required that proposals be organized in the manner
specified below, with tabs or dividers between the sections: 

Title page: 

Show the project name and number, the name of the Proposer' s firm, address, 

teiephone number, name of contact person and the date. 

Table of Contents: 

Include a clear identification of the material by section and by page. 

Letter of Transmittal: 

Briefly state the Proposer' s understanding of the project and express a positive
commitment to provide the services described herein. State the name( s) of the

person( s) who will be authorized to make representations for the Proposer, their title( s), 
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office and E- mail addresses and telephone numbers. Please limit this section to two

pages. 

Scope of Services: 

For each item listed under scope of services, proposers are required to provide a

narrative discussing each respective area, to include, but not be limited to: 

a. Discussion of experience and ability to manage a 500 space parking garage, to
include any experience in operating a valet service. Discussion should include

proposed contract structure in terms of Proposer compensation and any general
revenue split arrangements generally contemplated. May also include discussion of
how the garage might be manned or not, based on entry and exit points, pay meters
etc. Should also include Proposer' s experience with other client references as

discussed above. 

b. Discussion of number of personnel anticipated to be assigned to the contract, to

include title and duties, at a minimum. 

c. Discussion of vehicles to be assigned to the contract, type, description etc. 

d. Discussion of benchmarks and/ or national standards against with performance of

parking operations may be measured, to include parking enforcement activity. 
e. Discussion of any proposed general improvements already observed per Proposer' s

own due diligence in preparing proposal
f. Discussion of experience with placing boots on parking violators vehicles. 
g. Discussion of hand held ticket devices and recommendations of specific TIDs. 

h. Discussion of any parking program analysis reports prepared for previous clients. 
Proposer must include an example ( s) in proposal submittal. 

i. Discussion of proposed monitoring mechanisms for monitoring the performance of
personnel, as it relates to administration of the parking enforcement function. 

j. Discussion of cash receipts processing and recording capacity and internal controls
in place to ensure accurate and complete collection, recording and reconciliation of
transactions. In addition, discuss planned segregation of duties for collection, 

recording, cashier drawer balancing procedures ( to include reconciliation of opening
cash drawer amount, daily receipts and cash receipts system report reconciliation) a, 
deposit and reconciliation of all parking related revenues, should the City elect
Option 2 above. 

k. Discussion of the City' s current parking rate structure of $ 1. 25 per hour ( unadjusted

for peak days/ hours/ locations) and any recommendations based on prior clients or
general industry practice. City also currently has a boat launch and charges $ 10 for

a 24- hour period to park a boat trailer. 

1. Discussion of planned collection efforts to maximize collections on outstanding
parking citations. Proposers should incorporate specific experience/ success in this

area with other client references to include client name, contact name, title, phone, 

email, etc. and approximate value or receivables managed, annual collections and

annual collection rate for client' s most recent fiscal year, 

m. Discussion on any proposed efforts to enhance collections on parking citations
written for out of state violators. 

n. Discussion of transition plan, inclusive of detailed tasks to be completed, and

planned coordination effort with BSO, the City' s current parking enforcement
partner. 

o. Discussion of anticipated timeframe from contract award to being fully operational. 
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Fees & Costs: 

Proposer must provide a line item budget for fees for all contract years, including any
optional renewal periods. In narrative, please discuss basis for each annual escalator, if

applicable ( i. e. specific consumer price index). 

Include a concise narrative with sufficient detail indicating the proposed approach to
providing the required services, including a description of the types and qualities of
service that would be provided. Provide a cost for each of the major services provided

along with the estimated number of expected work hours for each qualified staff. 
Proposer must itemize all costs to complete all necessary tasks as described under
Scope of Services. Miscellaneous expenses should be adequately described. Proposer

must be clear as what is included in price proposal, what is excluded and what might be
optional. 

References: 

Submit a client reference list, including name of contact, firm and/ or governmental
entity, address, telephone number and type of service provided to each reference. At

least Three ( 3) references should be for clients within Broward, Dade, or Palm Beach
Counties if applicable, with an emphasis on event or recreational type of facilities with

more than 1, 000 parking spaces. 

Litigation: 

Disclose any litigation within the past five ( 5) years arising out your firm' s performance. 

City Forms: 
The RFP Proposal Signature Page must be completed, signed and returned. Proposer

should return all RFP pages, initialed where indicated. 

Insurance

The insurance described herein reflects the insurance requirements deemed necessary
for this contract by the City. It is not necessary to have this level of insurance in effect
at the time of submittal, but certificates indicating that the insurance is currently carried
or a letter from the Carrier indicating upgrade ability will speed the review process to
determine the most qualified Proposer. 

The successful Proposer(s) shall not commence operations until certification or proof of

insurance, detailing terms and provisions of coverage, has been received and approved
by the City of Pompano Beach Risk Manager. 

The following insurance coverage shall be required. 

Worker' s Compensation Insurance covering all employees and providing benefits as
required by Florida Statute, Chapter 440, regardless of the size of the company ( number
of employees). The Contractor further agrees to be responsible for employment, control

and conduct of its employees and for any injury sustained by such employees in the
course of their employment. 

abilitv Insurance
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I ) Naming the City of Pompano Beach as an additional insured, on General Liability
Insurance only, in connection with work being done under this contract. 

2) Such Liability insurance shall include the following checked types of insurance
and indicated minimum policy limits. 

Tvpe of Insurance

LIMITS OF LIABILITY

each

occurrence aggregate

GENERAL LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000, 000 per OCCURRENCE/ $ 1, 000, 000 AGGREGATE

Policy to be written on a claims incurred basis

XX comprehensive form

XX premises - operations bodily injury
T

explosion & collapse

each person) 

hazard property damage
underground hazard

each accident) 

XX products/ completed

property damage

XX

operations hazard bodily injury and
XX contractual insurance property damage
XX broad form property combined

damage

XX independent contractors

XX personal injury personal injury

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: MINIMUM $ 1, 000,000 per OCCURRENCE /$ 1, 000,000

AGGREGATE

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

EXCESS LIABILITY

umbrella form
bodily injury and
property damage
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bodily injury
each person) 

bodily injury
XX comprehensive form each accident) 

XX owned property damage

XX hired bodily injury and
XX non -owned property damage

combined

REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY

comprehensive form Consultant must show proof they have this coverage. 

EXCESS LIABILITY

umbrella form
bodily injury and

property damage
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other than umbrella combined

XX PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY

Policy to be written on a claims made basis

2, 000, 000. $ 2, 000, 000. 

1, 000, 000 1 000, 000. 

The certification or proof of insurance must contain a provision for notification to the City
thirty ( 30) days in advance of any material change in coverage or cancellation. 

The successful Proposer shall furnish to the City the certification or proof of insurance
required by the provisions set forth above, within ten ( 10) days after notification of award
of contract. 

7. Selection/ Evaluation Process

A Selection/ Evaluation Committee will be appointed to select the most qualified firm( s). 

The Selection/ Evaluation Committee will present their findings to the City Commission. 

Proposals will be evaluated using the following criteria. 

Criteria Point Range

A. Experience and Expertise 0- 35

Previous related work experience and qualifications of firm and

personnel. Demonstrates a clear understanding of scope of work and
other technical or legal issues related to the project. 

B. References 0- 5

History and performance of firm/ project team on similar projects. 
References and recommendations from previous clients. 

C. Resources and Methodology 0- 15

Adequacy of arnount of quality resources assigned to the project. 
Overall approach to project. Consideration of services provided and

approach to meeting goals and deadlines. 

D. Location of Regional Office 0- 5

Proximity to Pompano Beach Office location. 

E. Cost 0- 40

Including the proposed mark up ( indicate what benefits are included
and amount of the mark up) for field staff, costs for management and
the proposed fee structure. 

Total 0- 100

The Committee has the option to use the above criteria for the initial ranking to short- list
Proposers and to use an ordinal ranking system to score short- listed Proposers
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following presentations ( if deemed necessary) with a score of " 1" assigned to the short- 
listed Proposer deemed most qualified by the Committee. 

Each firm should submit documentation that evidences the firm' s capability to provide
the services required for the Committee' s review for short listing purposes. After an

initial review of the Proposals, the City may invite Proposers for an interview to discuss
the proposal and meet firm representatives, particularly key personnel who would be
assigned to the project. Should interviews be deemed necessary, it Is understood that
the City shall incur no costs as a result of this interview, nor bear any obligation in
further consideration of the submittal. 

When more than three responses are received, the committee shall furnish the City
Commission ( for their approval) a listing, in ranked order, of no fewer than three firms
deemed to be the most highly qualified to perform the service. If three or less firms

respond to the RFP, the list will contain the ranking of all responses. 

The City Commission has the authority to ( including, but not limited to), approve the

recommendation, reject the recommendation and direct staff to re -advertise the

solicitation; or, review the responses themselves and/ or request oral presentations and

determine a ranking order that may be the same or different from what was originally
presented to the City Commission. 

8. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

Proposer covenants and agrees that it will indemnify and hold harmless the City and all
of its officers, agents, and employees from any claim, loss, damage, cost, charge or
expense arising out of any act, action, neglect or omission by the Proposer, whether
direct or indirect, or whether to any person or property to which the City or said parties
may be subject, except that neither the Proposer nor any of its subcontractors will be
liable under this section for damages arising out of injury or damage to persons or
property directly caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the City or any of its
officers, agents or employees. 

9. Retention of Records and Right to Access

The selected firm shall maintain during the term of the contract all books of account, 
receipt invoices, reports and records in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices and standards. The form of all records and reports shall be subject to the

approval of the City' s Internal Auditor. Recommendation for changes, additions, or

deletions by the City' s Internal Auditor must be complied with by the selected firm. The

City' s Internal Auditor must be permitted during normal business hours to audit and
examine the books of account, reports, and records relating to this contract. The

selected firm shall maintain and make available such records and files for the duration of

the contract and retain them until the expiration of three years after final payment under

the contract. 

10. Communications

No negotiations, decisions, or actions shall be initiated or executed by the firm as a
result of any discussions with any City employee. Only those communications, which
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are in writing from the City, may be considered as a duly authorized expression on
behalf of the City. In addition, only communications from firms that are signed and in
writing will be recognized by the City as duly authorized expressions on behalf of firms. 

11. No Discrimination

There shall be no discrimination as to race, sex, color, age, religion, or national origin in

the operations conducted under any contract with the City. 

12. Independent Contractor

The selected firm will conduct business as an independent contractor under the terms of

this contract. Personnel services provided by the firm shall be by employees of the firm
and subject to supervision by the firm, and not as officers, employees, or agents of the
City. Personnel policies, tax responsibilities, social security and health insurance, 
employee benefits, purchasing policies and other similar administrative procedures
applicable to services rendered under this agreement shall be those of the firm. 

13. Staff Assignment

The City of Pompano Beach reserves the right to approve or reject, for any reasons, 
Proposer' s staff assigned to this project at any time. Background checks may be
required. 

14. Contract Terms

The contract resulting from this RFP shall include, but not be limited to the following
terms: 

The contract shall include as a minimum, the entirety of this RFP document, together
with the successful Proposer' s proposal. Contract shall be prepared by the City of
Pompano Beach City Attorney. 

If the City of Pompano Beach defends any claim, demand, cause of action, or lawsuit
arising out of any act, action, negligent acts or negligent omissions, or willful misconduct
of the contractor, its employees, agents or servants during the performance of the
contract, whether directly or indirectly, contractor agrees to reimburse the City of
Pompano Beach for all expenses, attorney' s fees, and court costs incurred in defending
such claim, cause of action or lawsuit. 

15. Waiver

It is agreed that no waiver or modification of the contract resulting from this RFP, or of
any covenant, condition or limitation contained in it shall be valid unless it is in writing
and duly executed by the party to be charged with it, and that no evidence of any waiver
or modification shall be offered or received in evidence in any proceeding, arbitration, or
litigation between the parties arising out of or affecting this contract, or the right or
obligations of any party under it, unless such waiver or modification is in writing, duly
executed as above. The parties agree that the provisions of this paragraph may not be
waived except by a duly executed writing. 
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16. Survivorship Rights

This contract resulting from this RFP shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the
respective parties and their executors, administrators, heirs, personal representative, 

successors and assigns. 

17. Termination

The contract resulting from this RFP may be terminated by the City of Pompano Beach
without cause upon providing contractor with a least sixty ( 60) days prior written notice. 

Should either party fail to perform any of its obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP for a period of thirty ( 30) days after receipt of written notice of such failure, the
non -defaulting part will have the right to terminate the contract immediately upon
delivery of written notice to the defaulting part of its election to do so. The foregoing
rights of termination are in addition to any other rights and remedies that such party may
have. 

18. Manner of Performance

Proposer agrees to perform its duties and obligations under the contract resulting from
this RFP in a professional manner and in accordance with all applicable local, federal
and state laws, rules and regulations. 

Proposer agrees that the services provided under the contract resulting from this RFP
shall be provided by employees that are educated, trained and experienced, certified
and licensed in all areas encompassed within their designated duties. Proposer agrees

to furnish the City of Pompano Beach with all documentation, certification, authorization, 
license, permit, or registration currently required by applicable laws or rules and
regulations. Proposer further certifies that it and its employees are now in and will

maintain good standing with such governmental agencies and that it and its employees
will keep all license, permits, registration, authorization or certification required by
applicable laws or regulations in full force and effect during the term of this contract. 
Failure of Proposer to comply with this paragraph shall constitute a material breach of
contract. 

19. Acceptance Period

Proposals submitted in response to this RFP must be valid for a period no less than

ninety ( 90) days from the closing date of this solicitation. 

20. RFP Conditions and Provisions

The completed and signed proposal ( together with all required attachments) must be

returned to City on or before the time and date stated herein. All Proposers, by
submission of a proposal, shall agree to comply with all of the conditions, requirements
and instructions of this RFP as stated or implied herein. All proposals and supporting
materials submitted will become the property of the City. 
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Any alteration, erasure, or inlerlineations by the Proposer in this RFP shall constitute
cause for rejection. Exceptions or deviations to this proposal may not be added after
the submittal date. 

All Proposers are required to provide' all information requested in this RFP. Failure to do

so may result in disqualification of the proposal. 

The City reserves the right to postpone or cancel this RFP, or reject all proposals, if in
its sole discretion it deems it to be in the best interest of the City to do so. 

The City reserves the right to waive any technical or formal errors or omissions and to
reject all proposals, or to award contract for the items herein, in pail or whole, if it is

determined to be in the best interests of the City to do so. 

The City shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Proposer in the preparation of
proposals or for any work performed in connection therein. 

21. Standard Provisions

a. Governing Law

Any agreement resulting from this RFP shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida, and the venue for any legal action relating to such agreement
will be in Broward County, Florida. 

b. Conflict Of Interest

For purposes of determining any possible corflict of interest, each Proposer
must disclose if any City employee is also an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee of the firm. If any City employee is an owner, corporate officer, or an
employee, the Proposer must file a statement with the Broward County
Supervisor of Elections pursuant to § 112. 313, Florida Statutes. 

C. Drug Free Workplace

The selected firm( s) will be required to verify they will operate a " Drug Free
Workplace" as set for-th in Florida Statute, 287. 087. 

d. Public Entity Crimes

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a
conviction for public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to
provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a

contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or
public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to public entity, 
may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or
consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business
with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Florida
Statute, Section 287. 017, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months from

the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
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e. Patent Fees Rovalties, And Licenses

If the selected Proposer requires or desires to use any design, trademark, 
device, material or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, the selected
Proposer and his surety shall indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and
all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, 
device, trademark, copyright, material or process in connection with the work

agreed to be performed and shall indemnify the City from any cost, expense, 
royalty or damage which the City may be obligated to pay by reason of any
infringement at any time (luring or after completion of the work. 

Permits

The selected Proposer shall be responsible for obtaining all permits, licenses, 
certifications, etc., required by federal, state, county, and municipal laws, 

regulations, codes, and ordinances for the performance of the work required in

these specifications and to conform to the requirements of said legislation, 

g. Familiarity With Laws

It is assumed the selected firm( s) wili be familiar with all federal, state and local

laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that may affect its services pursuant to
this RFP. Ignorance on the part of the firm will in no way relieve the firm from
responsibility. 

h Withdrawal Of Proposals

A firm may withdraw its proposal without prejudice no later than the advertised
deadline for submission of proposals by written communication to the General
Services Department, 1190 N. E. 3`d Avenue, Building C, Pompano Beach, 

Florida 33060. 

omoosition Of Pro ect Team

Firms are required to commit that the principals and personnel named in the

proposal will perform the services throughout the contractual term unless

otherwise provided for by way of a negotiated contract or written amendment to
same executed by both parties. No diversion or substitution of principals or

personnel will be allowed unless a written request that sets forth the
qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement( s) is submitted to and

approved by the City in writing. 

Variances

While the City allows Proposers to take variances to the RFP terms, conditions, 
and specifications, the material nature, number, and extent of variances taken

will be considered in determining proposal responsiveness and in allocating
proposal evaluation points

RFT' 1'- 43- 14 Page 20 Initial



Invoicing/ Payment

All involces should be sent to City of Pompano Beach, Accounts Payable, P. O. 
Drawer 1300, Pompano Beach, Florida, 33061. In accordance with Florida

Statutes, Chapter 218, payment will be made within 45 days after receipt of a

proper invoice. 

Public Records

The City of Pompano Beach is a public agency subject to Chapter 119, 
Florida Statutes. The Contractor shall comply with Florida' s Public Records
Law. Specifically, the Contractor shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be
required by the City in order to perform the service; 

Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms

and conditions that the City would provide the records and at a cost that
does not exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise

provided by law; 

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and

exempt from public record requirements are not disclosed except as

authorized by law; and

d. Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the City, 
at no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon

termination of the contract and destroy any duplicate public records that
are exempt or confidential and exempt. All records stored electronically
must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the
information technology systems of the agency. 

2. The failure of Contractor to comply with the provisions set forth in this Article
shall constitute a Default and Breach of this Agreement and the City shall
enforce the Default in accordance with the provisions set forth herein. 

22. Questions and Communication

All questions regarding the RFP are to be submitted in writing to the Purchasing Office, 
1190 N. E. 3rd Avenue, Building C ( Front), Pompano Beach, Florida 33060, fax ( 954) 

786- 4168, or email purchasingacopbf(.com. All questions must include the inquiring
firm' s name, address, telephone number and RFP name and number. Questions must

be received at least seven ( 7) calendar days before the scheduled solicitation opening. 
Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Any
addendum necessary to answer questions will be posted to the City' s website, and it is
the Proposer' s responsibility to obtain all addenda before submitting a response to the
solicitation. 

23. Addenda
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The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby interpretation, 
clarification, or additional information can be given. If any addenda are issued to this
solicitation the City will attempt to notify all known prospective Proposers, however, it
shall be the responsibility of each Proposer, prior to submitting their response, to contact
the City Purchasing Office at ( 954) 786-4098 to determine if addenda were issuea and
to make such addenda a part of their proposal. 
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PROPOSAL SIGNATURE PAGE

RFP T- 43- 13, MANAGEMENT OF PARKING OPERATIONS

To: The City of Pompano Beach, Florida

The below signed hereby agrees to furnish the proposed services under the terms stated
subject to all instructions, terms, conditions, specifications, addenda, legal advertisement, and

conditions contained in the RFP. I have read the RFP and all attachments, including the
specifications, and fully understand what is required. By submitting this signed proposal I will
accept a contract if approved by the City and such acceptance covers all terms, conditions, and
specifications of this proposal. 

Proposal submitted by: 

Name ( printed) 

Company ( Legal Registered) 

Federal Tax Identification Number

Address

City/ State/Zip

Telephone No

Signature

Title

Fax No. 

Date

Addendum Acknowledgment - Proposer acknowledges that the following addenda have been
received and are included in his/ her proposal: 

Addendum No. Date Issued

RFP 1'-43- 14 Page 23 Initial



Lot

Pier, Spaces 001 to 323

Machine 1 NE

Machine 2 NW

Machine 3 SW

Machine 4 SE

Oceanside

Machine 7 West Side

Machine 8 East Side

Parcel A, Spaces2001 - 2126

SW Corner Temp Lot

Temp Lot East Side, North
Temp Lot East Side, South
Briny Pub Corner
PB Blvd., Spaces 1001 - 1 122

North of Pier 1

North of Pier 2

North of Pier 3

South of Pier 1

South of Pier 2

South of Pier 3

South of Pier 4

16th Street, Spaces 800 - 827

Alsdorf

North

South

ATTACHMENT " A" 

Machine Serial Numbers

Does not yet include Harbor Village/ N. E. 1st Street

300009420069

300009420070

300009420071

300009420074

300010270008

300010270010

500012360986

500012360979

500012360978

500012360983

500012360981

500012360980

500012360977

500012360984

500012360987

500012360982

500012360985

300009420073

300010270009

300010270011
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ATTACHMENT ° 811

Parking meter Locations 2C12 Revised
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ATTACHMENT D

PARKING MANAGER' S BID RESPONSE

www.pompanobeachfl. gov/ denisonparkinginc



EXHIBIT B

PARKING FACILITY

OPERATING EXPENSES (Section 2. 6) 

Management Fee

2. Payroll: 

A. Salaries and wages of all Parking Manager personnel. assigned
to and performing work at the Parking Facility, including
general manager, manager, assistant managers, bookkeepers, 

parking attendants, cashiers, custodians, maintenance

personnel, and auditors. 

B. Payroll. taxes, including without limitation workers' 

compensation, unemployment insurance and social security. 

C. Parking Manager' s existing standard benefits have been

approved by City and Parking Manager for inclusion in
Operating Expenses and City agrees to review and consent to
any reasonable modification thereof made applicable to all

Parking Manager' s employees. 

D. Overtime premium wages for employees who have worked in

excess of forty ( 40) hours per week at the Parking Facility
only, not to exceed 10% of total compensation in any month. 

3. Telephone and data line expenses originating from and relating to the
operation of the Parking Facility only. 

4. All expenses of complying with any and all requirements of all federal, 
state and municipal legislative enactments, and other governmental or

municipal regulations directly related to Parking Facility, including license
and permit fees. 

5. All expenses of cleaning, operating, maintaining and repairing the Parking
Facility to the extent not provided herein to be performed by City, 
including, without limitation, any and all expenses incurred for the
cleaning of all surface areas, cleaning and maintaining of all parking

equipment, and for the striping and line painting of all parking areas. 

6. Expenses associated with employee uniforms for Employees stationed at

the Parking Facility. 

First Amendment Between City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc. 



7. Insurance premiums and applicable deductibles directly attributable to the
Parking Facility. 

8. Sundry items for use at the Parking Facility, such as parking tickets, 
reports and other standard forms, monthly cards, housekeeping supplies
and equipment, office supplies and postage. 

9. Expenses associated with the purchase, maintenance and upkeep of

directional signs, rate and other signs for use within the Parking Facility. 

10. Employment expenses incurred for the purpose of filling personnel needs
at the Parking Facility such as advertising, screening tests, background
checks. 

11. Equipment and fixtures related to the access, operational efficiency, 

customer service and revenue control of the Parking Facility, such as gate
arms, cashier booths, clearance bars, etc. 

12. A monthly administrative fee determined annually and included in the
approved Budget during the term of this First Amendment to cover
Parking Manager' s overhead cost of providing certain location specific
accounting services for the Parking Facility such as payroll processing, 
accounts receivable processing, etc. 

13. All other ordinary and direct expenses associated with the operation of
the Parking Facility which have been itemized with reasonable specificity
in any approved Budget and/ or which have been otherwise approved by
City. 

14. Maintenance and monitoring of all. elevators and escalators serving the
Parking Facility, if any. 

15. Emergency expenses as approved in writing or email by City. 

EXPENSES OF PARKING MANAGER (Section 2. 7) 

Salaries and wages of any person not assigned to the parking
facility by Parking Manager. 

2. Parking Manager' s corporate business taxes and personal property
taxes on Parking Manager' s property. 

3. Any charitable contributions by Parking Manager. 
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4. Travel expenses of all personnel and all indirect overhead expense and

compensation expense of headquarters or executive personnel. 

5. Expenses of Parking Manager not related to Parking Facility. 

EXPENSES OF CITY (Section 2.$) 

Salaries and wages of all employees of City. 

2. Expenses incurred by City in the supervision of obligations of
Parking Manager. 

3. Insurance premiums for those coverages which are provided by
City. 

4. Legal and third party auditing fees, except as otherwise set forth in
this First Amendment. 

5. Real and personal property taxes, sales tax if any, debt service and
occupancy tax. 

6. Taxes pertaining to City, such as franchise, income or corporate
taxes and debt service with respect to the Parking Facility. 

7. Capital expenditures, improvements and alterations, major

structural repairs and repairs to HVAC, elevators, plumbing and
electrical systems, including all architectural and engineering fees, 
but not including routine minor repairs which are typically
performed by routine maintenance employees. 

8. Repairs caused or required by improper construction or design of
Parking Facility including, without limitation by specification, 
settlement, collapse or inadequacy of structure. 

9. Expenses of City not related to Parking Facility. 

10. Costs of payroll and equipment of security person-nel. 

1 l . Utilities expense of the Parking Facility. 

12. Cost of any alterations or improvements to the parking facility
required as a result of the American' s with Disabilities Act or other
governmental regulations. 

First Amendment Between City of Pompano Beach and Denison Parking, Inc. 3



EXHIBIT C

PROJECTED PROFIT AND LOSS OPERATING STATEMENT

PARKING FACILITY

FISCAL YEARS 2016, 2017 & 20 18) 
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Operating Assumptions
FY 2016 Budget

Hourly rate for the FY 2016 year will be $ 1. 25 Per Hour. 
This rate can be changed on the fly along with Flat Rate capability for events. 

Monthly Parking Rates to be $ 150

3 There will be no Retail or Restaurant operations to consider in FY 2016

4 Custodian / Maintenance staff has been considered 7 days per week. 

5 Weekend Day and Evening supervisor hours have been considered for customer service
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Operating Assumptions
2017 Budget

1 Hourly rate considered for this document will be $ 1. 25 Per Hour. 
This rate can be changed on the fly along with Flat Rate capability for events. 

Events Christmas Weekend, New Year Weekend, Seafood Festival, 4th of July, etc. 

2 Monthly Parking Rates to be $ 150
No discount was considered for Area Employees, Full Time or Winter Residents

3 If On Street rates remain the same as the garage, demand for the garage may be negatively affected. 

4 It is anticipated that Monthly Parking Demand will increase during Season and after Retail comes online in September 2017
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LOCATION: Pompano Beach Garage DATE: 5/ 2/ 2016

LOCATION #: 0

EVENT REVENUE - March & April REVISION 0

of March April

Event events Cars Rate

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total Events: March 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

SeaFood Festival 0

3 Day Event 0

0

0

0

0

0

12, 000

Total Events: April 1 1200 $ 10. 00

Total Event Revenue: $ 0 12, 000



I, OCATION: Pompano Beach Garage DATE: 

LOCATION #: 0

EVENT REVENUE - July & August REVISION

of

Event events Cars Rate

4th of July 600 $ 10. 00

Total Events: July 1 600

Total Events: August 0 0

5/ 2/ 2016

July August

6, 000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total Event Revenue: $ 6, 000 $ 0
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Operating Assumptions
2018 Budget

1 Hourly rate considered for this document will be $ 1. 25 Per Hour. 
This rate can be changed on the fly along with Flat Rate capability for events. 

Events Christmas Weekend, New Year Weekend, Seafood Festival, 4th of July, etc. 
No Increase in Hourly Rate was considered for this document

2 Monthly Parking Rates to be $ 150
No Discount was considered for Area Employees, Full Time Residents or winter Residents

3 If On Street rates remain the same as the garage, demand for the garage may be negatively affected. 
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